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land on which we operate.
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Torres Strait and Northern
Peninsula Area and respect
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The Indigenous people of the Torres Strait are

of Aboriginal and Melanesian origin and speak
two distinct traditional languages. Inthe Eastern
Islands the traditional language is Meriam Mir,
while the Western and Central Island groups
speak either Kala Lagau Ya or Kala Kawau Ya,
which are dialects of the same language. Torres
Strait Creole and English are also spoken.

Our vision is expressed in the languages of our
region, recognising the importance and diversity
of our culture and traditional languages.

Ngalpun yangu kaaba woeydhay, a ngalpun
muruygaw danalagan mabaygal kunakan palayk,
bathayngaka

KalaLagau Ya

Buaigiz kelar obaiswerare, merbi mir apuge
mena obakedi, muige merbi areribi tonarge, ko
merbi keub kerkerem

Meriam Mir

Ngalpan moebaygal thoepoeriwoeyamoeyn,
ngalpan ya kuduthoeraynu, ngalpan igililmaypa,
sepa setha wara goeygil sey boey wagel

Kala Kawau Ya

Our vision signifies that the heart of our region

is our people, with culture an important part of
our lives now and into the future. Empowering
our people to contribute to, and make decisions
regarding their future, ensures that our culture will
remain strong and that the future will be guided by
the people who live in the region and understand
and promote its unique characteristics.
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Highlights and Achievements

Highlights and Achievements

Highlights of 2010 - 2011

Engaging with our communities to build Closing the Gap in Indigenous Disadvantage

the future

>

The TSRA is working with all levels of
government to improve the delivery of
integrated government services across the
Torres Strait and Northern Peninsula Area
(NPA). The TSRA is leading Integrated
Service Delivery (ISD) and is developing this
approach as core business for all government
entities and non-government organisations
delivering services in the region.

We have delivered feedback on the Torres
Strait and Northern Peninsula Area Regional
Plan 2009 - 2029 to all communities in the
region, detailing how information from

the consultation process reflects regional
aspirations.

Our elected Board Members make frequent
visits to Torres Strait communities. Almost
all of our Board Members live and work

in the communities that they represent.
Through our Board Members, the TSRA is
able to maintain close relationships with
communities.

Staff visit communities across the region

on aregular basis to deliver information on
government policies and program reforms.
This is a two-way process with the community
also providing feedback to the TSRA on
program progress, outcomes and challenges.

» Allofthe TSRA’s Programs are aligned with the

Torres Strait Development Plan 2009 - 2013
and the Torres Strait and Northern Peninsula
Area Regional Plan 2009 - 2029. These
plans align with the Council of Australian
Government (COAG) targets for Closing

the Gap in Indigenous Disadvantage. The
TSRA’s Integrated Services Delivery project
focuses on the seven Building Blocks that
underpin the achievement of the COAG
targets. AllTSRA funding (grant) approvals
are tested against the objectives of the Torres
Strait and Northern Peninsula Area Regional
Plan 2009 - 2029, and the Closing the Gap
targets.

The Major Infrastructure Program (MIP)
continues to deliver essential environmental
health infrastructure throughout the region.
Our communities are benefiting from MIP,
with access to improved roads, drainage,
sewerage systems, reticulated water supplies
and airstrips.

We are implementing economic development
strategies in the region to build capacity

in the commercial fisheries, tourism,
construction and arts sectors.

Employment opportunities in the region are
increasing through the delivery of Community
Development Employment Projects (CDEP),
and the skills base within each community
continues to grow.
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Promoting and advocating critical issues for

the Region

>

Our team met with key Australian
Government and Queensland Government
leaders, and negotiated successful joint
initiatives including climate change studies,
infrastructure developments, turtle and
dugong research, border security initiatives
under the Torres Strait Treaty, health
partnerships and economic development
initiatives.

We worked with the Department of Families,
Housing, Community Services and
Indigenous Affairs; the Department of Prime
Minister and Cabinet; the United Kingdom
Natural History Museum and Torres Strait
Communities to secure the repatriation of
Indigenous Human remains and sacred
objects to the Torres Strait. In 2010 -2011,

138 sets of ancestral remains were repatriated.

Submissions were provided in response to
Queensland State Government discussion
papers including the Home Ownership on
Indigenous Communal Lands Discussion
Paper and the Aboriginal and Torres Strait
Islander 99-Year Residential Leases -
Valuation Methodology Options.
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Almost all of our Board
Members live and work
in the communities that
they represent. Through
our Board Members, the
TSRA is able to maintain
close relationships with
communities.

>

A cultural policy framework and guiding
principles has been developed and will
be embedded into our administrative
procedures. The policy will be supported
through publication of a handbook, TSRA
Cultural Protocols Guide for TSRA Staff.

The TSRA has promoted the work of Torres
Strait artists across Australia; at the Darwin
Aboriginal Art Fair; the Cairns Indigenous Art
Fair; the Tandanya Cultural Centre in South
Australia; and the Museum of Contemporary
Artin Sydney. These initiatives are
supporting economic developmentin the
region.

Traditional Owners have been assisted to
obtain legal recognition of native title over the
land and sea in the Torres Strait. Support has
also been provided to help Prescribed Bodies
Corporate to manage existing native title.

Highlights and Achievements



Opportunities and Challenges Now and into the Future

Mabuiag Island
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Opportunities and Challenges

Now and into the Future

Opportunities and Challenges for 2011 - 2012

Opportunities

>

To Close the Gap in Indigenous Disadvantage
for the Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islanders
living in the region.

To implement the best possible governance
model for the region and ensure appropriate
and effective representation for all
communities on the TSRA Board.

To improve the delivery of integrated whole
of government services to all people in the
region.

To improve communication services
throughout the region by developing the
capacity of the Regional Indigenous Media
Organisation and the Remote Indigenous
Broadcasting Service.

Challenges

>

To secure the resources required to deliver
the program outcomes identified in the Torres
Strait Development Plan 2009 - 2013 and the
Torres Strait and Northern Peninsula Area
Regional Plan 2009 - 2029.

To manage the delivery of our programsina
remote, geographically isolated area.

To ensure that Integrated Service Delivery

is the foundation of core business for all
agencies and non-government organisations
operating in the region.

To proactively address international cross
border issues by working in partnership
with the Australian Government, the

State Governments and the international
community.

To build a sustainable economic
development base for future generations.

To deliver major health related infrastructure
through the Major Infrastructure Program (MIP).
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TSRA

www.tsra.gov.au

Australian Government

TORRES STRAIT REGIONAL AUTHORITY

The Hon. Jenny Macklin MP

Minister for Families, Housing, Community Services and Indigenous Affairs
Parliament House

Canberra ACT 2600

Dear Minister,

It is with pleasure that | presentyou with the seventeenth Annual Report of the Torres Strait
Regional Authority (TSRA) for 2010 - 2011.

This Annual Report has been preparedin accordance with Section 1447B of the Aboriginal
and Torres Strait Islander Act 2005 (Cth)and Section 9 of the Commonwealth Authorities and
Companies Act 1997 (Cth).

This Annual Report contains the Report of Operations, Financial Statements and Auditors-
General Report on those Financial Statements, in accordance with Section 9 of the
Commonwealth Authorities and Companies Act 1997 (Cth), and the Commonwealth Authorities
and Companies (Report of Operations) Orders 2005 and the Finance Minister’s Orders.

This Report of Operations is made in accordance with a resolution of the Directors atthe Board
meeting held on 18 August 2011.

During the reporting period the TSRA Board and Administration successfully worked together
towards realising the objectives of the Torres Strait and Northern Peninsula Area Regional Plan
2009 - 2029, and towards Closing the Gap in Indigenous Disadvantage for Torres Strait Islander
and Aboriginal people living in the Torres Strait and Northern Peninsula Area region. We look
forward to building on our sUCCESSES in the coming year.

Yours sincerely,

Al {%‘i

John T. Kris
Chairperson
Torres Strait Regional Authority

9 September 2011

PO Box 261, THURSDAY ISLAND QLD 4875 Phone: (07) 40690700 Facsimile: (07) 40691879 ‘Website: www.tsra.gov.au
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SECTION1 | STRATEGIC OVERVIEW

Chairperson’s Message

Over the past
seventeen years the
Torres Strait Regional
Authority (TSRA)
has been working
with communities
and stakeholders to
improve lives and
make a difference.
Together we have
realised significant achievements.

Only a decade ago, Torres Strait communities
were without the water and sanitation
facilities that we take for granted today. Our
communities experienced severe isolation and
social dislocation; health, housing, education,
communication, employment services and
utilities were minimal or completely absent from
the region. Huge improvements have been
made to this situation over the last decade, and
| am very proud to say the TSRA has played a
significantrole in these achievements.

In my report this year, | have focused on some of
the important work that the TSRA has progressed
over the last twelve months. In particular | want

TSRA Chairperson with presenters from Bolivia and
Columbia at the United Nations Permanent Forum on
Indigenous Issues.

to highlight the ways we engage with our local
communities. | take great pride in presenting the
TSRA’s Annual Report 2010 - 2011.

Improving community engagement and
understanding

Underthe TSRA’s amended program structure
eight of the twenty TSRA Board members have
taken on portfolio responsibilities. Each portfolio
is aligned to one of the TSRA’s program areas.
The Portfolio Members assist me in carrying out
my duties in relation to the program areas and
also assist with communication between the
TSRA and communities.

Tenth Session of the United Nations Permanent
Forum on Indigenous Issues May 2011

This year, the TSRA was again invited to attend the
United Nations Permanent Forum on Indigenous
Issues (UNPFII). As part of the Australian
delegation, we visited the United Nations

New York headquarters and delivered several
Interventions. The TSRA’s first Intervention
highlighted the impacts of climate change across
the region and discussed how climate change was
impacting on species of global significance. Our

UN Secretary-General Ban Ki-moon addresses the
United Nations Permanent Forum on Indigenous Issues.
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second Intervention related the Declaration on
the Rights of Indigenous People to our Integrated
Service Delivery initiatives. The TSRA also
contributed to an Intervention delivered by the
Department of Families, Housing, Community
Services and Indigenous Affairs; this contribution
focused on economic development opportunities
in the Torres Strait and Northern Peninsula Area.

We also delivered a side event presentation at
this year’s UNPFII. The event was co-presented
with Columbia and Bolivia to showcase the
strengths of each nation’s traditional arts,
culture and languages. Our presentation
emphasised the use of traditional knowledge in
environmental management and the relationship
between traditional cultural knowledge and

the development of fisheries as commercial
industries. The TSRA is honoured to have been
given access to this international platform to raise
awareness of critical regional issues.

Protected Zone Joint Authority and Fisheries

The Protected Zone Joint Authority (PZJA) is
responsible for the management of commercial
and traditional fishing in the Australian area of
the Torres Strait Protected Zone and designated
adjacent Torres Strait waters.

As the TSRA Chairperson, | am a member of the
PZJA, which is chaired by Senator the Hon Joe
Ludwig, the Australian Government Minister

for Agriculture, Fisheries and Forestry. The
Queensland Government Minister for Main
Roads, Fisheries and Marine Infrastructure, Craig
Wallace, is also a member of the PZJA.

Ministerial visits, Senate Inquiries and Visiting
Officials

In April 2011 the TSRA hosted a visit from the
Australian Government Minister for Indigenous
Health, the Hon Warren Snowdon MP. This visit

included meetings on Thursday and Badu Islands.

Members of the Torres Strait and Northern

The TSRA is honoured to
have been given access to
this international platform to
raise awareness of critical
regional issues.

(Rear) Minister for Indigenous Health, the Hon Warren
Snowdon MP, with the TSRA Chairperson, MrJohn T. Kris;
(Front) the Torres Shire Council Mayor Pedro Stephen and
the TSRA General Manager, Mr Wayne See Kee.

Peninsula Health Partnership participated in
around-table meeting with Minister Snowdon
during his visit.

The Health Partnership provides a forum for key
stakeholders to monitor and provide strategic
advice on the delivery of health care services
inthe region. Minister Snowdon has indicated
his support for the continuation of the Health
Partnership and recognises the importance of
stakeholders working together to ensure better
health outcomes for the people of the region.

In August 2010, the TSRA was privileged to host
a delegation of government and community
officials from the Bangladesh United Nations
Development Program. The delegation was
particularly interested in models of governance
and autonomy for Indigenous people in remote
areas.

Government Ministers including the then-
Minister for Local Government and Aboriginal
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and Torres Strait Islander Partnerships, the Hon
Desley Boyle, the Australian Government Minister
for Sustainability, Environment, Water, Population
and Communities, the Hon Tony Burke MP and
the then- Minister for Environment, Resource
Management and Climate Change, the Hon Kate
Jones MP.

No House of Representatives or Senate inquiries
were held in the region during the last year.

The TSRA welcomes Ms Jody Broun and Mr Les
Malezer as the new Co-Chairs of the National
Congress of Australia’s First People. We look
forward to working together to promote and
support the rights and recognition of Aboriginal
and Torres Strait Islander people.

Sustainable management of the region’s turtles
and dugongs is a priority environmental issue
forthe TSRA. These animals are of enormous
importance to Torres Strait Islanders, both as a
food source and as part of our cultural identity,
yet world-wide, sea turtles are under threat of
extinction.

This year, the Torres Strait’s approach

to Indigenous engagement in sea turtle
management was shared with an international
audience at the 31% Annual Symposium on Sea
Turtle Biology and Conservation, held in San
Diego, United States.

The TSRA’s Environmental Management Program
presented on the theme, “Engaging Indigenous
people inresearch - A Torres Strait example”’,
discussing the Dugong and Turtle Project which

is funded by the Australian Government’s Caring
for Country program. The project focuses on
supporting community-based monitoring and
sustainable management of these culturally
significant species.

The TSRA continues to proactively engage
Torres Strait communities in our decision-making
processes, delivering high quality services
across the region and advocating for regionally
significantissues. Through our endeavours, we
are delivering the tools and conditions to support
long term economic development, protect our
natural environment, design safe and healthy
communities and preserve and enhance our
unique culture and way of life. Staying on this
course will help to Close the Gap and improve the
lives of Indigenous Australians, and in particular
provide a better future for Indigenous children.

I would like to take this opportunity to thank the
TSRA Board Members, the General Manager
and the Administration for their dedication

and enthusiasm in delivering our programs
throughout the year. Ilook forward to further
progress and building on our achievements in
2011-2012.

[ (%{

John T. Kris
Chairperson
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TSRA Chairperson, MrJohn T Kris, delivering the TSRA Intervention at the United Nations Permanent Forum
on Indigenous Issues.
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SECTION1 | STRATEGIC OVERVIEW

General Manager’s Message

| am again pleased to
report that 2010 - 2011
was another
successful year

forthe TSRA. The
Administration worked
collaboratively with
the TSRA Board,

our communities

and many other

stakeholders to ensure that our programs
continued to make a difference for the Torres Strait
Islander and Aboriginal people living in our region.

The principles of empowerment, as captured in the
TSRA’s vision, were the guide that we used when
working closely with elected leaders to deliver
against key plans over the past twelve months.

Our achievements towards Closing the Gap in
Indigenous Disadvantage since my last report
include:

>

Continuing to align our program areas with

the needs and aspirations of our communities
asidentified in the Torres Strait Development
Plan 2009 - 2013. This approach is ensuring
that we maintain our communities and in
particular, the citizen, as the focus of what we
do. Activities that people would have noticed
that demonstrate this approach are the
consultations on the Torres Strait and Northern
Peninsula Area Regional Plan 2009 - 2029,
which were completed in 2010 - 2011, and
engagement on a number of other specific
matters, such as the TSRA Governance Review.

Working with regional partners to implement
an Integrated Service Delivery Framework

to ensure a whole of government approach
across the region. Extensive mapping of

all government initiatives was completed

as part of this process and this information
will now be used to improve coordination of
service delivery and address priority needs
in communities over the coming years.

Stage one of the CDEP reforms which took
effect from 1 July 2010. These changes aim
to create opportunities, build aspirations
and give Torres Strait Islander and Aboriginal
job seekers the training and other skills that
they will need to get and keep a job. One

key outcome from these changes was the
creation of over 200 properly paid jobs in
services that are funded by the Australian
Government.

The Native Title Regional Sea Claim judgment
handed down by Justice Finnin 2010 which
was an historic milestone in this long-standing
matter. Atthe time of writing the claim was
progressing through an appeal process.

High level strategic meetings with the
Australian Government and Queensland
Government and engagement with other
forums to ensure that the Torres Strait and
Northern Peninsula Area’s priorities and
challenges are being addressed.

Expansion of the Torres Strait Ranger
Program. There are now 21 Indigenous
rangers in full-time positions on the seven
outerisland communities of Mabuiag,
Badu, Boigu, lama, Erub, Mer and Moa. The
TSRA will also take on full administrative
responsibilities for the program on 1 July
2011. Afurther expansion of the program to
other communities will commence in the
2011-2012financial year. I would like to thank
the Torres Strait Island Regional Council
(TSIRC) for their partnership in previously
providing the administrative support for this
important initiative.

Strengthening TSRA and local government
partnerships through the renewal of the
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with
the Torres Shire Council and establishment
of a MOU with the Northern Peninsula

Area Regional Council (NPARC). These
memorandums outline how the TSRA and
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NPARC Mayor, Cr Joseph Elu (L) and TSRA Chairperson,
John T Kris (R) sign off on the MOU.

these two councils will work together to
address arange of priority areas over the life
of the agreements.

» Introduction of a new Performance
Development Program (PDP) for TSRA staff
that aims to enhance and grow a strong and
capable workforce. This has been a critical
initiative and has increased workforce
engagement as well as increased our focus
on building leadership and strategic vision as
anagency.

»  Successful introduction of sustainability and
efficiency initiatives that deliver benefits to
the TSRA as an organisation, as well as to our
community and environment. An example
of these are the impressive efficiencies we
are experiencing with the introduction of
electronic meetings and the development
of the TSRA’s Cultural Policy which is being
rolled out across all programs.

These are just some of the achievements that the
TSRA and its partners have been able to deliver
in 2010 - 2011. There are many other great stories
and activities that the TSRA has supported in
communities throughout the Torres Strait and
Northern Peninsula Area region over the past
twelve months and as the General Manager it has
been a privilege to be able to help individuals,
families, organisations and our communities
achieve their goals.

TSRA Executive Board Members with NPARC
representatives celebrate signing of the MOU.

Conclusion

2011-2012 will be another busy year. Some of the
important regional priorities in the year ahead are
local government and TSRA elections, continued
expansion of the ranger program, building
industries to create employment, completion of
the TSRA Governance Review and growing the
Integrated Service Delivery framework so that
the coordination of services can begin to happen
across the key goal areas identified in the Torres
Strait and Northern Peninsula Area Regional Plan
2009 -2029.

| would also like to thank the TSRA Chair and
Board Members for their leadership and strategic
direction in 2010 - 2011. Their guidance has been
valuable in ensuring that the TSRA continues to
address short-term needs while maintaining a
focus on delivering long-term outcomes that will
Close the Gap in Indigenous Disadvantage for the
Torres Strait and Northern Peninsula Area.

Ilook forward to working with the Board and with
our regional and national stakeholders againin
the coming year.

Wayne See Kee
General Manager
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SECTION 2 | PROGRAM REPORTING AND PERFORMANCE SUMMARIES

10

How We Deliver Our Programs

Overview of TSRA’s Program Structure

This section provides details of the TSRA’s
program areas:

» Culture, Art and Heritage

» Economic Development

» Environmental Management
» Governance and Leadership
» Healthy Communities

» Safe Communities

> Native Title

Each program report provides the following
information:

» Program objective from the Torres Strait
Development Plan 2009 - 2013

» Deliverables from the Portfolio Budget
Statement

» Expenditure
» Astatement of the regional goal

» Astatement of the outcomes from the Torres
Strait Development Plan 2009 - 2013

» A program map, showing the linkages

between program projects, outputs, benefits,

outcomes, regional goals and COAG Closing
the Gap Building Blocks

» Program projects and achievements

» Areport against the Portfolio Budget
Statements (PBS) and the Torres Strait
Development Plan 2009 - 2013 objectives,
where the objectives expand upon the PBS
outcomes

The Torres Strait Development Plan 2009 - 2013
was established by the TSRA under Section 412D
of the Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander

Act 2005 (Cth). The Plan outlines seven TSRA
programs, listing the desired outcomes and
benefits to be delivered.

The Torres Strait Development Plan 2009 - 2013
relates directly to the Torres Strait and Northern
Peninsula Area Regional Plan 2009 - 2029. The
Regional Plan was developed by the TSRA, the
Torres Shire Council, The Torres Strait Island
Regional Council and the Northern Peninsula
Area Regional Council in consultation with Torres
Strait communities. The Regional Plan captures
community challenges, priorities and aspirations.
A key element of the Regional Plan is its focus on
integrated development planning and Integrated
Service Delivery. This process coordinates the
delivery of arange of government services to
local communities while ensuring that duplication
and service gaps are minimised.
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Diagram for Integrated Planning Framework for

Torres Strait and Northern Peninsula Area Region
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MrJames Walter Ahmat winner of the Gab Titui Indigenous Art Award, 2011.

Photo: George Serras, National Museum of Australia.
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How We Performed

Appropriation Program Expenditure 2010 - 2011 Budget as Compared to Actual

A summary of the TSRA’s financial performance for each program area for 2010 - 2011 is provided below.
Section 5, Financial Statements provides further information about expenditure for each program area.

Program Budget Actual Variance

$°000 $°000 $°000
Culture, Arts and Heritage 2,928 2,872 (56)
Economic Development 31,122 31,076 (46)
Environmental Management 4,873 4,592 (281)
Governance and Leadership 4,288 4,273 (15)
Healthy Communities 21,837 21,816 (22)
Native Title 2,151 2,140 (11)
Safe Communities 3,359 3,322 (37)
Total 70,558 70,090 (468)

Table 2-1

Appropriation Program Expenditure 2010 - 2011 Budget as Compared to Actual

Notes:

1. In addition to appropriation expenditure, TSRA expended a modest level of third party funding
($5.6 million). The majority of the third party expenditure took place within the Environmental
Management program.

2. Please refer to Appendix 7 for the explanation of appropriation variances incurred over the
reporting period for each TSRA Program.

How We Performed

TORRES STRAIT REGIONAL AUTHORITY | ANNUAL REPORT 2010-2011 13



2]
e
o
<
=
=
-
[%2]
L
O
=z
<C
=
o
O
L
o
L
a
(@)
=z
<
O
=
—
o
o
a
L
o
=
<C
ad
O
o
o
a
N
4
=
-
o
w
(7]

14

Details About Our Programs

Culture, Art and Heritage

Objective

The Culture, Art and Heritage program
component objectives are:

» Strong, supported and respected Ailan
Kastom.

» Active and sustainable arts and craft industry.

Aim of Program

The Culture Art and Heritage program component
will:

> Protect culturally significant sites and
artefacts to ensure their longevity.

» Revitalise and maintain traditional cultural
practices (art, dance, language, story-telling)
throughout the Torres Strait and Aboriginal
communities in the region.

Deliverables

» Increased number of professionally active
Torres Strait Islander and Aboriginal artists
and active art centres in the region.

» Increased capacity and capability to facilitate
cultural initiatives and projects.

» Increased profile of Torres Strait Islander and
Aboriginal arts and culture.

» Increased community involvementin the
preservation of cultural heritage.

Culture, Art and Heritage Expenditure
2010-2011

Budget Actual Variance
$°000 $°000 $°000
2,928 2,872 (56)

Regional Goal

Protect, promote, revitalise and maintain Torres
Strait Islander and Aboriginal traditions and
cultural heritage.

TORRES STRAIT REGIONAL AUTHORITY | ANNUAL REPORT 2010-2011



Culture, Art and Heritage Program Map
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Project Name: Cultural Maintenance

Project Purpose

To support the cultural
development and
maintenance of Torres
Strait Islanders and

Aboriginal people residing

within the Torres Strait.

To embed the TSRA
Cultural Policy within
all TSRA administrative
and service delivery
processes.

Achievements for 2010 - 2011

The TSRA has completed community consultations for the development of a
Cultural Maintenance Plan. The Plan will be written in 2011 - 2012.

The Culture, Arts and Heritage Grants Program supported applications from
communities for the cultural maintenance of music, dance and language.
Over $390,000 was distributed through the grant program for cultural
activities in 2010 - 2011.

The TSRA Cultural Policy and the TSRA Cultural Protocols Guide for TSRA
Staff has been endorsed by the TSRA Board. The TSRA's administrative and
program processes are being amended to ensure they are fully aligned with
the policy.

Project Name: Arts Development

Project Purpose

Toimplement the Torres

Strait Islander Arts
Development Plan to
achieve:

A skilled and
professional Torres
Strait Islander Arts
Industry.

Aregular supply of
diverse Torres Strait
Islander Art to all

identified markets, with
a focus on high quality
work.

Anincrease in Torres
Strait Islander Art sold
across all markets.

Achievements for 2010 - 2011

The fourth Gab Titui Annual Indigenous Art Award was held in June 2011
showcasing 53 artists from 13 communities with media exposure throughout
regional, state and national newspapers.

Atripartite agreement between the TSRA, Arts Queensland and the
Australian Government Office for the Arts covering the period 2010 - 2012
has led to the establishment of three new Art Centres.

The TSRA has a partnership with Arts Queensland’s ‘Gritty Places’ program to
match funding for the support of renovations to a building for use as an arts
space in the Badu community.

Three artists from Badu and Moa completed a Certificate Ill in Visual Arts,
graduating in March 2011.

Torres Strait art and culture was represented at the Darwin Aboriginal Art Fair
and the Cairns Indigenous Art Fair. These events attract thousands of people.
The TSRA, through the Gab Titui Cultural Centre (GTCC), provided assistance
to the Erub Art Centre to participate in these events.

The TSRA also partnered with Ghost Net Australia to conduct a workshop
on recycling the ghost net waste product into contemporary art works.
Workshops were conducted at Saibai, Erub and St Pauls on Moa Island.

Following these workshops, the TSRA supported artists to participate in an
exhibition, ‘In the Balance’, at the Museum of Contemporary Art (MCA) in
Sydney. The artists were chosen by the MCA because of their outstanding
work with ghost net weaving. The weavers’ work was also exhibited at the
Tandanya Cultural Centre in South Australia.

TORRES STRAIT REGIONAL AUTHORITY | ANNUAL REPORT 2010-2011



Project Name: Arts Development (cont’d)

The TSRA partnered again with Arts Queensland’s Indigenous Regional Arts
Development Fund (IRADF) to support ten arts activities in the region. Over
$100,000 in IRADF grants were distributed.

The Gab Titui Cultural Centre returned $239,742 to Torres Strait artists and
craftspeople through the sale of art work during financial year 2010 - 2011.
Sales were made directly through the Gab Titui Cultural Centre and also
facilitated by the Centre at art fairs.

Project Name: Gateway / Hub for the presentation, preservation, promotion and education of
Torres Strait Islander and Aboriginal culture and arts

Project Purpose

To present, preserve, and
promote Torres Strait and
Aboriginal culture and
provide education about
the history of the region,
its people and its culture,
and a point of sale for art
and craft.

Achievements for 2010 - 2011

To celebrate the Gab Titui Cultural Centre’s seventh year of operation, the
TSRA hosted the Cultural Maintenance Exhibition,” Sibuwanay’ or "Tar Digri’
in Western and Eastern languages which means ‘Giving of the Gift’. This
exhibition featured works loaned to the Centre from Torres Strait Islander
communities. The exhibition attracted 200 people to its opening.

The Gab Titui Cultural Centre website provides an Internet portal to Torres
Strait Islander arts and culture and has had over 25,000 hits as at 30 June 2011.

Project Name: Cultural Heritage Management
(links to Native Title and Environmental Management programs)

Project Purpose

To develop strategies

to support community
owned Cultural Heritage
Mapping to record cultural
and sacred sites, artefacts,
stories and histories.

To establish Cultural
Heritage Bodies (CHBs).

Achievements for 2010 - 2011

A Cultural Policy has been developed to guide work in Cultural Heritage
Management.

The Traditional Ecological Knowledge (TEK) project has commenced with an
Indigenous project steering committee ensuring the project remains aligned
with regional initiatives and policies. The Boigu community is participating in
the pilot phase of the project with preliminary consultations completed.

The TSRA has worked with the Prescribed Bodies Corporate in the Badu
and Moa communities to enable them to be registered as Cultural Heritage
Bodies under the Torres Strait Islander Cultural Heritage Act 2003 (Qld).

TORRES STRAIT REGIONAL AUTHORITY | ANNUAL REPORT 2010-2011
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Indigenous Artists

Number of Indigenous artists and cultural practitioners supported

The TSRA Culture Art and Heritage Program achieved a steady increase in the number of artists
supported to attain a new high in 2010 - 2011. The Gab Titui Cultural Centre including the gallery, gift
shop and performance events, supported 120 artists. This represents a significant increase of almost
100 per cent, over the past three years, and an increase of 20 artists supported since 2009 - 2010.
Support varied according to the needs of the artists and included arts skills workshops and assistance
with entries into the annual Telstra Indigenous Art Award.

Professional artists

Increased number of professionally active Torres Strait Islander and Aboriginal artists and active art
centres in the region

Short Term Benefit Target Progress COAG Target
Benefit Description
Increased number of: 15 applications for 25 grant applications were Strong culture and
: ) funding supported supported; 15 applications respect of Ailan
la)IAcélve T(;rrtezs Strj't through the Culture | tothe Culture Artand Kastom underpins the
SEICIET eI, &l Artand Heritage Heritage Grant Program and achievement of all the
Program this year. 10 applications to the Arts Closing the Gaptargets.

Development Grants Program

b) Active art centres Three art centres under the Indigenous Regional
inthe region. were establishedas | ag Development Fund. In
atJune 2011. addition:

53 artists exhibited in the TSRA
Annual Art Award.

68 dancers and 10 cultural
practitioners were supported
through the TSRA Culture, Arts
and Heritage Program.

The target of three art centres
has been achieved with
operational funding now being
provided to Erub Ewer Meta
(on Erub Island), Ngalmun
Lagau Minaral (on Moa Island)
and Badhulgaw Kuthinaw
Mudh (on Badu Island). These
art centres have established
effective governance practices
and are producing art, craft and
artefacts for sale.

TORRES STRAIT REGIONAL AUTHORITY | ANNUAL REPORT 2010-2011



Cultural Maintenance
Increased capacity and capability to facilitate cultural initiatives and projects

The TSRA has committed to an architect designed renovation of the Gab Titui Cultural Centre to
increase the display areas within the Ephraim Bani Gallery (the keeping place) and the Wabunaw Geth
Gallery (main gallery) to support the increase in production of artwork and growth in the collection of
artefacts. The space will offerimproved accommodation for the existing collection of loan items as
well as future acquisitions. Once renovated the Gab Titui Cultural Centre will offer a climate controlled
environment in all display areas with increased attention given to the cultural experience for visitors and
the Torres Strait population.

The benefit achievements against the Torres Strait Development Planrelated to this KPl are:

Short Term Benefit Target Progress COAG Target
Benefit Description
Increased capacity and Increase display area; Planning is underway Strong culture and
capability to facilitate with construction to be respect of Ailan
cultural initiatives and completedin 2012. Kastom underpins the
projects. achievement of all the
Two external Benefit achieved, the Closing the Gap targets.
partnerships to be TSRA facilitated local
developed fordisplay by | artist participation in
1July 2010; the Darwin Aboriginal

Art Fairand the Cairns
Indigenous Art Fair.

Arts Development
Increased profile of Torres Strait Islander and Aboriginal arts and culture

Torres Strait culture and arts are continually being profiled through the program of events and
exhibitions held at the Gab Titui Cultural Centre, as well as through participation in various art fairs

and tours. The Cultural Centre website is also proving to be very popular, providing a useful source of
information about the TSRA’s Culture, Art and Heritage Program, as well as the artists, and art centres in
the region.

Short Term Benefit Benefit Target Progress COAG Target

Description

Increased profile of 14,000 visitorsto GTCC 14,577 visitors recorded Strong culture and

Torres Strait Islander in2010-2011. asat30 June 2011. respect of Ailan

and Aboriginal arts and Kastom underpins the
. < $240,000 generated $239,742 generated as . P

culture: achievement of all the

throughretail and at30 June 2011.

e Closing the Gaptargets.
activitiesin 2010 - 2011.

20,000 hitson Gab Titui | Over 25,000 hits

Cultural Centre website. recorded at 30 June
2011

TORRES STRAIT REGIONAL AUTHORITY | ANNUAL REPORT 2010-2011
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Cultural Heritage
Increased community involvement in the preservation of cultural heritage

This target is shared across the Culture Art and Heritage; Environmental Management; and Native Title
Programs and is part of TSRA’s commitment to respecting cultural sites, artefacts, stories and Torres
Strait cultural identity. The TSRA’s Cultural Policy applies to all TSRA Programs and is used to ensure
that all project activity is aligned with, or contributes to, Cultural Heritage Management. The Traditional
Ecological Knowledge project is an example of a project that will be guided by the principles of the
Cultural Policy. The TSRA Cultural Protocols will also assist the work of the Ranger Program within the
Environmental Management Program, guiding its dealings with communities and cultural sites.

Short Term Benefit Target Progress COAG Target
Benefit Description
Increased community One cultural heritage The TSRA Cultural Strong culture and
involvementin the activity undertaken Policy has been respect of Ailan
preservation of cultural 2010-2011. endorsed. Kastom underpins the
heritage. ) achievement of all the

All Torres Strait Islander :

T Closing the Gaptargets.

communities loaned

cultural artefacts to

the Cultural Centre for

display in the ‘Giving of

the Gift” exhibition.

Eachyearthe TSRA, through Gab Titui Cultural Michael Pickering, Assistant Director of

Centre, sponsors an Indigenous Art Award, which is Collections, Content and Exhibitions at the
arepresentation of artwork from across the Torres ~ National Museum of Australia.

Strait. There are several categories including, Best
Craft Work; Best Cultural Artefact (copy); Best Work
on Paper/ Canvas; Best Secondary Student Work;
Runner Up; People’s Choice and Overall Winner.
The prizes total $10,000.

Aim
The TSRA’s Gab Titui Indigenous Art Award
provides impetus to the numerous artists in the

region to produce a variety of high quality artwork
that is representative of regional culture. This year

Each year a guest curator from a major cultural is significant because of the strong contribution
institution, is invited to judge the works. Thisyear by the three art centres; Erub Ewer Meta, the first
the Indigenous Curator from the Gallery of South established art centre located on Erub, Ngalmun
Australia, Nici Cumpston, provided her expertise Lagau Minaral on Moa, and Badhulgaw Kuthinaw
in deciding the winners in each of the categories. Mudh on Badu Island.

Other notable guests were: Anita Herle, Senior Achievements

Curator for Anthropology at the University A professional exhibition showcasing Torres
of Cambridge; Dr Jude Philp, Senior Curator Strait culture through artwork to more than

at Macleay Museum, Sydney University, and 2,000 visitors over the life of the exhibition.
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»  The maintenance of strong partnerships with » Torres Strait art continues to be collected by

the different communities through their artists. major institutions around Australia.

» Increased national and international profiles » The production of a high quality publication
for artists and recognition of the value of that showcases Torres Strait culture from
Torres Strait arts and culture. various islands, highlights the importance

of artin the Torres Strait, promotes the talent
and workmanship of Torres Strait artists; and
provides a tangible record of the exhibition
and project.

» Strong external stakeholder relations with key
industry agencies including the University
of Cambridge, England, Sydney University’s
Macleay Museum and the National Museum
of Australia.

T
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Title: Naraw Dhangal. Medium: wood, pearl, and varnish. Artist: James Ahmat, overall winner of the Gab Titui Annual
Indigenous Art Award, 2011.

Story by James Ahmat: The artwork is about a journey that we have undertaken, portrayed by a dugong. This work

represents the changes in our culture and cultural practices through generations. The dugong was picked because of its
character. When it goes through its cycle it always returns to its origin. The artwork is about ownership.

Winner of the Gab Titui Indigenous Art Award 2011,
James Ahmat receives the award for his sculpture,
Naraw Dhangal’ from Nici Cumpton and Wayne See Kee.

Details About Our Programs | Culture, Art and Heritage
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The TSRA will take the lead as a ‘Whole of Region
Economic Development Solution Broker'. In this
role, the TSRA will work in partnership with other
government and non-government organisations
and individual communities to advance the
regional goal, which is to enhance our region’s
wealth, by creating sustainable industries

and increasing employment opportunities for
our people equivalent to the wider Australian
community, and to ensure the efficient use of
resources.

Stimulate economic development across the
region

Advance business skills and align training
initiatives with regional employment
opportunities

Advance Indigenous ownership and
management of industries and enterprises

Economic Development program component

Increased number of Torres Strait Islander
and Aboriginal individuals in non Community
Development Employment Projects (CDEP)
employment

Increase in the participation of Torres Strait
Islander and Aboriginal people inindustry
training

Increased number of approved TSRA loans
Increase in the annual total catch of finfish,
kaiar (tropical rock lobster) and other marine

resources by Torres Strait Islander and
Aboriginal people

Budget Actual Variance
$°000 $°000 $°000
31,122 31,076 (46)

Enhance our region’s wealth by creating
sustainable industries and increasing
employment opportunities for our people
equivalent to the wider Australian community.

Improved wealth of Indigenous people of the
region

Sustainable industries owned and operated
by Indigenous people (e.g. marine based,
tourism, arts and craft, construction)

Improved access to capital and other
opportunities to finance enterprises and
industries

TORRES STRAIT REGIONAL AUTHORITY | ANNUAL REPORT 2010-2011



Economic Development Program Map
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Project Name: Employment and Training Initiatives

Project Purpose

To implement CDEP
Program reforms
andto advance
business skills

and align training
initiatives with
regional employment
opportunities.

Achievements for 2010 - 2011

The reformed Community Development Employment Projects (CDEP) Program
commenced in the Torres Strait on 1 July 2010. The focus of the reformed CDEP
is to deliver work readiness services and community development projects to
provide opportunities for participants to obtain targeted skills and experience to
maximise the take up of available employment opportunities.

Over 160 CDEP participants who were in jobs funded through CDEP for Australian
Government service delivery were transitioned into permanent employment
positions. These jobs were in education, aged care, child care, arts and culture,
sport and recreation and environment.

Training was delivered to over 500 CDEP participants across a diverse range
of areas such as tourism, construction, aquaculture, culture, arts and heritage,
business administration, security operations and workplace readiness.

A Certificate Ill Micro-Business course was delivered to over 20 people, assisting
them to establish their own small businesses.

Project Name: Regional Industry Development and Coordination Initiatives

Project Purpose

To stimulate
economic
development across
theregion.

Achievements for 2010 - 2011

The TSRA supported 16 community economic initiatives through its grant funding
programs in 2010 - 2011. Details of the Community Economic Initiatives Scheme
(CEIS) Grants are provided in Appendix 4.

Completed the draft five year business plan for the Tropical Rock Lobster fishery.

The Fisheries Program provides assistance to individuals and organisations
to increase employment in the fishing industry and ensure the development of
efficient, viable and sustainable businesses that are owned and operated by
Indigenous people.

Project Name: Business Funding Support
Note: This project is the featured case study see page 28

Project Purpose

To advance
Indigenous
ownership and
management of
industries and
enterprises.

Achievements for 2010 - 2011

One business loan was completed under the Business Funding Scheme.

Two loans were completed under the Islander Entrepreneur Program (Partnership
with the National Australia Bank (NAB)).

Advisory, technical, and financial support was provided to nine incorporated
community organisations. This included grant funding approval for five of these
organisations.

The Economic Development team visited each community to provide information
and advice to community organisations and to conduct one-on-one consultations.
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Key Performance Indicators - Portfolio Budget Statement
Number of CDEP participants who have moved into non-CDEP employment.

From 1 July 2010 changes were made to the Torres Strait CDEP program to create opportunities, build
aspirations and give all Torres Strait Islander and Aboriginal jobseekers the training and other work
readiness skills needed to get and keep a job. CDEP is continuing to deliver services to strengthen
communities and community based organisations.

Short Term
Benefit Description

Increase inthe number
of Torres Strait Islander
and Aboriginal

individuals in non-CDEP

employment.

Benefit Target

50 people moved
from CDEP into non-
CDEP jobs perannum
from July 2009 to
June 2013.

Progress

From 1 July to 30 September
2010 there were two CDEP
providers in the region.

One provider placed nine
participants into work
placements. The other provider
did not collect data on the
number of job placements.

On10ctober2010 anew
provider was engaged to deliver
the CDEP programinthe Torres
Strait region. From 1 October
2010to 30 June 2011, 214
people moved from CDEP into
non-CDEP jobs.

Ofthese, 166 were participants
who were in jobs funded
through CDEP for Australian
Government service delivery.
These people were transitioned
into permanent employment
positions in the following fields:

education: 74

aged care: 19

child care: 4

arts and culture: 38

sportand recreation: 10

environment: 21

COAG Target

COAG Target 1-
Close the life
expectancy gap
within a generation.

COAG Target 6 -
Halve the gap

in employment
outcomes between
Indigenous and
non-Indigenous
Australians within a
decade.

The benefit achievements above are fully aligned to the Torres Strait Development Plan benefit targets.
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Business Funding Scheme and Housing Loans

The Business Funding Scheme and Housing Loans project did not meet its targetin 2010 - 2011. The
projectis being restructured to implement a new community engagement strategy which is based on
place-based Business Development and Sustainment Officers. This will be implemented in 2011 -2012
and aims to increase the number of business and home loans. The housing loans projectincludes

a significant financial investment in the Horn Island Affordable Housing Project, which will provide
approximately 30 house and land packages for purchase by Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islanders living

intheregion.

Short Term
Benefit Description

Increase in the number
of approved TSRA
loans.

Benefit Target Progress

Five new business
loans and three new

One business loan.

One home loan.

home loans granted
per annum from July
2009 to June 2013.

Two Islander Entrepreneur
Programloans. (NAB has

partnered with TSRA to offer
a microenterprise loan to

Indigenous Australians wanting

to start up or expand a small
business in the Torres Strait.

Marine Resource Utilisation

COAG Target

COAG Target1-
Close thelife
expectancy gap within
ageneration.

COAG Target 6 -

Halve the gapin
employment outcomes
between Indigenous
and non-Indigenous
Australians within a
decade.

Progress against this target cannot be quantified at present. The requirement to report catch is not
mandatory for Indigenous fishers in the region so data to measure tangible outcomes does not exist.
Discussions are continuing within the Protected Zone Joint Authority (PZJA) to identify and implement
amore robust system of data collection, however, this is likely to be a medium to long term outcome and
remains a challenge for the TSRA and the PZJA.

Short Term
Benefit Description

Increase in the annual
total catch of marine
resources (finfish

and Tropical Rock
Lobster) by Torres
Strait Islanderand
Aboriginal people.

Benefit Target

Kaiar (Tropical Rock Lobster): A five
percentincrease in catch against the
nominal ‘total allowable catch’ for
the Traditional Inhabitant Boat (TIB)
sector peryear until 2013.

(The percentage increases are for the
catch amounts for TIB fishers)

Spanish Mackerel: 3.5 tons per
annum.

Coral Trout: 20 tons per annum.
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Progress

Project Plans
toimplement
capacity
building
initiativesin
the finfish
and Tropical
Rock Lobster
fisheries
have been
completed.

COAG Target

COAG Target1-
Close thelife
expectancy gap within
a generation.

COAG Target 6 -

Halve the gapin
employment outcomes
between Indigenous
and non-Indigenous
Australians within a
decade.
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Fisheries play a vital role in Torres Strait Economic Development.

Industry Training Initiatives

Significant progress has been made this year with training Indigenous people in the region. This has
been progressed by the reforms to the CDEP Program and the location of a full time training organisation
inthe region. The targets specified in the Torres Strait Development Plan are being exceeded.

Short Term Benefit Target Progress COAG Target
Benefit Description

Increase participation 50 people trained per Tourism: 45 COAG Target1-
of Torres Strait Islander annumto 2013 inthe Close the life

and Aboriginal peoplein
industry training.

four core industries of

tourism, construction,

marine and arts.

Construction: 206
Marine (aquaculture): 37

Culture, Artsand
Heritage: 132

Cert Il Workplace
Practices: 5

Cert | Business
Administration: 10

Cert| Workplace
Readiness: 175

Cert Il Industrial and
Home Maintenance: 15

Cert | Security
Operations: 16

Cert Il Micro Business
Operations: 21

expectancy gap withina
generation.

COAG Target 6 -

Halve the gapin
employment outcomes
between Indigenous
and non-Indigenous
Australians within a
decade.
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Project Description

Business Funding Support to advance
Indigenous ownership and management of
industries and enterprises.

As aresult of the financial assistance provided
to the Badu Island Foundation (BIF) through
the TSRA’s grant funding program, the BIF has
been able to build its organisational capacity

to support Indigenous community members to
achieve greater financial security and well-being.
The Chairperson of the BIF, Mr Manuel Nomoa
said the main aim of the organisation, which has
charitable objectives as part of its constitution,
is to grow into an efficient company entity with
a permanent organisational structure operating
profitable businesses on Badu Island.

This increase in organisational capacity has
enabled the BIF to take advantage of the

Torres Strait Island Regional Council’s (TSIRC)
divestment of assets program. The BIF, whichisa
Badu Island community owned corporation, was
successful in obtaining ownership and control
over a number of divested assets from TSIRC,
such as the Badu Hotel, the service station, the
quarry, the Tama Mudh Motel, the nursery and the
Rural Transaction Centre. The Chief Executive
Officer of the BIF, Mr Peter Gadsby, said the
TSRA grant enabled the organisation to move to
a sound financial and administrative footing in
preparation for the divestment of TSIRC assets.

Since the ownership of the Badu Hotel passed to
the BIF, a number of benefits have beenrealised,
including an increase in employment and work
skills. Community members have undertaken

courses including: Responsible Service of
Alcohol and Responsible Management of a
Licensed Venue. Some staff at the Badu Hotel
have also been trained to undertake the role of
Duty Manager. Mr Gadsby said the Badu Hotel
enjoyed a very profitable trading period during
the year with the major rugby league carnival,
Island of Origin, held at Badu.

The increase in administrative skills also enabled
the BIF to provide support to Mura Badulgal
which is the Prescribed Body Corporate which
manages native title for the Badu community.
Thisincrease in economic and administrative
capacity is providing benefits for the whole Badu
community.

Achievements

In 2010 - 2011, the TSRA’s Economic
Development Program continued to assist the BIF
through the provision of grant funding to:

Upgrade the Badu fuel storage and
distribution facilities.

Produce a Safety and Development plan for
the Badu quarry.

Support an Indigenous police cultural
exchange.

BIF’s increased administrative and economic
capacity has been demonstrated by:

Significantincrease in Indigenous
employment in a small community.

The provision of accounting and
administration services to the Prescribed
Body Corporate.

Its ability to act as an auspicing body for other
grant applicants.
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and to:

Our natural and cultural environment is an asset Strengthen cultural heritage
thatis protected, preserved and enjoyed through

] Share information and promote research
sustainable management.

This program component will contribute to
sustainable environmental management by:

Budget Actual Variance
Promoting the sustainable management of $°000 $°000 $°000
natural resources 4.873 4592 (281)

Managing the effects of climate change,
specifically tidal inundation and erosion

Increasing the utilisation of renewable
energies

Our Natural and cultural environment is an asset
that is protected, preserved and enjoyed through
Achieve sustainable management of sustainable management.

natural resources

Reducing the environmental impacts of waste

Improved animal management and pest
management

control for the protection of the natural
Contribute to the reduction of the carbon environment
footprint of Torres Strait and Northern

; ) Reduced waste management issues and
Peninsula Area residents

environmental impact
Improvnjg land management for future Increased utilisation of renewable energies
generations
. ) Managed effects of climate change,
Contribute to ensuring adequate water L Sy ) .
) o7 specifically tidal inundation and erosion
supplies for the region into the future

Sustainable management of natural

resources
The program deliverables are to achieve the Improved land management for future
outcomes from the: generations

Fisheries Project

Land Project

Garden and Horticulture Project
Biodiversity Project

Invasive Species Project

Land and Sea Rangers Project

Climate Change / Coastal Erosion Project
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Environmental Management Program Map
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Project Name: Fisheries

Project Purpose Achievements for 2010 - 2011
To increase employment Establishment of a new Fisheries Program to increase the involvement of
in the fishing industry Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander people in the region’s fisheries.

and create sustainable
businesses whilst ensuring
ecological sustainable Conducted community consultation on Finfish Lease Revenue with Eastern
management. Island fishers.

Participation at the 2010 Fisheries Bilateral meeting in Cairns, Australia.

Indigenous fisher representatives participated in nine Protected Zone Joint
Authority (PZJA) forums.

Establishment of a new expertise based Indigenous Fisheries Advisory
Committee.

Project Name: Terrestrial Biodiversity Conservation

Project Purpose Achievements for 2010 - 2011

This project developed Field surveys have been completed on Mabuiag, Badu, lama, Boigu, Moa,
abaseline for terrestrial Erub and Mer islands leading to the development of terrestrial biodiversity
biodiversity inventories, management profiles.

assessments of ecological
condition, identification

of threatening processes
and the developmentand Funds were secured under the Q2 Coasts and Country program to support
implementation of key the implementation of conservation management actions in 2011 - 2012.
management actions.

Key conservation actions have been incorporated in the Working on Country
plans for Land and Sea Rangers.

The project will provide
information to assist

with land management
decisions and on-ground
activities.

Project Name: Invasive Species Management

Project Purpose Achievements for 2010 - 2011

This project supports A resource booklet has been prepared to assist Rangers with the

the monitoring and identification and control of weeds. The Rangers have undertaken weed
management of invasive management and eradication works in various Torres Strait communities.

species inthe Torres Strait. . ) .
The TSRA has worked with the University of Queensland on rodent

monitoring on Mer and Poruma Islands.

Invasive fish species (Climbing Perch) eradication methods are being
investigated on Boigu and Saibai islands.
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The TSRA participated
in Treaty and bi-lateral
meetings with Papua
New Guinea Traditional
Inhabitants, on the
Dugong Taskforce and
presented a paper at the
31st Annual Sea Turtle
Symposium held in

San Diego, USA.

Project Name: Sustainable Horticulture

Project Purpose

The project will provide
Torres Strait communities
with access to a wider
range of fresh fruit,
vegetables and herbs at
affordable prices.

The project establishes a
framework for facilitating
healthier lifestyles for
peopleinthe Torres Strait.

Achievements for 2010 - 2011

> Aregional landcare facilitator has been appointed and a sustainable
horticulture advisory group established.

»  The Horticulture in Schools program is engaging all schools in Torres Strait
by embedding horticulture in the school curriculum and supporting food
gardens within most schools.

> Small scale horticulture projects are being developed at pilot sites at Horn,
Hammond, Masig and St Pauls.

Project Name: Dugong and Turtle Management

Project Purpose

To implement community
management plans for the
sustainable management
of dugongs and turtles.

Achievements for 2010 - 2011

»  Fifteen community-based dugong and turtle management plans have been
endorsed.

»  Five Dugong and Turtle Officers have been appointed. They are located on
Saibai, Dauan, Poruma, Warraber and Masig Islands.

> The TSRA participated in Treaty and bi-lateral meetings with Papua New
Guinea Traditional Inhabitants, on the Dugong Taskforce and presented a
paper at the 31st Annual Sea Turtle Symposium held in San Diego, USA.
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Project Name: Seagrass Monitoring
A case study on the seagrass monitoring project has been included at page 38

Project Purpose

This project supports
community-based
seagrass monitoring

to assess the health,
condition and extent of
seagrass beds throughout
the Torres Strait.

Achievements for 2010 - 2011

Community based monitoring of seagrass is occurring in eight Torres Strait
communities; they are: Thursday, Horn, Hammond, Mabuiag, Mer, Badu,
lama, Moa Islands. Training has been provided on seagrass monitoring
techniques.

The TSRA worked with the Department of Employment Economic
Development and Innovation (Fisheries Queensland) to produce The
Torres Strait Dugong Sanctuary Seagrass Baseline Survey. The paper was
published in March 2010.

Areport on Critical Habitats in High Risk Areas - Moa Island to Mabuiag
Island Atlas’, was produced.

Project Name: Land and Sea Ranger Program

Project Purpose

To employ Indigenous
Land and Sea Rangers to
look after theirland, sea
and culture by carrying
out on-ground works
that address priorities
identified by local
communities.

Achievements for 2010 - 2011

An independent review of the Ranger Program was conducted in 2010. This
resulted in an agreement between the TSRA and the Torres Strait Island
Regional Council (TSIRC) to realign the operations of the Ranger program to
meet program outcomes. The transition was completed in 2011.

21 full-time Rangers are employed on seven outer island communities
(Mabuiag, Badu, lama, Erub, Boigu, Mer and Moa).

In 2010 Rangers undertook professional development as part of the formal
qualification Certificate Il in Conservation and Land Management.

Project Name: Indigenous Protected Areas

Project Purpose

To deliver the Indigenous
Protected Areas (IPA)
program in the Torres
Strait.

Achievements for 2010 - 2011

The TSRA is supporting Traditional Owners and Rangers to manage the
existing IPAs of Warul Kawa and Pulu Islet.

The TSRA coordinated a road show across eight Torres Strait communities to
promote the IPA program and gauge community interest in an additional IPA
for Torres Strait. An expression of interest was received from the Traditional
Owners of the Warraberalgal native title area which will be followed up in
2011-2012.

34 TORRES STRAIT REGIONAL AUTHORITY | ANNUAL REPORT 2010-2011



Project Name: Traditional Ecological Knowledge (TEK)

Project Purpose

The project will establish
a traditional ecological
knowledge recording
system for Torres

Strait, to enable land

and sea planning and
management activities

to be informed by Ailan
Kastom using appropriate
intellectual property and
communication protocols.

Achievements for 2010 - 2011

The TSRA is supporting the development of a traditional ecological
knowledge system for the Torres Strait through the Caring for Our County
Program.

The Boigu community lodged a successful expression of interest to
participate in the pilot phase of the TEK project. Consultative visits to Boigu
and Thursday Island have been undertaken to discuss potential TEK system
elements and protocols.

Project Name: Cultural Heritage

Project Purpose

This project identifies ways
to strengthen awareness
and protection of cultural
heritage sites in the region.

Achievements for 2010 - 2011

Cultural heritage training was provided to the Mabuygiw Rangers at
Mabuiag Island. The training included identification of new sites of cultural
significance and ground-truthing existing site records.

Cultural heritage site protection works were completed at the Pulu
Indigenous Protected Area.

Project Name: Climate Change and Coastal Management

Project Purpose

To manage coastal
hazards and climate
changeissuesinthe
Torres Strait.

Achievements for 2010 - 2011

The TSRA, in partnership with communities, all levels of government and the
research sector, is supporting the implementation of the Torres Strait Climate
Change Strategy.

The TSRA is supporting the mapping of risks associated with high tides,
storms, sea level rise and other factors contributing to ocean inundation
hazards throughout the Torres Strait.

A TSRA commissioned report, ‘Current and Future Climate Projections for the
Torres Strait’has been completed by the CSIRO.

A Sustainable Energy Scoping Study has been completed. The study
identifies and assesses potential opportunities for Torres Strait communities
to reduce dependence on fossil fuels for energy generation.
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Thomas Pearson, Dugong and Turtle Officer for Poruma,
undertaking marine debris surveys and beach clean-up
activities.

The TSRA is supporting the
mapping of risks associated
with high tides, storms,

sea level rise and other
factors contributing to
ocean inundation hazards
throughout the Torres Strait.

Key Performance Indicators - Portfolio Budget Statement

»  Number of communities participating in natural resource management activities.

»  Number of ranger groups in place to assist communities to carry out land, sea and cultural resource

management activities.

The TSRA has supported 15 Torres Strait communities to participate in natural resource management

activities. The TSRA has provided information, technical support and access to resources and

equipment to enable these communities to carry out local projects. Communities and Traditional

Owners are engaged in all stages of project design and delivery to ensure that local and cultural

priorities are addressed. Ranger groups have been established on seven outer island communities and

are carrying out cultural and natural resource management activities in accordance with community

environmental priorities. Funds have been secured under the Working on Country program to establish

Ranger groups in the remaining Torres Strait communities in 2011 - 2012.

and sustainable
economic development
opportunities.

in all fifteenisland
communities by
2012 -2013.

employed in seven outer
island communities.

Dugong and Turtle
Officers are employed
on fiveislands.

Short Term Benefit Target Progress COAG Target
Benefit Description
Increased employment Rangers employed 21 full-time Rangers are COAG Target 6 -

Halve the gapin
employment outcomes
between Indigenous
and non-Indigenous
Australians within a
decade.

Improved community
skills and capacity to
cultivate food and other
crops.

Eight communities
supported to establish
sustainable horticulture

activities by 2010 - 2011.

Four communities

are involved in pilot
activities relating to
sustainable horticulture.

COAG Target1-
Closing the life
expectancy gap within a
generation.

The benefit achievements above are fully aligned to the Torres Strait Development Plan benefit targets.
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Ranger groups have been
established on seven outer
island communities and

are carrying out cultural

and natural resource
management activities in
accordance with community
environmental priorities.

Mua Laualgau Rangers Guyai Uiduldam, Erimiah Manas and
John Wigness study a small spotted tree monitor (Varanus
timorensis) during the Terrestrial Biodiversity Project
knowledge sharing field operation held at Moa Island.

Additional Key Performance Indicators - Torres Strait Development Plan

» Baseline regional environmental data available.

Baseline terrestrial and marine biodiversity datasets have been acquired to guide sustainable planning,
priority setting, investment, project design, implementation and evaluation. Research projects and
field surveys have contributed to the development of the regional baseline datasets. The TSRA has
facilitated the development of partnerships between scientists and communities to identify and assess
trends and impacts of environmental change on key species and ecosystems in the region.

The benefit achievements against the Torres Strait Development Planrelating to this KPI are:

Short Term Benefit Target = Progress COAG Target
Benefit Description

Monitoring in place; Trend analysis Environmental baseline data is now available | COAG Target1-
baseline data contributing to to support sustainable land use planning for Closing the life
established and environmental allinhabited outer islands. expectancy
trend assessmentin management gap withina

Terrestrial biodiversity profiles have been

progress. initiatives . generation.
realised prepared for seven islands.
progressively A complete layer of vegetation datasets and

fromJuly 2010. | Regional Ecosystem maps are available.

Monitoring the impacts of climate change is

continuing.

»  Number of land use plans developed.

The TSRA has coordinated the development of sustainable land use plans for 15 communities in
the Torres Strait. This was a collaborative process involving participation by communities and
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comprehensive assessments of key environmental values, threats and development constraints. These
non-statutory plans collate critical baseline data to support informed decision-making about future
sustainable development on the islands, and assist with the assessment of development applications
under the Sustainable Planning Act 2009 (QId).

The benefit achievements against the Torres Strait Development Planrelating to this KPI are:

Short Term Benefit Target Progress COAG Target
Benefit Description
Allcommunities have | All15island communities have This benefit has COAG Target1-

land use plansin Sustainable Land Use Plansin been achieved.

place. place by 2010 -2011.

Closing the life expectancy
gap within a generation.

Number of communities engaged in and becoming aware of climate change impacts

The TSRA is working with all Torres Strait communities, government agencies and researchers to
support whole-of-government policy coordination, research, planning and adaptive management for
the threats posed by coastal erosion and inundation. These partners are also collaborating to assess
the likely impact of climate change and sea level rise for the region.

The benefit achievements against the Torres Strait Development Planrelating to this KPI are:

Short Term
Benefit Description

Benefit Target

Sensible and
appropriate

Regional climate change
modelling and adaptive
adaptation planning planning strategies are in place
including forsealevel | forcommunities by 2010 -

rise. 2011

A Climate Change Strategy
Action Planis to be developed
by 2011 and implemented
progressively from 2011.

Project description

The seagrass monitoring project supports
community based monitoring of seagrass
meadows in the Torres Strait. Thisis a
partnership between the TSRA, Tagai College
and the Department of Employment, Economic

Progress COAG Target
The Torres Strait Climate COAG Target1-
Change Strategy has been Closing the life
developed andis being expectancy
implemented. gap withina
generation.

Monitoring, modelling,
assessment and mapping of
ocean hazards and potential
sea levelrise scenarios has
commenced.

Development and Innovation (DEEDI). The
project provides training and technical support
to enable Torres Strait Islanders to develop skills
and knowledge to assess the condition and the
extent of seagrass meadows, a critical habitat for
the world’s largest population of dugong.
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Aim

The aims of the seagrass monitoring project are
to establish a longitudinal study of the status and
trends of seagrass meadows in the Torres Strait and
to build the capacity of Indigenous communities to
monitor and manage natural resources.

Achievements

» The TSRAis supporting eight Torres Strait
communities to monitor the health of
intertidal seagrass meadows. Monitoring
sites have been established on the inner
island group of Waiben (Thursday Island),
Ngurupai (Horn Island) and Keriri (Hammond
Island); and on the outer islands of Mabuiag,
Mer, Badu, lama and Moa.

» Data fromthese sites is collected by the
TSRA’s Land and Sea Rangers, analysed and
archived by Seagrass-Watch Headquarters,
Fisheries Queensland and DEEDI.

» Basic seagrass ecology and monitoring
techniques have been integrated into
the curriculum of schools in the Torres
Strait. Extra-curriculum courses ‘Seagrass
Watch - levels 1to 3’are recognised by the
Queensland Studies Authority as contributing
study for the Queensland Certificate of
Education. The Land and Sea Rangers,
Dugong and Turtle Officers and other TSRA

Environmental Management Program staff
have participated in Seagrass Watch Level 1
courses.

» In2010, the TSRA’s Land and Sea Rangers
and staff from the TSRA’s Environmental
Management program, with assistance
from DEEDI, conducted a comprehensive
assessment of seagrass distribution and
extent, within the Dugong Sanctuary in
the western region of the Torres Strait. The
TSRA commissioned reports on the status of
seagrass meadows in the Dugong Sanctuary
were completed in 2011.

» This assessment established that the 875,000
hectare Dugong Sanctuary contains Australia’s
largest recorded continuous seagrass
meadow. This s a significant food resource
for dugongs and turtles. DEEDI is working
with the TSRA to identify seagrass monitoring
sites within the Dugong Sanctuary, suitable
for longer-term monitoring by Rangers.

Working in partnership with the Queensland
Government and Torres Strait Communities,

the TSRA, through its Land and Sea Rangers, is
helping to protect the sensitive ecology of the
region and preserve the region’s unique fauna for
future generations.

Murabadhulgaw Rangers assessing the seagrass
meadow at Upai, Badu.

Mer Ranger, Ses Salee, showing students on Mer how to
monitor seagrass.
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To help maintain and improve the leadership and An Integrated Service Delivery Project
governance skills of current and future leaders of
the Torres Strait to support development planning
and coordination of integrated government

service delivery in the Torres Strait region.

A Governance and Leadership Capacity
Building Project

A Regional Communication Project

The Governance and Leadership program
component will:

Budget Actual Variance

Involve Indigenous leaders in legislative $000 $000 $°000

processes, policies and priorities in terms of
setting direction for integrated planning and 4,288 4,273 (15)
service delivery;

Optimise and enhance TSRA Board
member decision-making and
communication capabilities;

Effective, transparent self-government with
strong leadership

Involve Indigenous leaders in integrated
service delivery.

Involve Indigenous leaders in monitoring
progress towards reaching regional goals
and outcomes;

Indigenous leaders involved and monitoring
effective integrated service delivery

Effective delivery of services contributing to
Encourage more women to seek regional goals

leadership roles; ) ) .
Strong, effective committed leadership and

Ensure that mainstream services are
contributing to and meeting regional
goals and outcomes.

decision-making that incorporates Aboriginal
and Ailan Kastom, and features women and
youth involvement

Develop the capacity of current and future Effective communications and consultation

leaders across the region and support
effective communication between the
community and organisations involved in the
region;

Improve communication and information
networks across communities;

Grow future leaders for the community;

Strengthen leadership within
communities.

on community matters between leaders,
government organisations and community
members
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Governance and Leadership Program Map
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Project Name: Integrated Service Delivery (ISD) Project

Project Purpose

To contribute to the design and
implementation of an Integrated
Service Delivery Framework for
the Torres Strait and Northern
Peninsula Area.

Project Name: Data Management
Project Purpose

Effective collection, analysis
and reporting processes builtin
to normal business reporting to
support performance indicators.

Achievements for 2010 - 2011

The mapping of all services delivered into the region across three
levels of government has been completed.

The service mapping has been compared to the needs of the
communities, articulated in the Torres Strait and Northern Peninsula
Area Regional Plan 2009 - 2029 and gaps / duplications of services
have been identified.

Regional Plan status booklets have been drafted for each of 18
communities in the Torres Strait and collectively for communities
in the Northern Peninsula Area. The booklets communicate
achievements against the Regional Plan objectives for the period
2009 -2011.

A Whole of Government Integrated Service Delivery (ISD)
Agreement has been drafted for consideration by agencies in
2011-2012.

An ISD Governance Framework is being drafted and cleared for
regional stakeholders in 2011.

Achievements for 2010 - 2011

The outcomes from this project have been amalgamated into the
ISD Project. The Data Management project has been closed.

Project Name: Capacity Building for Prescribed Body Corporate (PBC)

Project Purpose

To build the capacity of Prescribed
Bodies Corporates (PBCs) in order
that they require less assistance
from TSRA, with a view to becoming
more accountable for their own
affairs.

Achievements for 2010 - 2011

All PBCs have been rated as compliant by the Office of Registrar of
Indigenous Corporations (ORIC).

A review into the ongoing support requirements of PBCs in the
region was completed and the recommendations from that review
have been implemented. A key outcome from the review was the
establishment of PBC capacity building grants.
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Project Name: Capacity Building for Regional Governance and Leadership

Project Purpose

To deliver Leadership, Governance
and Capacity building initiatives
for Indigenous persons and / or
organisations within the Torres
Strait region.

Achievements for 2010 - 2011

The TSRA is sponsoring two participants in the Australian Rural
Leadership Program (ARLP) Course 18. The participants are
expected to graduate in 2012.

The TSRA has sponsored three participants in the ARLP Training
Rural Australians in Leadership (TRAIL) Program.

The TSRA has sponsored three participants in the ARLP School
Leavers Leadership Program.

The TSRA is sponsoring 15 participants to undertake Certificate IV in
Business (Governance) Training.

The TSRA sponsored one participant to attend the Asia Pacific
Indigenous Youth Network (Climate Youth Camp). This activity is
the featured Governance and Leadership case study see page 47.

The TSRA is sponsoring five undergraduates to undertake university
studies through the Assistance with Tertiary Education Scheme
(ATES).

The TSRA has sponsored six Indigenous State Emergency Service
(SES) cadets to attend a South East Queensland SES Training
Camp.

Project Name: Regional Communication

Project Purpose

To review the TSRA’s contribution
to communication services in

the region to ensure effective
communications and consultations
on community matters between
leaders, government organisations
and community members takes
place.

Achievements for 2010 - 2011

The TSRA has sponsored the operations of the Torres Strait
Islanders Media Association (TSIMA) for the provision of
Indigenous Broadcasting services to the region.

The TSRA has sponsored the training for four Regional Indigenous
Broadcasting Service (RIBS) operators.

A review into the ongoing support requirements for Indigenous
Broadcasting in the region has been completed.
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Integrated Service Delivery

Number of integrated service delivery meetings conducted.

Seven Regional Plan Working Groups (RPWGs), based on the COAG Building Blocks for Closing the Gap
in Indigenous Disadvantage have been established to complete the mapping of all government services
delivered in the region. The RPWGs met formally four times this year and completed the service
mapping activities ‘out of session’. Two meetings between the Chairs of the RPWGs and the signatories

to the Torres Strait and Northern Peninsula Area Regional Plan (2009 - 2029) were held.

The benefit achievements against the Torres Strait Development Planrelating to this KPI are:

Short Term
Benefit Description

Improved
understanding of
service delivery in the
Torres Straitinforming
policy direction for
integrated service
delivery.

Benefit Target

Baseline community survey
completed by July 2010.

Service map completed by
July 2010.

Analysis of results of service
mapping and survey
completed by December
2010 and delivered to
Integrated / Regional
Service Delivery Steering
Committee.

Integrated / Regional
Service Delivery meetings
held quarterly from 2010 -
2011.

Integrated / Regional
Service Delivery Agreement
signed by elected

leaders and State and
Commonwealth Ministers by
July 2010.

Progress

Completed.

Completed.

Analysis completed,

and presented to the
RPWGs. The governance
arrangements for ISD are
being formulated, the RPWGs
are performing the Steering
Group role as an interim
measure.

Completed.

Integrated Service Delivery
Governance Framework has
been drafted. The target
date forthe ISD agreement

is being reviewed with
Australian Government,
Queensland Government and
Local Governmentinput.
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Capacity Building

Number of registered and compliant Prescribed Bodies Corporate.

Number of senior government and ministerial level meetings attended by TSRA Board members.

There has been animprovement in the levels of compliance of PBCs in the region this year with all

20 meeting the minimum levels of compliance required by the Office of the Registrar of Indigenous
Corporations (ORIC). All PBCs have submitted General Reports and ten PBCs held Annual General
Meetings (AGM) within the reporting period. A further two PBCs obtained an exemption from ORIC to
extend their AGM compliance period to biennial. The TSRA PBC Support Officer continues to work with

allPBCs in the region towards attainment of unqualified compliance.

The benefit achievements against the Torres Strait Development Planrelating to this KPI are:

Short Term
Benefit Description

PBCs have the
capacity to manage
theirresponsibilities
effectively.

Greaterinfluence by
elected Indigenous
leaders in policy
direction and
performance
monitoring of
government service
delivery in the Torres
Strait.

Benefit Target Progress

20 registered Prescribed Achieved.
Bodies Corporate

adhering to / complying

with legislation by 30 June

2011.

TSRA Chairand Executive | Achieved
Members participate in
16 senior government and
ministerial level meetings
perannum.

Consultation to

provide feedback on

the development and
progress against the
Torres Strait Regional
Plan was conducted in all
communities.

(17 Meetings).

COAG Target

COAG Target 1-
Closing the life
expectancy gap withina
generation.

COAG Target 6 -

Halve the gapin
employment outcomes
between Indigenous
and non-Indigenous
Australians within a
decade.

COAG Target 1-
Closing the life
expectancy gap withina
generation.

COAG Target 6 -

Halve the gapin
employment outcomes
between Indigenous
and non-Indigenous
Australians within a
decade.
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Regional Communications

Regional Communications Project Undertaken

Areview into the ongoing support requirements for regional communications was completed in 2009
and the recommendations from that review are being implemented. The review found that there was

a disproportionate level of support provided to Thursday Island (Waiben), through the Torres Strait
Islanders Media Association. The key recommendation from the review is an increased investment
inthe Regional Indigenous Broadcasting Service (RIBS) through a Regional Indigenous Media
Organisation. The TSRA has amended the funding outcomes from regional communications grants to

address this imbalance.

The benefit achievements against the Torres Strait Development Planrelating to this KPI are:

Long Term
Benefit Description

Improved relations
and communication
between communities,
leaders and
government.

Benefit Target

Achieve an
improvement

in community
satisfaction with
the coordination
of government
services.

Progress

Areview of the governance
structures forthe TSRA Board is
underway with the community
engagement phase completed in
2010 -2011 and recommendations
on away ahead being presented to
the Board in August 2011.

Areview of the ongoing support
requirements for Indigenous
broadcasting (Regional
Communications Project) has been
completed.

Areview of all TSRA
communications products for
consistent branding and user
friendliness has been completed.

COAG Target

Effective
communication
underpins all six
COAG Targets for
Closing the Gap
in Indigenous
Disadvantage.

The benefit achievements above are fully aligned to the Torres Strait Development Plan benefit targets.
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Case Study
Indigenous Youth Recognise Impacts of Climate
Change

In November 2010, 60 Indigenous youth leaders
from 12 countries in the Asia Pacific region
gathered in Baguio City in the Philippines for a
meeting of the Asia Pacific Indigenous Youth
Network. The Network encompasses over 20
Indigenous youth organizations across the
Asia-Pacific region and contributes to building
capacity and self-confidence for Indigenous
youth. The Network seeks to mobilise Indigenous
youth in developmental efforts by facilitating
the exchange of ideas and experiences, which
they can contribute and share with their own
Indigenous communities.

Through an Indigenous capacity building grant,
the TSRA provided financial assistance for Mr
Torres Web, a member of the Erub community,
to travel to the Philippines to present a paper on
the effects of climate change in the region. The
Network’s Climate Youth Camp is a forum that
assists participants to understand the nature

of climate change and formulate action plans

to address the impacts of this change. The key
outcome from the camp was the development of
strategies for engagement in the United Nations
Climate Change Conference under the United
Nations Framework Convention on Climate
Change.

Mr Web with the conference banner, raising awareness
of Climate Change in the Torres Strait.

Torres is an active youth leader in the Torres Strait
region. He has participated in a variety of national
and international youth leadership programs

and forums. Torres was invited to the camp
through his membership on various Indigenous
youth networks including the Queensland Youth
Parliament.

Climate change is a high priority issue for the
Torres Strait region and the TSRA was pleased to
support the opportunity for Torres to represent
theregion. Leaders across the Torres Strait region
are actively lobbying for much needed assistance
to address climate change and it is encouraging
to see Torres, as a local Indigenous youth leader,
helping to raise awareness about this important
issue.

]

An Indigenous capacity building grant from the TSRA
enabled Mr Web to participate at the conference.
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To provide high-quality and culturally appropriate
professional services to native title holders and
claimants in the Torres Strait region, to facilitate
the securing of legal recognition of native title to
land and waters in the Torres Strait and thereby
improve opportunities forimproved economic,
cultural and social participation for Torres Strait
Islander and Aboriginal people living in the
region.

This program component will:

Assist Traditional Owners to obtain legal
recognition of native title over land and sea in
the Torres Strait Region

Protect and manage native title rights

Ensure that mainstream services are
contributing to and meeting regional
goals and outcomes

Improve communication and information
networks across communities

Build the capacity of Registered Native
Title Prescribed Bodies Corporate (PBCs)

Involve Indigenous leaders in Integrated
Service Delivery

Strengthen leadership within
communities

Grow future leaders for the community

Encourage more women to seek
leadership roles

Optimise and enhance the TSRA
Board Member decision-making and
communication capabilities

Provide legal, policy and advocacy support
for PBCs

Support native title activities, including
determination of claims and provision of legal
advice and support

Negotiate and execute Indigenous Land
Use Agreements (ILUA) and other statutory
agreements

Provide legal advice and supportin relation to
Future Acts

Number of native title determinations,
negotiated and registered ILUA’s, and number
of future act notifications facilitated in the
Torres Strait.

Budget Actual Variance
$°000 $°000 $°000
2,151 2,140 (11)

Effective and transparent self-government with
strong leadership.
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Native Title Program Map
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Project Name: Indigenous Land Use Agreement (ILUAs) and Future Acts

Project Purpose Achievements for 2010 - 2011
Native Title The Native Title Office (NTO) executed three ILUAS.
Compliance and
P Four ILUAs were finalised and signed by the relevant Traditional Owners and are
Infrastructure

[ now awaiting execution by other parties.

ILUA matters progressed in this reporting year include:
Drafting of a Major Infrastructure ILUA template.

Ten 30 year leases were negotiated for the Islander Board of Industry Services
(IBIS) stores.

14 template ILUA's were developed for community Capital Investment
(Housing) projects.

Project Name: Native Title Claims Note: The Regional Sea Claim is the featured case study
see page 56

Project Purpose Achievements for 2010 - 2011

Native Title One claimant native title Determination application was determined in 2010 - 2011:

Determination. ) ) N ) . ) .
The Regional Sea Claim Determination was registered with the National Native

Title Tribunal on 23 August 2010.
There are three current on-going native title Determination claimant applications:

Naghir Island Claim Mediation.
Zuizin Island Claim.
Warral and Ului.

Project Name: Legal, Policy and advocacy support for Registered Native Title Prescribed
Bodies Corporate

Project Purpose Achievements for 2010 - 2011

Infrastructure Two sets of law reform submissions to were made in response to requests for
delivery, law reform submissions:

and interpretation of ) )
Native Title Act. The Department of Environment and Resource Management regarding the

Torres Strait Islander Land and Other Act Amendment Bill 2010.
The Cape York Land Council to the Attorney-General’s Department on the
Native Title Amendment Bill (No 1).

Deed of Grantin Trust (DOGIT)T transfer matters were progressed with the
development of a draft Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between relevant
PBCs and community enterprise development organisation.

The NTO funded 13 representatives from the region’s PBCs to attend the 2011
National Native Title Conference.
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Number of native title determinations, negotiated and registered ILUAs, and number of future act

notifications facilitated in the Torres Strait

The Regional Sea Claim was finalised resulting in one native title determination. The Sea Claim
judgement was appealed by the Australian Government and the Queensland Government. The NTO

provided funding and legal representation for the Sea Claim appeal.

In2010 - 2011 the NTO provided assistance with the finalisation and execution of seven ILUAs. The NTO
received 225 future act notifications which were forwarded to the relevant PBCs. The NTO provided the

PBCs with advice regarding future act notifications and native title matters.

Facilitation And Assistance

Claimant Applications

Filed this year

Number current

Number registered with National Native Title Tribunal (NNTT)
Non claimant applications

Agreements

Indigenous land use agreements finalised
Indigenous land use agreements finalised but not yet executed
Leases

Determination Deeds finalised but not yet executed
Other Agreements

Total Agreements

Compensation claims

Future Act Notices received

Responses to Future Acts

Objections to Future Acts

Determinations of native title

Determination of native title Appealed

ILUASs executed

ILUAs registered

Disputes relating to native title applications

Number
4Note1

0

3

3 Note1

0

14

225
210
124
1
1
3

2 Note2

2
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Facilitation And Assistance (cont’d)

Disputes relating to ILUAs, rights of access and other matters
Number of ILUAs effected

Number of reviews pending

Number of reviews completed

Number of PBCs established

Number of PBCs assisted

Number of claims certified

Number of ILUAS certified

Table 2-2
Native Title Office Statistics

Number

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

20

Nil

Nil

Notel The Kaurareg people have lodged two separate sea claims that overlap areas claimed in the
Torres Strait Regional Sea Claim. These overlapping claims fall within the TSRA’'s NTRB area.
However, the Kaurareg have not requested legal advice from the TSRA. The Kaurareg have
instead elected to use different legal representation funded by the TSRA.

Note2 Theregistration of the ILUA takes place 30 days after execution.

Number of pieces of legislation and policies that are beneficial and appropriate to the Torres Strait

Reduced length of negotiation processes

Compliance with legislative requirements for Future Acts

The TSRA’s Native Title Office (NTO) provides advocacy and support to PBCs and in-house advice,
negotiation and advocacy for the Traditional Owners of land throughout the Torres Strait region. This
includes the preparation of submissions to government agencies on changes in native title law.

This year, the NTO provided funding for 13 Traditional Owners to attend the Native Title Conference.
Topics included native title law developments and practical implications, organisational structure and

day-to-day operations.
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Short Term Benefit Target Progress COAG Target
Benefit Description

Increased legislation One ormore The NTO provided submissions COAG Target 6 -
and policies policies on proposed amendments to the Halve the gap
beneficial and developed by end Torres Strait Islander Land and other in employment
appropriate to the 0f2010-2011. Legislation Amendment Act (Qld) outcomes between
region. 2011. Indigenous and

The NTO undertook a joint project
with the Cape York Land Council to
make submissions on the Native Title
Amendment Bill (No 1) 2010 (Cth).

The NTO progressed DOGIT transfer
matters by developing a template
draft Memorandum of Understanding
(MOU) betweenrelevant PBCs and
community enterprise development
organisations.

A framework agreement was
developed to recognise rights to
compensation, cultural heritage and
other native title rights under the
Native Title Act 1993 (Cth).

The NTO is successfully meeting
legislative requirements for
processing future act notices.

The NTO developed a framework
agreement requiring proponents to
consider native title implications of
proposed projects at an early stage in
the process.

non-Indigenous
Australian’s within a
decade.

COAG Target1-
Closing the life
expectancy gap
within a generation.

Proponents more
aware and educated.

Legislative
requirements met
for Future Acts
(including timing
and process)
from 1 July 2010
onwards.

Alllegislative requirements were met.

COAG Target 6 -
Halve the gap

in employment
outcomes between
Indigenous and
non-Indigenous
Australian’s withina
decade.
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Support native title activities, including determination of claims and provision of legal advice and

support

»  Number of native title Determinations in the Torres Strait

The Native Title Office advocates and assists Traditional Owners and PBCs with land and sea claims.
A native title determination was made on 23 August 2010, following the judgement by Justice Finn

on 2 July 2010, for the Torres Strait Regional Sea Claim. The determination has been appealed by

the Australian Government and the Queensland Government. The NTO funded and provided legal
representation for the claimant’s appeal with arguments heard between 16 and 18 May 2011. The full
bench of the Federal Court has reserved judgement.

The NTO has progressed the Naghir
land claim with the agreement being
submitted in July 2011.

The Warral and Ului matter has been
adjourned pending the resolution of
the Regional Sea Claim Appeal.

Short Term Benefit Target Progress COAG Target
Benefit Description
Increased legal Oneregional Sea The Regional Sea Claim judgement COAG Target 1-
recognition and Claim resolved. and determination has been made and Closing thelife
enforcement of native subject to appeal. expectancy
title rights. gap withina
Three remaining The NTO has progressed the generation.
land claims Kulkalgal number two (Zuizin) claim
progressed by and is waiting for aresponse from the
June 2011. Queensland Government.

Aunty Cia and llana Foster assisting with the Naghir
mediation matter in Cairns, March 2011.
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The NTO has progressed
the Naghir land claim
with the agreement being
submitted in July 2011.




Indigenous Land Use Agreements (ILUAs) and Future Acts

»  Number of Indigenous Land Use Agreements

The NTO assists Prescribed Bodies Corporate and Traditional Owners with support, legal advice, and

advocacy for ILUAs and Future Act notifications. The NTO has been involved in negotiations with all levels
of government and stakeholders to formulate standard freehold land valuations for the Torres Strait region.

Itis the NTO’s objective to adopt a template ILUA, with the agreement of all parties, in the near future.

works, compensation
responsibility and
control).

Major Infrastructure ILUA.

The NTO assisted native title
holders to negotiate compensation
foranumber of ILUAS.

Short Term Benefit Target = Progress COAG Target
Benefit Description
Empowered Reductionin Seven ILUAs were negotiated, COAG Target1-
native title holders outstanding finalised and / or executed. Closing thelife
through community Indigenous L expectancy gap withina
negotiated Land Use 255 Future Act notifications were generation.
processed.

agreements Agreement

. . ) ) COAG Target 6 -
(providing training matters as at Community consultations have .

) Halve the gapin

and other community  July 2010, by been completed to progress the emblovment outcomes
benefits, validation of | June 2011. pioy

between Indigenous
and non-Indigenous
Australian’s withina

decade.

The benefit achievements above are fully aligned to the Torres Strait Development Plan benefit targets.
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Case Study
Torres Strait Regional Sea Claim

Project Description

Between 1996 and 2010 Torres Strait Islanders
lodged 36 separate, and at times overlapping

sea claims seeking native title determinations.
In2000 and 2001 the TSRA’s Native Title Office
(NTO) engaged with communities to consolidate
all of the sea claims into a single claim. The Torres
Strait Sea Claim was lodged with the Federal
Court of Australia in November 2001.

The sea claim area covers 42,000 square
kilometres. Four claimants from Miriam Mer,
Kulkalgal, Gudha Maluilgal and Maluilgal brought
the case on behalf of all Torres Strait Islanders
from 14 different island communities.

One of the Claimants - Mr George Mye with reporter outside
after Regional Sea Claim judgement on 2 July 2011.

In2005, the NTO began preparing the claim. The
matter was stood over for mediation and the NTO
held further community consultations. The NTO
liaised with governments and stakeholders and
advocated for native title rights on behalf of the
claimants.

The court heard over 50 days of evidence and legal
arguments and a judgement was handed down on
2 July 2010 with the native title determination being
registered on 23 August 2010.

Aim
To secure native title rights that recognise that

the Traditional Owners of the Torres Strait are one
society.

Achievements

» Torres Strait Islanders have recognition of
native title over the bulk of the Torres Strait
Region based on one traditional society. The
determination states that the claimants have
rights to access, to remain in and to use the
native title areas and have the right to access
resources. Resources can be taken forany
purpose in the native title areas except for the
taking of minerals and petroleum resources.

» The outcome means that the native title rights
and interests are subject to and exercisable
in accordance with the traditional law and
customs of the native title holders. The native
title rights and interests are also subject
to the laws of the State of Queensland, the
Commonwealth of Australiaand common law.

Status

The Australian Government and the Queensland
Government have lodged an appeal against
Justice Finn’s judgement. In particular, Justice
Finn stated that Traditional Owner’s rights of
being able to take resources, and use them

for any purpose, was not extinguished by the
operation of historical fisheries legislation. The
appeal has been stood over for judgement.
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The information reported in this section is
specific to TSRA’s Native Title Representative
Body (NTRB) function under the Native Title Act
1993 (Cth).

NTRBs are primarily responsible for providing
native title and related assistance to constituents
in their prescribed regions effectively and
equitably. Constituents are those persons who
hold or may hold native title in the region where
the NTRB performs its functions. On that basis,
one of the guiding principles for the operations
of NTRBs is their responsibility to act in the best
interests of their constituents.

The TSRA through its Native Title Office (NTO)
performs the NTRB functions for the Torres Strait
region. In 1996 The TSRA was initially appointed
as arecognised NTRB under the Native Title Act
(Cth)1993. The 1998 amendments to the Act
required NTRBs to re-apply for recognition and
following an independent examination, the TSRA
was reinstated as the NTRB for the Torres Strait.
In 2007, the Australian Government announced
reforms to the native title system including the
need tore-recognise allNTRBs. The TSRA

was invited to re-apply for recognition and was
subsequently advised that it would be recognised
as the Torres Strait NTRB for the period 2007 to
2013.

The NTO Operational Plan for2010 - 2011 is
aligned to the TSRA Torres Strait Development
Plan 2009 - 2013.

When a favourable determination of native title is
made by the Federal Court, the Traditional Owners
are required to establish a Registered Native Title
Prescribed Body Corporate (PBC). PBCs must be
incorporated under the Corporations (Aboriginal
and Torres Strait Islanders) Act 2006 (Cth). The
PBC model was adopted to enable native title

communal property rights to interact meaningfully
with Australian property law. The model ensures
that the group is represented by a legal entity
vested with authority to make binding decisions
on its behalf, thus ensuring legal certainty for any
parties wishing to negotiate, conduct business
or make agreements with the native title holding
group. The TSRA recognises that PBCs have
specific functions and obligations under both the
Native Title Act 1993 (Cth) and the Corporations
(Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islanders) Act 2006
(Cth).

In recognition of these obligations, the TSRA has
made investments to support capacity building
for PBCs. In 2010 - 2011 the TSRA conducted
areview into its future support to PBCs. Akey
outcome from this review is that PBCs may now
apply to the TSRA for grant funding to assist with
their administrative costs.

Legislative Functions of the TSRA in its NTRB
Capacity

As an NTRB, the TSRA through the NTO performs
specific functions under the Native Title Act 1993
(Cth). These include:

Facilitating research, preparation and making
of claims by groups of Aboriginal peoples

or Torres Strait Islanders, for determinations
of native title and for compensation for acts
affecting their native title;

Assisting in the resolution of disputes within
groups about the making of such claims;

Assisting groups by representing them,
ifrequested to do so, in negotiations

and proceedings relating to the doing of

acts affecting native title, the provision of
compensation in relation to such acts and any
other matter relevant to the operation of the
Act; and

Facilitating support and assistance to PBCs.
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The legislative functions of NTRBs are set out in
Section 203B of the Native Title Act 1993 (Cth)
which states:

(1) Arepresentative body has the following
functions:

(a) The facilitation and assistance functions
referred to in Section 203BB;

(b) The certification functions referred to in
Section 203BE;

(c) Thedispute resolution functions referred
toin Section 203BF;

(d) The notification functions referred to in
Section 203BG;

(e) The agreement making function referred
toin Section 203BH;

(f) Theinternal review functions referred to
in Section 203BI; and

The functions referred to in Section 203BJ
and such other functions as are conferred
on representative bodies by this Act.

=

(g

Arepresentative body may only perform its
facilitation and assistance functions if requested
to do so.

Tom Keely with Sophie Luffman after the Regional Sea
Claim judgementon 2 July 2011.

In 2010 - 2011 the TSRA
conducted a review into

its future support to PBCs.

A key outcome from this
review is that PBCs may now
apply to the TSRA for grant
funding to assist with their
administrative costs.

Organisational Structure and Corporate
Governance Policies

As a program within the TSRA, NTO staff are
included within the TSRA’s organisational
structure, see Appendix 1. Similarly, NTO staff
are bound by the same corporate governance
policies that apply to the TSRA generally.

Management of Human Resources

The NTO staff structure consists of six employees
all of whom live in the region: a Principal Legal
Officer, a Senior Legal Officer, a Legal Officer, a
Paralegal and Administration Support Officers.
Since 2005, the NTO has also assisted ten law
students to undertake legal internships through
the Aurora Project. One student has also
undertaken Practical Legal Training.

Workforce planning, occupational health and
safety performances, indemnities and insurance
premiums for NTO staff are included within the
TSRA’s procedures and policies.

AlINTO staff are subject to the TSRA Enterprise
Agreement (currently 2009 - 2011). There are no
NTO staff on Australian Workplace Agreements.

NTO staff members participated in training and
development alongside all TSRA staff as well as the
training and development requirements that legal
practitioners in Queensland are required to meet
under the relevant legislation.

Native Title Office Representation of Equal
Employment Opportunity Groups and
classification levels as at 30 June 2011 is shown
on page 59.
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APS Classification Female
Executive Level2 0
Executive Level 1l 0
APS Level 6 1
APS Level 5 0
APS Level 2 2
Total 3

Table 2-3
Equal Employment Opportunity Groups, Native Title

Male Torres Strait People Witha

Islander or Disability
Aboriginal

1 0 0

1 0 0

0 1 1

1 1 1

0 2 0

3 4 2

The NTO also uses external legal counsel and external consultants to meet its strategic objectives. The
NTO engaged the following consultants during the reporting period:

Legal

Robert Blowes SC
- Torres Strait Regional Sea Claim Appeal
- Senior Counsel for the Torres Strait Regional
Sea Claim
- Establishment of a Regional Sea Claim PBC
- Naghir Native Title Claim

Tom Keely
- Junior Counsel for the Torres Strait Regional
Sea Claim and Junior Counsel for the Torres
Strait Regional Sea Claim Appeal

David Yarrow
- Counsel assisting with Sea Claim
extinguishment submissions
- Establishment of a Regional Sea Claim PBC
Tina Jowett
- Counsel assisting with the negotiation of
ILUAS
Michael Neal
- Independent legal representation for Naghir
matter
Jim Brooks
- Independent legal representation for Naghir
matter

Oliver Gilkerson
- Advice and assistance with the Deed of
Grantin Trust (DOGIT) transfer
- Development of an Infrastructure ILUA
Helen Bowskill
- Advice and assistance with the Deed of
Grantin Trust (DOGIT) transfer
Annabelle Nillson
- Assistance with the Badu Police Station and
Pre-Pre ILUAs
Chalk and Fitzgerald
- Kaurareg Aboriginal Sea Claim
Greg Mcintyre
- Independent Legal Representative for
Naghir matter
Paul Sheiner
- Independent Legal Representative for
Naghir matter

Anthropological

Dr Garrick Hitchcock
- Sea Claim anthropological advice and Zuizin
anthropological research
DrKingsley Palmer
- Naghir anthropological advice
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See Native Title Program Report pages 48 to 56

and the statistical data on this page.

The TSRAis arecognised NTRB and has
legislative functions pursuant to Section 203B
of the Native Title Act 1993 (Cth). Native Title

For the 2010 - 2011 financial year, the NTO
received $2.151 million for operations.

The financial performance of the TSRA in its
NTRB capacity is outlined in the table below.

Program reporting, as contained within the TSRA
Annual Report 2010 - 2011, is also a report for the

purposes of the Native Title Act 1993 (Cth).

NTRB Functions

Expenditure
Capital
Activities
Corporate

Total

Income

Revenue from
Government

Activity Generated
Income

Interest

Reversal of previous
Asset write downs

Other

Total

(Surplus) / Deficit

Table 2-4

NTRB Financial Performance

Actual
2009-2010
$’000

909
642

1,651

2,114

2,114

(563)

Budget Actual
2010-2011 2010-2011
$°000 $°000
1,785 1,806
366 334
2,151 2,140
2,151 2,151
2,151 2,151

o (11)
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Variation
(Budget - Actual)
$°000

21
(32)

11

(11)



External Scrutiny

The NTO has been audited in accordance with
the audit reports set out in Section 5, Financial
Statements.

Environmental Protection in ILUAs

ILUASs provide environmental and cultural
heritage protection. While the clauses in each
ILUA may differ, the ILUAs impart responsibility on
external stakeholders to take all reasonable steps
to reduce and minimise the impact the proposed
activity may have on the local environment. If
there is an environmental incident, the external
stakeholder will usually attempt to rehabilitate
and minimise the damage in accordance with
their contractual requirements. Under the Torres
Strait Islander Cultural Heritage Act 2003 (Qld)
each ILUA details a cultural heritage process and
stipulates the procedures that must be followed if
a cultural artefact or human remains are found.

TORRES STRAIT REGIONAL AUTHORITY | ANNUAL REPORT 2010-2011

Judicial Decisions

In 2010 - 2011, the Federal Court of Australia
handed down the Torres Strait Regional Sea
Claim judgement. Pursuantto the judgement,
the determination was made on 23 August 2010
and was registered with the National Native
Title Tribunal. This sea claim decision was
appealed by the Australian Government and the
Queensland Government. The Full Bench of the
Federal Court heard the appeal in May 2011 and
reserved theirjudgment.

On1April 2011, Justice Greenwood of the Federal
Court of Australia has referred the Naghir land
claim to mediation. The parties attended the
mediation sessions in June 2011 and orders will
be made pursuant to the heads of agreement
reached when the matter is next before the Court.

Compliance Index

The NTRB compliance statements are included in
the TSRA statements in Section 7.
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The TSRA’s Healthy Communities Program
contributes towards regional goals, enhancing
healthy communities and our living environment,
achieving the provision of adequate, appropriate
and affordable housing. Specifically, the TSRA
seeks toinfluence policy for all health programs
across all tiers of government, monitor health
services and initiatives across the Torres Strait
region, and provide strategic policy advice.

The Program also provides direct support for
initiatives targeted at promoting healthy lifestyles,
support for home ownership and other specific
housing initiatives that are linked to economic
developmentin the region.

Monitor and provide strategic policy advice
regarding health service delivery in the region
to ensure health service levels are equal to
the national standard.

Seek to influence policy for all health
programs across all tiers of government.

Monitor health services and initiatives
across the Torres Strait and Northern
Peninsula Area and provide strategic
policy advice. This will be undertaken
under the broad platform of Integrated
Service Delivery and the Torres Strait
Health Partnership, with reports being
delivered at appropriate forums under the
service level agreement intended for the
Torres Strait and Northern Peninsula Area.

Improve the health of Indigenous people
living in the region through proactive healthy
living initiatives.
Direct support targeting healthy lifestyles
including such areas as improving the
availability of fresh produce and healthy
food options and encouraging people to
undertake healthy activities.

Increase Indigenous home ownership.

Provide direct support forhome
ownership and specific housing
initiatives, which are linked to economic
development. This support could be for
enterprises that assist people to develop
trade skills or community initiatives to
deliver environmental management
services relating to water or renewable
energies. The TSRA will also assist
Traditional Owners to negotiate land
releases for housing developments
where appropriate.

Healthy homes initiatives:

Funding contributions towards community
market garden and horticulture initiatives
in conjunction with the Environmental
Management Program.

Engaging with food suppliers and retailers to
explore improved healthy food options.

Healthy lifestyles initiatives:

Monitoring and provision of strategic policy
direction for health, including advice to
Integrated Service Delivery health-related
working groups.

Funding contributions towards health
education initiatives in areas such as physical
education, nutrition, obesity, diabetes
programs, motivation, substance abuse and
sport and recreation.

Funding contributions towards sport and
recreation minor infrastructure.

Improved housing and home ownership
initiatives:
Funding contributions towards essential

services and infrastructure to support healthy
living environments.
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The TSRA worked
in partnership with
Queensland Health to
» Land tenure resolution through Indigenous support health education
Land Use Agreements and other formal initiatives and programs

agreements in conjunction with the Native

Title and Environmental Management th roug hout the reg ion.
Programs.
Healthy Communities Expenditure 2010 - 2011 Torres Strait Development Plan Outcomes

» Improved access to affordable fresh and
Budget Actual Variance healthy foods
$°000 $°000 $°000

» Health care systems are effective to meet
and support primary health care needs of
community members

21,837 21,815 (22)

Regional Goal

. . > More active and healthy communities
Enhance both healthy communities and our living

environment » Affordable home ownership available across

theregion
To achieve the provision of adequate, appropriate 9

and affordable housing »  Sufficient land to build houses

Seisia Wharfon the Northern Peninsula.

Details About Our Programs | Healthy Communities g%\) Franjipani
Fau
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Healthy Communities Program Map
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Project Name: Health / Healthy Homes initiatives / Community Market Gardens

Project Purpose Achievements for 2010 - 2011

To provide funding contributions towards The TSRA's fresh produce in communities project was
the establishment of community and market expanded this year, leveraging on the success of four
gardens and support training initiatives in pilot programs that were implemented in 2009 - 2010. Six
horticulture for community members. communities are now actively involved in establishing

and maintaining horticultural gardens. In partnership

with the Torres Shire Council, The Torres Strait Island
Regional Council, the Tagai College and Queensland
Health, the TSRA has involved 15 Torres Strait Communities
in horticultural activities including the introduction of
horticulture into the school curriculum.

Project Name: Health / Healthy Homes initiatives / Improved Access to Healthy Foods

Project Purpose Achievements for 2010 - 2011

To engage with relevant retailers / and food The Islander Board of Industry and Service (IBIS)
suppliers to explore options forimproved participated in meetings initiated by the TSRA to discuss
access to affordable healthy food. improved access to affordable, healthy foods.

Project Name: Health / Healthy Homes Initiatives / Monitoring and strategic policy direction for health

Project Purpose Achievements for 2010 - 2011

To monitor the delivery of health initiatives A coordinator was appointed under the Memorandum
inthe Torres Strait and provide strategic of Understanding (MOU) between the TSRA and the

policy advice to the Torres Strait Health Australian Government Department of Health and Ageing to
Partnership and the Regional Plan Working provide Secretariat support to the Torres Strait and Northern
Group for Health to ensure that advances Peninsula Area (TS and NPA) Health Partnership Forum.

are being made in primary and preventative

The TSRA has re-established the TS and NPA Health
Partnership Forum to monitor health services and provide
strategic advice on the delivery of health services across
the region.

health care.

Program staff participated in the Regional Plan Working
Group for Health to map health services across the region.
This was facilitated by the TSRA’s Integrated Service
Delivery Project.
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Project Name: Health / Healthy Lifestyles Initiatives

Project Purpose Achievements for 2010 - 2011
To provide funding contributions towards The TSRA worked in partnership with Queensland Health
health education initiatives including: to support health education initiatives and programs

throughout the region.
Physical education g 9

Nutrition The TSRA provided grant funding to community
Obesity organisations that support health education initiatives.
Diabetes

Substance abuse

Project Name: Health / Healthy Lifestyles Initiatives / Sport and Recreation Programs

Project Purpose Achievements for 2010 - 2011

To provide funding contributions towards Following a TSRA funded review of TSYRSA, the

the operation of the Torres Strait Youth organisation is implementing recommendations that will link
and Recreational Sporting Association its outcomes to health benefits, the COAG targets and the
(TSYRSA) and other funded organisations goals outlined in the Torres Strait and Northern Peninsula

to contribute to the Healthy Communities Area Regional Plan 2009 - 2029.

Program objectives.
g JEi Through its grant funding programs, the TSRA supported

six major annual sports carnivals and 47 minor sporting
events including rugby league, touch rugby, basketball and
volleyball.

Working with the TSYRSA, the TSRA has supported the
delivery of coaching clinics and the purchase of sporting
equipment for Torres Strait communities.

Project Name: Major Infrastructure Program (MIP)
Note: This project is the featured case study see page 69

Project Purpose Achievements for 2010 - 2011
To improve the health and general MIP Stage 4:
wellbeing of Indigenous people living in Hammond Island: Reticulated Sewerage and Treatment
the region, through the delivery of essential (design only)
environmental health infrastructure Saibai Island Access Road to Solid Waste Management
including clean water supplies, reticulated Facility
sewerage systems, and serviced Horn Island Airport Upgrade
subdivisions. This projectis achieved Kubin Drainage (Stage 2) - joint Heavy Equipment
through a partnership between the TSRA Management Training Program (HEMTP) project
and the Queensland Department of Local St Pauls Roads and Drainage (Stage 2) - joint HEMTP
Government and Planning (DLGP), and project
}\:lrgughthe TSRA's administration of the MIP Stage 3

program.

Warraber Waste Pilot Project

MIP Stage 2
Seisia Sewerage Project
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Project Name: Heavy Equipment Management Training Program (HEMTP)

Project Purpose Achievements for 2010 - 2011
To provide routine maintenance works The Kubin Drainage Project, Stage two has been completed
on environmental health infrastructure, as ajoint MIP and HEMTP Project.

and a plant pool of heavy equipment and

machinery for the delivery of minor capital

works, along with associated Indigenous

training to island communities in the region.

The HEMTP Project is jointly funded by The Roads and Drainage Preventive Maintenance and

TSRA,DTMR and DLGP. Defect Rectification project at Kubin and St Pauls (Moa
Island) has been completed.

The St Pauls Roads and Drainage Project Stage two has
been completed, this was a joint MIP, HEMTP and Transport
Infrastructure Development Scheme project.

Project Name: Torres Strait Island Regional Council Engineering Services (TSIRC ES):
Water Services Operations and Maintenance Program

Project Purpose Achievements for 2010 - 2011

To achieve improved health, economic The TSRA provided funding via its grants program for the
and social outcomes for communities maintenance of essential water services to outer island
through the provision of funding assistance communities throughout 2010 - 2011. A high standard of
to TSIRCES, for the operation and water quality was achieved. The service was delivered by
maintenance of water supply and sewerage TSIRC ES Water Services.

services; and to strengthen community
and local government capacity to operate
and maintain water supply and sewerage
services.

Project Name: Horn Island Affordable Housing Project (HIAHP)

Project Purpose Achievements for 2010 - 2011
This joint TSRA and Torres Shire Council In 2010 - 2011 the TSRA continued its support to HIAHP by
(TSC) project seeks to: allocating $3.0 million in funding to the Major Infrastructure

Program to enable the development of land at the Wasaga
township on Horn Island for the construction of a 30-lot
affordable housing sub-division.

Provide safe, healthy, adequate,
appropriate and affordable housing at
Horn Island to local Indigenous families
resident on the inner islands of the
Torres Strait.

Provide an appropriate level of
Indigenous employment and training in
the development of land and housing
construction.
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Infrastructure projects

Number of environmental health infrastructure projects completed

Four of 11 projects proposed under the Transport Infrastructure Development Scheme (TIDS) were
completed. Seven of 12 Major Infrastructure Program (MIP) projects were completed and four of five
Heavy Equipment Management and Training Program (HEMTP) projects were completed. These
projects were possible through whole-of-government partnerships and joint funding arrangements.

Short Term

Benefit Description

Communities have
essential health

related infrastructure,

including adequate

water supply and safe

and environmentally
acceptable waste
disposal.

Number of people of all ages participating in organised healthy activities

Benefit Target

90 per cent of
environmental
health infrastructure
projects completed
perannum as per the
Major Infrastructure
Project
Implementation Plan.

Progress

Ontrack to meet 2013
benefit target in the delivery
of MIP Stages 4A and B
Projects, Heavy Equipment
Management Training
Program and TSIRC ES.

58 per cent of MIP projects
have been completed.

COAG Target

COAG Target 1-
Closing the life expectancy
gap within a generation.

COAG Target 2 -

Halving the gap in mortality
rates for Indigenous
children under five within a
decade.

During 2010 - 2011, approximately 1,500 people participated in healthy activities that were funded
through the TSRA. Over 1,000 people participated in organised sporting activities delivered through
the Torres Strait Youth and Recreation Sporting Association. Four communities participated in food
garden projects. The Old People Action and Lift for Life Programs are tailored healthy lifestyle programs
for the aged community and people with diabetes. These programs are funded by the TSRA and
delivered by Mura Kosker and attract large numbers of participants.

Short Term

Benefit Description

Increased
participation of
peoplein healthy
activities.

Benefit Target

Afive percent
increase perannum
in number of people
participating,
realised
progressively from
July 2010 to 2013.

Establishment of
anew long-term
sustainable healthy
lifestyle initiative in
2010-2011.

Progress

Supported the:

Old People’s Action Program, which
creates awareness of preventable
chronic disease for individuals aged

over50.

Lift for Life Program which improves the
lives of those with Type-2 diabetes.

Refurbishment of the Boigu community

hall.

The TSRAis working in partnership

COAG Target

COAG Target 1-
Closing the life
expectancy
gap withina
generation.

COAG Target 2 -
Halving the gap
in mortality rates
for Indigenous
children under
five within a
decade.

with Queensland Health to support its

healthy lifestyle initiatives.

The benefit achievements above are fully aligned to the Torres Strait Development Plan benefit targets.
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Future Development

Land made available for
housing development
through Indigenous
Land Use Agreements
(ILUA) from July 2010.

Certainty for future
development.

AllILUASs are managed
through the Native Title
Program. The outcome
for this target is reported
on page 50 of this

COAG Target 1-
Closing the life expectancy gap
within a generation.

COAG Target 2 -

Annual Report.

Project Description

The Mabuiag Roads and Drainage Project,
stage two, involved the construction of a mix
of concrete, bitumen, and paved road surfaces
throughout the community.

Concrete kerbing and box culverts were installed
to improve storm-water flows and to protect
existing roads assets.

The outcomes were delivered through a joint Major
Infrastructure Program (MIP) and Heavy Equipment
Management and Training Program (HEMTP)
project. The aim of HEMTP is to enhance the
Torres Strait Island Regional Council’s (TSIRC) civil
engineering capacity through on-site employment
and accredited training at the community level.

Aim
The aim of the project was to improve community

health and the sustainability of the current road
infrastructure.

Construction of the works was undertaken
through the Department of Transport and Main
Roads’ Remote Community Services Unit (RCSU)
and the Queensland Department of Local
Government and Planning (DGLP) in partnership
with the TSRA and the Torres Strait Island
Regional Council (TSIRC).

Halving the gap in mortality
rates for Indigenous children
under five within a decade.

Achievements

The project was completed on time and within
budget at cost of $2.9 million, resulting in safer
and superior roads and drainage, and a safer
and healthier community living environment for
Mabuiag residents.

The project was constructed through HEMTP
using local trainees.

Seven trainees were employed throughout the
project over a 140 day period providing 2,600
hours of employment.

Employees completed the following training:

Queensland General Safety Induction
(construction)

Heavy Vehicle Driving - Medium Rigid Truck

Plant Operation including ski-steer;
loader; self propelled rollers; backhoe; and
articulated wheel loaders

Personal protective equipment
Two way radio communication
Use of an automatic level and staff

This successful project is an excellent example
of what can be achieved through an Integrated
Service Delivery approach.
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Safe, healthy, respectful and progressive
communities, based on Ailan Kastom and
Aboriginal traditions (Communities). Strong
families and safe and healthy communities that
are guided by cultural and traditional lore (Social
Services).

This program component will contribute to the
safety of communities by:

Contributing to the development of standards
for the provision of all mainstream social
services and facilities, including emergency
response services, through engagement with
responsible agencies.

Undertaking a policy advocacy, monitoring
and supporting role with respect to
mainstream services, advocating and acting
as a solution broker on behalf of communities
and the region, using integrated service
delivery forums; and

Providing direct funding and resource
support for some social support services,
and infrastructure, facilities and equipment
that contribute to improved safety and
accessibility for communities and families
(the TSRA does not provide mainstream
social or community services).

Social services initiatives:

Developing a service map of social support
services in the Torres Strait.

Funding contributions made to proactive and
reactive social service providers supporting
Torres Strait Islander people.

Contributing to the development of standards
for provision of services and facilities for

safe communities through engagement with
responsible agencies.

Safe and accessible community initiatives:

Contributing towards capacity building and
training initiatives for social service providers,
including emergency services.

Funding contributions to services and
facilities that contribute to community
accessibility and safety standards.

Monitoring and advocating for effective land
and sea communications systems.

Budget Actual Variance
$°000 $°000 $°000
3,359 3,322 (37)

Safe, healthy, respectful and progressive
communities, based on Ailan Kastom and
Aboriginal traditions (Communities)

Strong families and safe and healthy communities
that are guided by cultural and traditional lore
(Social Services)

Effective community and social service
support

Families and individuals are safe in home and
community

Public areas are safe and accessible for
community members
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Safe Communities Program Map
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Project Name: Provision of mainstream social services and facilities

Project Purpose Achievements for 2010 - 2011
Developing a service map of social support The service map was completed through participation in the
services in the Torres Strait. Safe Communities Regional Plan Working Group under the

guidance of the TSRA's Integrated Services Delivery project.

Project Purpose Achievements for 2010 - 2011

To fund organisations and monitor their Supported the Port Kennedy Association Incorporated,
performance against outcomes that Mura Kosker Sorority and the Aboriginal and Torres Strait
contribute to ensuring safe, healthy, Islander Community Legal Service (ATSICLS) North
respectful and progressive communities Queensland to successfully deliver social support services
based on Ailan Kastoms and Aboriginal to Torres Strait Islander and Aboriginal people in the region.
traditions.

The Port Kennedy Association Incorporated undertook

a number of activities that included operating vacation
care services, the Mura Kaimel playgroup, an after-school
child care program, a social worker program, providing

a disability support service and developing and staging
community events.

The Mura Kosker Sorority delivered a range of social service
programs including the Old People’s Action Program
(OPAP); Emergency Relief Program (ERF); Child and Family
Support Services (CAFS); Indigenous Domestic and Family
Violence Counselling; Indigenous Consumer Assistance
Network (ICAN) and Legal Aid Queensland services.

ATSICLS North Queensland provided legal aid services to
Indigenous Australians in the Torres Strait region.

A child care centre on Hammond Island, and one on
the Kubin Community were licensed following building
refurbishments, funded through the Safe Communities
Program.
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Project Name: Safe and Accessible Community Initiatives / Safe Communities Infrastructure and
Equipment / Airstrips and Marine Transport Infrastructure

Project Purpose Achievements for 2010 - 2011

To contribute towards improved safety »  Program planning and administration.
of the Indigenous people of the region
through a contribution to the Transport
Infrastructure Development Scheme > Mer Airstrip Reseal.
(TIDS). TIDS is a Queensland Department
of Transport and Main Roads program

> Poruma airstrip Reseal.

> Erub Airstrip Reseal.

which provides for the upgrade of » St Pauls (Moa Island) navigation aid (marine dolphin)
community airstrips, roads and marine replaced.

infrastructure in the region.

Project Purpose Achievements for 2010 - 2011

Contributing towards capacity building »  The TSRA achieves this outcome through direct funding
and training initiatives for social service of social service providers through the Safe Communities
providers, including emergency services. grants program. The funding agreements with these

providers incorporate activities for capacity building and
training. A Domestic Violence Prevention Working Party has
been formed by representatives from Mura Kosker Sorority,
Lena Passi Women'’s shelter, Tl Justice Group, Probation and
Parole, Relationships Australia, Queensland Health (Family
Support Unit), Department of Justice and Attorney General
and the Queensland Police Service.

Project Purpose Achievements for 2010 - 2011
Monitoring and advocating for effective »  Broadband Internet connectivity is now available in §
land and sea communications systems. 12 Torres Strait communities. The TSRA continues to =
advocate for improvements in mobile phone coverage for all
communities.

A child care centre on
Hammond Island, and one
on the Kubin Community
were licensed following
building refurbishments,
funded through the Safe
Communities Program.
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SECTION 2 | PROGRAM REPORTING AND PERFORMANCE SUMMARIES

Key Performance Indicators - Portfolio Budget Statement

»  Number of social support services active in the Torres Strait

The TSRA provides funding to a range of social support services in the Torres Strait including Mura
Kosker Sorority, Port Kennedy Association Incorporated, Torres Strait Island Regional Council, Torres
Strait Youth and Recreational Sporting Association and the Northern Peninsula Area Regional Council.
These organisations deliver programs including after-school care, healthy eating, swimming and library
visits, child care, aged and disability care, night patrol security, domestic violence projects, child and
family support and legal aid services.

The benefit achievements related to this KPl are:

services available for
communities.

and identifying
service delivery
gapsinthe
Torres Strait
presented to
Integrated
Service Delivery
Steering
Committee.

TSRA’s Integrated Service Delivery
project.

Short Term Benefit Target Progress COAG Target
Benefit Description

Appropriate and Service map The Service Mapping project was COAG Target 1-
accessible proactive showing allsocial | completed and Local Implementation Closing the life
and reactive social support services Plans have been drafted as part of the expectancy gap

within a generation.

COAG Target 2 -
Halving the gapin
mortality rates for
Indigenous children
under five within a
decade.

Increased level of
family and individual
participation in family
and community
events and social
support groups.

Five percent
improvement

in participation
and two
additional events
supported
commencing
July2010,toa
maximum of six
additional events
by 2013.

Two community events were supported
through TSRA grant funding.

COAG Target1-
Closing the life
expectancy gap
within a generation.

COAG Target 2 -
Halving the gapin
mortality rates for
Indigenous children
under five within a
decade.
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Short Term Benefit Target Progress COAG Target
Benefit Description
Increased skills Two community The benefit target has been achieved. COAG Target 1-
development and members c i bersh leted Closing the life
employment of provided ommum y memboers have compiete expectancy gap
. : . coursesin: L ;

community members with skills . : within a generation.
supporting and development First Aid: Three students

o ) L Mental Health First Aid: COAG Target 2 -
delivering social training.

One student

Halving the gapin

support. Two community Business Administration: mortality rates for
members One student. Indigenous children
provided with . under five within a
employment Certlﬂcate.courses are currently decade.
inthe social underyvay.w'w: )
services area D|§ab|I|ty Serylces:One student.
} Child Protection: Two students.
realised annually
from2010to 50 students participated in an Aged
2013. Care and Disability Care Training and
Employment program.
Four community members have been
employed:
Domestic Violence
Counsellor: One.
Child and Family Services
Coordinator: One.
After School Care Program
Coordinators: Two.
Improved Five percent Internet access and training has been COAG Target 1-
Telecommunications increase / delivered to 12 communities: Badu, Closing the life
Coverage improvement Boigu, Dauan, lama, Mabuiag, Poruma, | expectancy gap
incoverage New Mapoon, Bamaga, Injinoo, Saibai, | within a generation.

a) Increased mobile
phone coverage.

b) Increased
broadband
connection.

c) Increased
availability and
operability of public
phones.

realised by 2013.

Yorke and Warraber.

COAG Target 2 -
Halving the gapin
mortality rates for
Indigenous children
under five within a
decade.

The benefit achievements above are fully aligned to the Torres Strait Development Plan benefit targets.
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St Pauls Community, Moa Island.
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Case Study

Transport Infrastructure Development Scheme
(TIDS): Replacement of Berthing Dolphins at
Outer Island Barge Ramps Project

Project Description

The Replacement of Berthing Dolphins at Outer
Islands Barge Ramps Project arose as a response
to the recommendations of the Torres Strait
Transport Infrastructure Plan, 2006, which was an
initiative of Queensland Transport and the TSRA.

This $6.4 million dolphin replacement project will
be delivered over a number of years and is jointly

funded by the Department of Transport and Main

Roads (DTMR) and the TSRA under the Transport
Infrastructure Development Scheme (TIDS). The

TSRA's total contribution towards the project was
$1.6 million.

The project involves replacing berthing dolphins
at barge ramps on 14 outer island communities
in the Torres Strait. Works during 2010 - 2011
were completed at St Pauls (Moa Island) and are
currently underway on Badu, Mabuiag, Boigu
and Ugar Islands. Also included in this project is
the construction of a finger jetty at Ugar Island.
This jetty will replace a damaged pontoon and
will allow the community to access vessels from

The project provides island
communities with access
to critical barge services.
Barges carry most of the
food and building supplies
to island communities.

landings at multiple tide levels.

The next group of communities to benefit from
improved dolphins will be Saibai, Masig, Poruma
and Dauan Islands. Projects in these communities
are scheduled to commence in 2012 - 2013.

Aim

The Replacement of Berthing Dolphins Project

is part of a strategy to improve access and
transportation facilities to the isolated outer
island communities of the region. The project
provides island communities with access to
critical barge services. Barges carry most of the
food and building supplies to island communities.

Achievements

» Thedolphinreplacement project at Moa
Island (St Pauls) community was completed
in 2010 - 2011 at a cost of $1.0 million, and
has resulted in safer and more reliable barge
freight services.
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Section Three:
Report of Operations




The Torres Strait is located in Australia and is part
of the north eastern state of Queensland. The
area spans approximately 150 kilometres and is
situated between the tip of Queensland’s Cape
York Peninsula and Papua New Guinea. The
region consists of over one hundred islands and
reefs.

The Torres Strait links the Coral Sea in the east
to the Arafura Sea in the west; the two main
navigation passages are the Prince of Wales
Channel, north of Hammond Island and the
Endeavour Strait, between Cape York and Prince
of Wales Island.

The Torres Strait islands have a variety of
topographies, ecosystems and formations.
Severalislands, closest to the New Guinea
coastline are low-lying and are regularly impacted
by sea inundation. Many of the western islands
are hilly and steep. The central islands are
predominantly coral cays, and those to the east
are volcanic.

The TSRA delivers services across the entire
Torres Strait region, which includes seventeen
inhabited Islands and two communities in
Northern Peninsula Area of mainland Australia.
Due to the area’s remote location, the TSRA’s
service delivery is reliant on many logistical
factors including the limited phone, facsimile and
Internet communications between communities.
Most travel within the region is restricted to small
watercraft and light aircraft. The main gateway to
the Torres Strait is the Ngurupai airport located
on Hornlsland, a 20 minute ferry ride from the
Australian Government, Queensland Government
and two local government administration hubs
which are located on Thursday Island.

The picturesque Torres Strait region is
predominantly inhabited by native Torres Strait
Islanders and Kaurareg Aboriginal people. The
2006 Australian Bureau of Statistics Census
estimated that the total population of the region
was 8, 576, of whom 7,105 were Torres Strait
Islander and Aboriginal people.

The Torres Strait’s unique Ailan Kastom (island
custom) is a central part of life in the region. Ailan
Kastom is kept alive through the arts, rituals,
performances, speaking languages and passing
traditional knowledge on from one generation to
the next. Cultural values are strongly intertwined
around traditional, ancestral ties and respect for
waterways, land, sea and the resources these
provide.

The Torres Strait is named after Spanish explorer,
Luis Vaez de Torres, who sailed through the area
in1606. The Queensland Administration of the
Torres Strait was established on Thursday Island
in 1877, following the arrival of missionaries on
Cape York Peninsula. Early settlers were involved
in pearling, bech-de-mer collection and mining
activities.

Torres Strait Islander people first achieved
recognition of their land rights in 1992, following
the High Court’s landmark Mabo decision,
granting the Miriam people native title rights over
Mer (Murray) Island. This was the first time that
native title was recognised under the common
law of Australia. It set a precedent for Indigenous
people throughout Australia to assert their native
title rights through the Native Title Act 1993 (Cth).
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Native title has been granted for 13 inhabited
islands in the Torres Strait region and most of the
uninhabited islands. In addition, the Kaurareg
Aboriginal people have achieved recognition of
their native title rights over seven innerislands,
Ngurupai (Horn Island), Muralag (Prince of Wales
Island), Zuna (Entrance Island), Yeta (Port Lihou
Island), Mipa (Turtle Island), Tarilag (Packe Island)
and Damaralag.

Map of Torres Strait Region

PAPUA NEW GUINEA

Native title claims are being pursued over the
remaining three land claims. The Regional

Sea Claim was finalised on 23 August 2010.

The Australian Government and Queensland
Government have appealed the judgement of
Justice Finn, and the full bench of the Federal
Court of Australia heard the appeal matter in May
2011. Judgement has been reserved for a future
date.

Boigu Is.
Dauan Is. Saibai Is. Ugar Is.
Erub Is.
lama Is.
Masig Is.
Mabuiag Is. Merls.
PorumaIs.
Badu Is. Moa ls.
Kubik®. St. Pauls Warraber Is.
Hammond Is, Thursday Is.
Horn Is.
Prince of
Wales Is.
Seisige |
*BaMmaga
CAPE YORK e communities
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Data Used to Benchmark Progress

Towards Closing the Gap

The Indigenous Reform Agenda

Closing the Gap is acommitment by all the
Commonwealth, State and Territory governments
to improve the lives of Indigenous Australians,
and in particular provide a better future for
Indigenous children.

A national integrated Closing the Gap strategy

has been agreed through the Council of
Australian Governments (COAG), the peak
intergovernmental forum in Australia. COAG
brings together the Prime Minister, State Premiers,
Territory Chief Ministers and the President of the
Australian Local Government Association.

Closing the Gapis linked to a wider reform

of Commonwealth-State financial relations.
COAG’s national agreements and partnerships,
in areas such as education, housing and health,
are clearly focused on overcoming Indigenous
disadvantage.

In 2008 COAG set specific and ambitious targets
for Closing the Gap; these targets continue to
remain a priority for the Australian Government:

» Toclose the life-expectancy gap within a
generation

» Tohalve the gap in mortality rates for
Indigenous children under five within a
decade

» Toensure access to early childhood
education for all Indigenous four years olds in
remote communities within five years

» Tohalve the gap in reading, writing and
numeracy achievements for children within a
decade

» To halve the gap for Indigenous students in
Year 12 (or equivalent) attainment rates by
2020

To halve the gap in employment outcomes
between Indigenous and non-Indigenous
Australians within a decade

This year, the TSRA continued to work towards
the six COAG targets through the organisation’s
planned outcome statement:

Progress towards closing the gap for Torres Strait
Islander and Aboriginal people living in the Torres
Strait region through development planning,
coordination, sustainable resource management,
and preservation and promotion of Indigenous
culture.

Each of the TSRA programs is required to report
against the COAG targets. Detailed reporting is
contained in Section 2 of this Annual Report.

Closing the Gapis a
commitment by all the
Commonwealth, State and
Territory governments

to improve the lives of
Indigenous Australians,
and in particular provide a
better future for Indigenous
children.
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The latest data available at the time of writing this

report was from the Australian Bureau of Statistics

(ABS). This data, collected in 2006, has been
used to benchmark the progress of the TSRA’s
Programs against Closing the Gap targets. TSRA
updates its progress against targets as new data
becomes available from the ABS.

The 2006 Census showed that the Torres Strait
Islander and Aboriginal population in the region:

Increased from 6,168 in 2001 to 7,105 in 2006.

Represented 82.8 per cent of the total
population of the region, approximately 2.3
per cent of the Indigenous population of
Australia and approximately 5.5 per cent of
the Indigenous population of Queensland.

49.3 per cent of the Torres Strait population
was male, 50.7 per cent was female.

The median age of Aboriginal and Torres
Strait Islander people was 21 years.

The 2006 Census showed:

An unemployment rate of 5.03 per cent for
Torres Strait Islander and Aboriginal people
compared to 3.1 per cent for the non-
Indigenous population of the region.

The 2006 Census showed that:

13.8 per cent of Torres Strait Islander and
Aboriginal people who were usually residents
ofthe region and aged 15 years and over,
completed year 10 or equivalent and that 22.2
per cent had completed Year 12 or equivalent.

In 2011 the Australian Bureau of Statistics advised
thatin the Torres Strait region:

42 per cent of Indigenous people of the
region, aged 15 to 19 years, indicated that
they were in full-time education; 4 per cent
were undertaking part time education.

In 2006, household incomes of Torres Strait
Islander and Aboriginal people were lower than
the reported Australian average.

The reported median weekly household
income for the region was $809, compared
with the Australian average of $1,027.

The median individual income for an
individual living in the Torres Strait region
was $270 a week, compared to the Australian
average of $466 per week.

The 2006 Census reported that there were 1,653
dwellings in the region with Indigenous residents.
Ofthese:

7.0 per cent of these were fully owned.
1.6 per cent were being purchased.

87.6 per cent were rented.

ABS data from the 2006 Census shows that death
rates continue to be higher in the Torres Strait
and Northern Peninsula Area than in mainland
Australia with diabetes, heart disease and obesity
being key health issues in the region.
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The TSRA is a Commonwealth Statutory Authority
which was established on July 1, 1994 under the
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Commission
Act 1989 (Cth), now known as the Aboriginal and
Torres Strait Islander Act 2005 (Cth). The TSRA

is the leading Commonwealth representative
body for Torres Strait Islander and Aboriginal
people living in the Torres Strait, including two
communities (Bamaga and Seisia) in the Northern
Area Peninsula.

The TSRA is composed of twenty elected
representatives and the administrative staff.
The twenty elected representatives are Torres
Strait Islander and Aboriginal people who

live and work in the region. The TSRA Board
elects a Chairperson, a Deputy Chairperson
and an Alternate Deputy Chairperson. A
General Manager is responsible for the TSRA’s
administration and staffing.

The TSRA performs separate functions under

the Native Title Act 1993 (Cth) as the Native Title
Representative Body (NTRB) for the Torres Strait
Region. The TSRA holds this NTRB responsibility
until 30 June 2013.

Under Section 142D of the Aboriginal and

Torres Strait Islander Act 2005 (Cth) the TSRA

is required to formulate and implement a plan to
guide the progress of the Torres Strait region.

This document, known as the Torres Strait
Development Plan, is updated every four years, a
period consistent with the term of the TSRA Board.

In2008 - 2009 the TSRA finalised the Torres
Strait Development Plan 2009 - 2013, the fourth
development plan since the establishment of
the organisation. The plan outlines seven new
orrevised TSRA program components: Culture,
Art and Heritage; Economic Development;
Environmental Management; Governance

and Leadership; Healthy Communities;

Native Title and Safe Communities. In

recognition of the importance of fisheries to

the economic development of the region, in
2010 the TSRA separated responsibility for
fisheries management from the Environmental
Management Program, establishing a stand-
alone Fisheries Program. This change will be
reflected in the next edition of the Torres Strait
Development Plan. For consistency of reporting
against the Portfolio Budget Statements and
the current Torres Strait Development Plan,

the outcomes from the Fisheries Program are
reported under the Environmental Management
Program.

The enabling legislation for the TSRA is contained
in Section 142, Part 3A Division 1 of the Aboriginal
and Torres Strait Islander Act 2005 (Cth), which
states:

(1) ATorres Strait Regional Authority is
established.

(2) TheTSRA:

(a) isabody corporate, with perpetual
succession; and

(b) isto have acommon seal; and

(c) may acquire, hold and dispose of real and
personal property; and

(d) may sue and be sued inits corporate
name.

The Commonwealth Authorities and
Companies Act 1997 (Cth) also applies to the
TSRA. The Act deals with matters relating to
Commonwealth Authorities, including reporting
and accountability, banking and investment and
conduct of officers. The Act states:

(1) The common seal of the TSRA is to be keptin
such custody as the TSRA directs and must
not be used except as authorised by the TSRA.

(2) Allcourts, judges and persons acting
judicially must:
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(3) take judicial notice of the imprint of the
common seal of the TSRA appearingon a
document; and

(4) presume that the imprint was duly affixed.

The Commonwealth Authorities and Companies
Act 1997 (Cth) also applies to the TSRA. The Act
deals with matters relating to Commonwealth
Authorities, including reporting and accountability,
banking and investment and conduct of officers.

The functions of the TSRA, as outlined in Section
142A of the Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander
Act 2005 (Cth), are:

(a) torecognise and maintain the special
and unique Ailan Kastom of Torres Strait
Islanders living in the Torres Strait area;

(b

=

to formulate and implement programs
for Torres Strait Islanders, and Aboriginal
persons, living in the Torres Strait area;

(c) tomonitorthe effectiveness of programs
for Torres Strait Islanders, and Aboriginal
persons, living in the Torres Strait area,
including programs conducted by other
bodies;

d

=

to develop policy proposals to meet
national, State and regional needs and
priorities of Torres Strait Islanders, and
Aboriginal persons, living in the Torres
Strait area;

(e) toassist, advise and co-operate with
Torres Strait Islander and Aboriginal
communities, organisations and
individuals at national, State, Territory and
regional levels;

(f) toadvise the Minister on:

(i) mattersrelating to Torres Strait
Islander affairs, and Aboriginal affairs
inthe Torres Strait area, including the
administration of legislation;

(ii) the co-ordination of the activities
of other Commonwealth bodies
that affect Torres Strait Islanders
or Aboriginal persons, living in the
Torres Strait area;

(g) whenrequested by the Minister, to
provide information or advice to the
Minister on any matter specified by the
Minister;

(h) totake suchreasonable action as it
considers necessary to protect Torres
Strait Islander and Aboriginal cultural
material and information relating to
the Torres Strait area if the material or
information is considered sacred or
otherwise significant by Torres Strait
Islanders or Aboriginal persons;

(i) attherequest of, or with the agreement
of, the Australian Bureau of Statistics
but not otherwise, to collect and publish
statistical information relating to Torres
Strait Islanders, and Aboriginal persons,
living in the Torres Strait area;

(j) such other functions as are conferred on
the TSRA by this Act or any other Act;

(k) such other functions as are expressly
conferred on the TSRA by a law of a State
orof aninternal Territory and in respect of
which there is in force written approval by
the Minister under Section 142B;

(I) toundertake suchresearchasis
necessary to enable the TSRA to perform
any of its other functions; and

(m) to do anything else thatis incidental or
conducive to the performance of any of
the preceding functions.

The powers of the TSRA, are outlined in Section
142C of the Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander
Act 2005 (Cth), which states:
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(1) The TSRA has powerto do all things that are
necessary or convenient to be done for or
in connection with the performance of its
functions.

(2) The powers ofthe TSRA include, but are not
limited to, the following powers:

(a) toacceptgifts, grants, bequests and
devises made toit;

(b

=

to act as trustee of money and other
property vested init on trust;

(c) tonegotiate and co-operate with other
Commonwealth bodies and with State,
Territory and local government bodies;

d

=

to enterinto an agreement for making a
grant orloan under Section 142GA to the
State of Queensland or an authority of
that State (including a local government
body); and

(e) toenterintoanagreement (otherthanan
agreement referred to in paragraph (d)
with a State or a Territory.

(3) Despite anything in this Act, any money or
other property held by the TSRA on trust must
be dealt with in accordance with the powers
and duties of the TSRA as trustee.

(4) The powers of the TSRA may be exercised in
or out of Australia.

The TSRA is an Agency within the Department

of Families, Housing, Community Services and
Indigenous Affairs portfolio. During the reporting
year the responsible Minister for the TSRA was
The Hon. Jenny Macklin MP.

Powers of Direction by the Minister

Under section 142E of the Aboriginal and Torres
Strait Islander Act 2005, the Minister has powers

of direction in relation to the TSRA. Section 142E
of the Act states:

(1) The TSRA must performiits functions and
exercise its powers in accordance with any
general written directions given to it by the
Minister.

(2) The Minister must not give directions about
the content of any advice, information or
recommendation that may be given by the
TSRA to a Minister, Department of State or
authority of the Commonwealth.

(3) The Minister must not give directions about
the content of any advice, information or
recommendation that may be given by the
TSRA to:

(@) aMinister of a State or Territory; or

(b) aDepartment of State of a State or
Territory; or

(c) anauthority of a State or Territory;

except for the purpose of protecting the
confidentiality of information given to the
TSRA by the Commonwealth or an authority
of the Commonwealth.

(4) Subjectto subsection (5), the Minister must
cause a copy of a direction to be laid before
each House of the Parliament within 15 sitting
days of that House after that direction was
given.

(5) Therulein subsection (4) does not apply if
the laying of a copy of a direction before each
House of the Parliament would result in the
disclosure of a matter in a manner that would
be inconsistent with the views or sensitivities
of Torres Strait Islanders or Aboriginal
persons.

The TSRA did not receive any formal Directions by
the Minister during the reporting period.
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TSRA Statement of Intent to the Minister

In 2010 - 2011, the Minister for Families, Housing,
Community Services and Indigenous Affairs,
provided a Statement of Expectations to the TSRA
concerning the operation and performance of the
TSRA up to the period June 2012. Inresponse,
the TSRA provided a Statement of Intent to the
Minister.

The Statement identifies the TSRA’s focus,
outcomes and priorities:

» The TSRA’s primary focus is to improve the
lifestyle and wellbeing of Torres Strait Islander
and Aboriginal people living in the region by
implementing programs that address their
socio-economic and health status.

» AsanAustralian Government agency, the
TSRA will respond to the Council of Australian
Governments (COAG) reform agenda by
making a contribution to achieving Closing
the Gap targets, and in particular through the
Indigenous Economic Development Strategy
and the National Partnership Agreements.

The TSRA will formulate and implement
programs in regards to the principles detailed
inthe COAG National Partnership Agreement
on Remote Service Delivery and will continue
to: maximise employment, education and
training benefits to Indigenous communities,
assist and maintain close liaison with national,
state, territory and regional agencies,

brief the Minister for Families, Housing,
Community Services and Indigenous Affairs
onimportantissues and implement the Torres
Strait Development Plan 2009 - 2013 and
other planning instruments as necessary.

The TSRA will consider and act on
opportunities that will increase the level of
female representation on its Board.

The TSRA's primary focus
is to improve the lifestyle
and wellbeing of Torres
Strait Islander and
Aboriginal people living in
the region by implementing
programs that address their
socio-economic and health
status.

Ministerial Appointments

In 2010 - 2011, three appointments were made for
the position of Torres Strait Regional Authority
Acting General Manager.

The appointments were made by the Minister
for Families, Housing, Community Services and
Indigenous Affairs in accordance to Section
1441(1)(a) of the Aboriginal and Torres Strait
Islander Act 2005 to Damian Miley for the period
20 to 31 December 2010 and to John Ramsay for
the period 1to 15 January 2011. The appointment
of Christopher de Mamiel for the period 13 to

30 May 2011 was delegated by the Minister

and made by the Acting Deputy Secretary,
Department of Families, Housing Community
Services and Indigenous Affairs.

Briefings and information provided to Minister

Throughout the reporting period the TSRA
provided ministerial minutes and briefings to
the Minister for Families, Housing, Community
Services and Indigenous Affairs.

Judicial Decisions and Reviews

One judicial decision, relating to the Torres Strait
Sea Claim, was made during the 2010 - 2011
reporting year. No decisions of administrative
tribunals, Parliamentary Committees or the
Commonwealth Ombudsman impacted the
TSRA's operations.
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SECTION 4 | CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

TSRA Governance and Accountability

Overview of Governance Structure

Diagram of TSRA Governance Framework

Torres Strait Regional Authority (TSRA) Board '

TSRA Audit Committee General Manager
[
[ |
Program Delivery Corporate Support
Economic Development Finance

Culture, Art and Heritage Human Resources
Native Title Information Technology
Environmental Management Property Management

Governance and Leadership
Healthy Communities
Safe Communities

Stakeholders '

Minister for Families, Housing, Community Prescribed Bodies Corporate
Services and Indigenous Affairs Indigenous People in the Torres Strait region
Australian Government Indigenous Representative Bodies

Parliamentary Committees
State, Territory and Local Governments

The TSRA's governance framework provides a The primary functions of the Board are:
system of direction and controls, enabling regional
outcomes to be achieved through organisational

» Tosetoutthe TSRA’s vision for the Torres

goals and objectives. The framework allows for the Strait

escalation of risks and issues to the appropriate » Tooversight the TSRA's strategic objectives
level. Resolution of risks and issues occurs and direction

through formal project management structures, » To approve program mandates,

program structures, Program Steering Committee,
the TSRA Audit Committee and the TSRA Board.

» Toreview the TSRA’s performance, its
objectives and outcomes

TSRA Board Members » Tomanage strategic risk and regional

The TSRA Board is an elected, representative body, stakeholder relations

which participates in scheduled quarterly meetings The TSRA Board consists of 20 community
and issue-specific out-of-session meetings. representatives who are appointed for a four
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year term. Fifteen Members are appointed to the
TSRA by virtue of being elected under the Local
Government Act 1993 as Councillors on the Torres
Strait Island Regional Council. Two Members,
representing the Bamaga and Seisia communities
in the Northern Peninsula Area, hold office by virtue
of their election to the Northern Peninsula Area
Regional Council. The remaining three Members
are elected in accordance with Division 5 of the
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Act 2005, for
the Wards of Port Kennedy, Horn Island and Prince
of Wales Island (combined) and the combined Ward
of Tamwoy, Rosehill, Aplin, Waiben and Quarantine
(TRAWQ) on Thursday Island. The Chairperson
and executive members of the TSRA are elected by
the Members at the first Board meeting following
the local government and Division 5 elections. By
the nature of their appointments all TSRA Board
Members (also known as Directors under the
Commonwealth Authorities and Companies Act
1997) are classified as Non-Executive Directors.
The TSRA Board endorsed a review of its
governance structure to be undertaken early in
the next financial year.

An Executive Committee of eight TSRA Board
Members has been formed to assist the TSRA
Chairperson in the performance of his duties.

The Executive Committee is based on a portfolio
structure which is aligned to the TSRA Programs.
Membership of the Executive Committee is
decided by the TSRA Board by open ballot. The
TSRA Executive Committee meets quarterly, prior
to TSRA Board meetings. The Chairperson may
call additional meetings as required.

The objectives of TSRA’s Executive Committee
areto:

Ensure that policies and future directives

are made in accordance with the Aboriginal
and Torres Strait Islander Act 2005 (Cth), the
Commonwealth Authorities and Companies
Act 1997(Cth), and other relevant legislation,

Advocate forimproved outcomes in the
Torres Strait region,

Represent the views of the TSRA on internal
and external committees, and

Assist the TSRA Chairperson to communicate
government policy, TSRA decisions and
achievements as they relate to their portfolio
responsibilities with Torres Strait communities.

The TSRA Executive Members and their portfolio
responsibilities are shown the following table:

Mr John T Kris TSRA Chairperson

TSRA Portfolio Member
for Governance and
Leadership

Ms Napcia Bin Tahal ~ TSRA Deputy Chairperson

TSRA Portfolio Member for
Economic Development

TSRA Alternate Deputy
Chairperson

Mr Kenny Bedford

TSRA Portfolio Member for

Fisheries

Mr Donald Banu TSRA Portfolio Member for
Native Title

Mr Keith Fell TSRA Portfolio Member for
Healthy Communities

Mr Walter Makie TSRA Portfolio Member

for Environmental
Management

Mr Phillemon Mosby ~ TSRA Portfolio Member for
Culture, Art and Heritage

TSRA Portfolio Member for
Safe Communities

Ms Nancy Pearson

Table 4-1
TSRA Executive and Portfolio Responsibilities
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Profiles of TSRA Board Members

Mr John T Kris, TSRA Chairperson and TSRA Member for St Pauls

Special Responsibilities

Mr Kris is in his second term as the Chairperson of the TSRA and his third
term as a Member of the TSRA Board. Mr Kris is the Portfolio Member for the
TSRA’s Governance and Leadership Program and is also a Councillor with the
Torres Strait Island Regional Council. As the Chairperson of the TSRA, Mr Kris
is amember of the Protected Zone Joint Authority (PZJA) together with the
Australian Government and Queensland Government Ministers for Fisheries.

a4

Over the last year, Mr Kris has continued to work with all levels of government, taking an integrated service
delivery approach to government business and building strong partnerships with people in the Torres Strait
and Northern Peninsula Area region.

Mr Kris considers that increasing economic wealth through viable and sustainable businesses is a key
factorin strengthening and growing our communities. A strong business base for communities will
provide new employment and training opportunities across the region.

Experience and Qualifications

Mr Kris was first elected to the TSRA Board in 2000. His election was based on his specialist knowledge
of his community, St Pauls, and his strong communication, negotiation and relationship management
skills. He has the ability to develop relationships across all Torres Strait communities and the three

TSRA Chairperson, MrJohn T Kris, delivering the TSRA Intervention at the United Nations Permanent Forum
on Indigenous Issues.
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levels of government operating in the region. Mr Kris possesses unique communications skills that
relate to Ailan Kastom.

Mr Kris is a Fellow of the Australian Rural Leadership Foundation. He holds Associate and Advanced
Diplomas in Environmental Health. In his first TSRA term, Mr Kris was the Portfolio Member for Housing
and Infrastructure and he continues to maintain a strong interest in environmental health.

Ms Napcia Bin Tahal, TSRA Deputy Chairperson and TSRA Member for
Horn and Prince of Wales

Special Responsibilities

Ms Napcia Bin Tahal commenced her first term on the Board in 2008. Ms
Bin Tahal is also the TSRA Deputy Chairperson, the Portfolio Member for
Economic Development, a member of the Audit Committee and the Deputy
Mayor of the Torres Shire Council.

Experience and Qualifications

Ms Bin Tahal was employed by the Queensland Public Service and the Australian Public Service for
approximately 15 years. Most of that time was within Indigenous Affairs. Ms Bin Tahal is actively
involved with a number of local community organisations, to ensure that she remains in touch with
issues at the grass roots level.

Ms Bin Tahal is a fellow of the Australian Rural Leadership Foundation. She holds a Diploma in Business
(Front-Line Management), a Certificate Il in Indigenous Leadership and a Certificate in Tourism.

Ms Bin Tahal is an advocate for long-term economic sustainability, through the development of local
businesses that can operate independently of government assistance. Ms Bin Tahal believes that
education is the key to Torres Strait Islander and Aboriginal people achieving their goals. She believes
that through the development of professional skills and self determination, people in the region will take
control of their own future.

Mr Kenny Bedford, TSRA Alternative Deputy Chairperson and TSRA
Member for Erub

Special Responsibilities

Mr Kenny Bedford has been an active member on the TSRA Board since
2008. He hasrepresented the TSRA in his capacity as Alternate Deputy
Chairperson, and is the Portfolio Member for Fisheries. Mr Bedford is also
the Deputy Mayor of the Torres Strait Island Regional Council.

As the Portfolio Member for Fisheries, Mr Bedford is pleased with the
progress that has been made in the industry for Torres Strait Islanders. Assisting Torres Strait Islanders
to access a greater share of the Torres Strait fisheries, as professional full time fishers, remains one of the
biggest challenges for Mr Bedford.
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Experience and Qualifications

Mr Bedford draws on his strong knowledge of the Erub community. He possesses excellent
communication, negotiation and relationship management skills. Mr Bedford has the ability to develop
relationships across all Torres Strait communities and government agencies.

Mr Bedford is a Vincent Fairfax Fellow and holds a Bachelor of Applied Health Science. He also holds a
Diploma of Youth Welfare and has had training in Local Government and Administration.

Special Responsibilities

Mr Wayne Guivarra is serving his first term on the TSRA Board. Heis also an
elected Councillor on the Torres Strait Island Regional Council.

Experience and Qualifications

Mr Guivarra develops relationships across all Torres Strait communities
and government agencies operating in the region. He possesses strong
communication, negotiation and relationship management skills that relate to Ailan Kastom.

Since his appointment, Mr Guivarra has increased his skills and understanding of Government
processes and recognises that the tasks ahead are an enormous responsibility. He is pleased to be
receiving administrative support under the new TSRA program structure and looks forward to the future
with great optimism. Mr Guivarra is committed to supporting regional sports development within Torres
Strait communities.

Mr Reginald Williams, TSRA Member for Bamaga

This is Mr Williams’ fourth term as a TSRA Board Member. Mr Williams is the
Deputy Mayor of the Northern Peninsula Area Regional Council.

Experience and Qualifications

Mr Williams held office with the TSRA from 1994 to 1997, 1997 to 2000, and
2000 to 2004. He has specialist knowledge of his community, Bamaga, and
strong communication, negotiation and relationship management skills. Mr
Williams also has unique communications skills that relate to Ailan Kastom.

Mr Williams aims to achieve a better lifestyle and standard of living for Torres Strait Islander and
Aboriginal people living in the region. Areas of concern for Mr Williams are housing, health and
education. Through his representation on the TSRA Board, Mr Williams seeks funding solutions for
regional housing issues. He is also keen to raise awareness of health problems such as diabetes and
heart disease; and increase the range of subjects available to secondary school students.
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Mr Donald Banu, TSRA Member for Boigu
Special Responsibilities

Mr Donald Banu is undertaking his second term as a TSRA Board Member.
Mr Banu also is the Portfolio Member for Native Title and a Councillor with
the Torres Strait Island Regional Council.

Experience and Qualifications

Mr Banu holds a Diploma in Environmental Health, a Certificate IV in Local
Government and Administration; and a Certificate IV in Environmental
Health. Mr Banu has specialist communication skills that relate to Ailan Kastom and is able to develop
relationships across all communities in the region. MrBanu is able to work with other government
agencies to achieve outcomes and has been involved in many consultations across the region. He
possesses strong communication, negotiation and relationship management skills.

Akey focus area for Mr Banu is increased capacity building for Prescribed Bodies Corporate so that the
people in the Torres Strait can benefit from opportunities, such as land lease agreements.

To maximise benefits for the Torres Strait community, Mr Banu aims to maintain positive working
relationships across the whole-of-government sector and in particular, with community stakeholders.
Mr Banu will strive to ensure that there are developments in home ownership, as well as appropriate
initiatives under the Torres Strait Treaty to address health and associated cross border issues between
Australia and Papua New Guinea.

Mr Banu is concerned about the effects of climate change and coastal inundation in the Torres Strait
region and will continue to work with all stakeholders to find solutions to this critical issue.

Mr Banu has been involved in the project to repatriate, to Torres Strait Communities, Indigenous human
remains and sacred objects that are being held around the world. He was instrumental in negotiating an
agreement with the United Kingdom’s Natural History Museum for the return of ancestral remains to the
Torres Straitin 2010.

In his own time, Mr Banu undertakes an active role in his community and the wider Torres Strait communities
to help young people by promoting career paths in the Navy and other Australian Defence Services.

Special Responsibilities

Mr Torenzo Elisala was elected to the TSRA Board in August 2010 following
the resignation of the previous Member for Dauan, Mr Raymond (Mario) Soki.
Mr Elisala is also a Councillor with the Torres Strait Island Regional Council.

Experience and Qualifications

Mr Elisala has been actively involved in his community, Dauan, and
considers health, education and economic growth as some of the crucial
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areas to progress. Mr Elisala’s aspiration is for more emphasis to be put on cultural and traditional
practices. If our people truly inherit these two aspects of life with our own traditional lore systemin
place, the tension and stress put on communities from the western cultures will be minimised. Mr Elisala
considers that unification of both cultures will give Torres Strait Islanders an advantage. He believes
Closing the Gap can work strategically and effectively with traditional lores which contain protocols for
men, women and children within cultural jurisdictions.

Mr Elisala has strong communication and relationship management skills within his community and the
wider Torres Strait community including skills relating to Ailan Kastom. As a former Community Police
Officer, Mr Elisala maintains that effective law and order is critical for community harmony. He is also
able to draw on his experience as a Healthy Lifestyle Officer through his work with the Queensland
Health and Tagai College partnership to improve health related education in his community.

Ms Nancy Pearson, TSRA Member for Hammond Island

Special Responsibilities

Ms Nancy Pearson isin her first term as a Board Member. She is also the
Portfolio Member for Safe Communities.

Experience and Qualifications

Ms Pearsonis an avid champion of women and families in the region and
continues to form links with key stakeholders to enhance and support safe
communities. Her experience working with all levels of government has
been valuable to the Safe Communities Program. Over the last year, Ms Pearson has been involved with
the preparations for Australian Bureau of Statistics 2011 Census within the Torres Strait and Northern
Peninsula Area, ensuring that quality data from the region will be captured.

Ms Pearson also draws on her professional development experience in the areas of social justice,
administration and town planning. She continues to see economic development, environmental
stability and strategies to increase employment opportunities for the people of the Torres Strait region
as on-going concerns. She is also an advocate of the preservation and revitalisation of Ailan Kastom.

Mr Walter Makie, TSRA Member for lama
Special Responsibilities

Mr Makie is in his second term as a TSRA Board Member. He is also Portfolio
Member for Environmental Management. Mr Makie is also a Councillor with
the Torres Strait Island Regional Council.

l l.: Experience and Qualifications

Mr Makie has continued to address major concerns relating to tidal inundation
as well as the protection and preservation of Torres Strait land and sea resources. Mr Makie has had
close involvement with environmental management issues since the 1980s and remains committed to his
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portfolio mandate: to protect, preserve and enjoy
the natural and cultural environment of the region
through sustainable management.

Mr David Bosun,
TSRA Member for
Kubin

Special
Responsibilities

Mr David Bosun is
serving his first term

as a TSRA Board
Member. In September 2010, Mr Bosun was b b
appointed as the rotational member on the TSRA TSRA Portfolio Member for Healthy Communities,
Audit Committee. MrBosun s also a Councillor Mr Keith Fell with the Hon. Warren Snowdon MP and

Torres Shire Council’s Mayor Pedro Stephen at the
Thursday Island Hospital.

with the Torres Strait Island Regional Council.

Experience and Qualifications

Mr Bosun holds an Associate Diploma in Journalism and Communication, a Certificate IV in Visual Arts
and a Certificate IV in Business Management. MrBosun draws on his knowledge of tourism, arts and
culture and economic development and would like to see a marked improvement in the Torres Strait
economy through sustainable tourism ventures and the promotion of arts and culture.

Mr Bosun emphasises a grass roots approach to training, employment and economic development, so
that communities become empowered, self-sufficient and independent.

Mr Keith Fell, TSRA Member for Mabuiag
Special Responsibilities

Mr Keith Fell is undertaking his first term on the TSRA Board. Mr Fellis the
Portfolio Member for Healthy Communities and is a Councillor with the
Torres Strait Island Regional Council.

Experience and Qualifications

Mr Fell has a Diploma in Local Government Administration and a Certificate
IIl'in Sports and Recreation.

Mr Fell believes that education, training and communication are vital to achieve success and increase
the standard of living in the region. Other areas of importance for Mr Fell are economic development and
cultural and social issues.

During his term on the Board, Mr Fell has pursued affordable housing for Torres Strait Islander people
and worked towards empowering his people through accessible employment and training opportunities.
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MrJohn Mosby, TSRA Member for Masig

Special responsibilities

Mr Mosby is undertaking his first term as a TSRA Board Member. Mr Mosby
is also an elected Councillor with the Torres Strait Island Regional Council.
Experience and Qualifications

Mr Mosby has an Associate Degree in Indigenous Community Management
and Development and is a current participant in the Australian Rural
Leadership Program.

During his term on the TSRA Board, Mr Mosby has encouraged his constituents to focus on economic
development and to continue lobbying government agencies about climate change, a major concern to
the low lying communities in the region.

Mr Mosby is proud of the sustainable economic development initiatives being trialled in his community,
including a pilot sponge farm project. Mr Mosby is also supporting community aspirations to establish
a pearl farm. Mr Mosby is hopeful that these projects will be a success and result in similar business
ventures being established across the Torres Strait.

Mr Mosby believes a sustainable economy is essential in order for the region to have a credible
autonomous voice in the development of government policy.

Special Responsibilities

Mr Ron Day is undertaking his fourth term on the TSRA Board. MrDay is a
Councillor with the Torres Strait Island Regional Council.

Experience and Qualifications

Mr Day has been the TSRA Member for Mer since 2000. Through his past
experience on the TSRA Board, Mr Day has gained a sound knowledge
of government processes and engagement with the local community through his knowledge and
understanding of Ailan Kastom.

Mr Day is keen to encourage progress towards shared regional goals. Mr Day’s vision for the region is
the empowerment of his people through independence and a robust economy. He believes that the
strengths of the region will be realised through the unity of individual Torres Strait Islander people.
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Mr Phillip Mills, TSRA Member for Port Kennedy

Mr Mills was elected to the TSRA Board in 2008. In March 2011, Mr

Mills resigned from the TSRA Board to take up an executive role in local
government. A casual vacancy for Port Kennedy currently exists. The TSRA
has requested that the Australian Electoral Commissioner fill the casual
vacancy in accordance with Division 5 of the Aboriginal and Torres Strait
Islander Act 2005 (Cth).

Mr Phillemon Mosby, TSRA Member for Poruma

Special Responsibilities

Mr Phillemon Mosby is in his first term as Member of the TSRA Board. Heis
also the TSRA Portfolio Member for Culture, Art and Heritage and a member
of the TSRA Audit Committee. Mr Mosby is a Councillor with the Torres Strait
Island Regional Council.

Experience and Qualifications

As the Portfolio Member for Culture, Art and Heritage, Mr Mosby would like to promote traditional culture
and practice as well as encouraging more engagement between elders and youth when practicing
traditional culture. He aims to fulfill the dreams of his elders, to revive the traditional languages of the region.

During his term on the Board he would like to improve access to housing, particularly for youth. Mr
Mosby supports innovation and creativity to deliver more training and employment opportunities in
his community. He continues to work with stakeholders to combat tidal inundation problems that the
Poruma Island community must address.

Special Responsibilities

This is MrRon Enosa’s first term on the TSRA Board. MrEnosais a
Councillor with the Torres Strait Island Regional Council.

Experience and Qualifications

Mr Enosa has a Diploma in Legal Advocacy and a Diploma in Local
Government Administration. Mr Enosa continues to advocate for activities to
support Torres Strait culture across the region. He would also like to see closer working arrangements with
the Papua New Guinea Western Province Treaty villages to address significant issues.

Assistance and support to youth development and related infrastructure is a priority for Mr Enosa. He
continues to support the development of career pathways for students in the Torres Strait which will
enhance economic developmentin the region.
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Mr Enosa has also acted as an advocate on land and sea matters in the Torres Strait. His major concern
is coastal erosion and tidal inundation, issues that are affecting Saibai Island; he continues to work with
key stakeholders to address these issues.

Mr John Abednego, TSRA Member for Tamwoy, Rosehill, Aplin, Waiben
and Quarantine (TRAWQ)

Special Responsibilities

Mr John Abednego has completed previous terms on the TSRA Board, this is
his third term following re-election in 2008. He is also a Councillor with the
Torres Shire Council.

Experience and Qualifications

Mr Abednego was the TSRA Chairperson from 1997 to 2000. Mr Abednego has a strong knowledge of
government processes and first- hand knowledge of Torres Strait Islander culture.

During his time on the Board, Mr Abednego’s priority is to raise the public profile of TRAWQ. He
sees the establishment of a TRAWQ Development Plan and an increased focus on social services as
important preliminary initiatives to achieve this goal.

Special Responsibilities

Mr Jeffrey Anibaisin his first term as a TSRA Board Member. Mr Anibais a
Councillor with the Northern Peninsula Area Regional Council.
Experience and Qualifications

Mr Aniba’s main focus is on education reforms, and increasing loans for
home ownership and small business development in the Torres Strait and
Northern Peninsula Area.

Mrs Florianna Bero, TSRA Member for Ugar

Special Responsibilities

This is Mrs Florianna Bero’s first term as a member of the TSRA Board. Mrs
Berois a Councillor with the Torres Strait Island Regional Council.
Experience and Qualifications

As the Member for the Ugar community, Mrs Bero is using her position on
the Board to promote good health, education and housing for people in the
Torres Strait region.
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Mrs Bero has advocated for increased funding in the education and health care sectors together with
greater promotion of small businesses, to benefit all communities in the Torres Strait region.

Mr Willie Lui, TSRA Member for Warraber

Special Responsibilities

Mr Willie Luiis in his first term as a TSRA Board Member. Mr Luiisa
Councillor with the Torres Strait Island Regional Council.

Experience and Qualifications

Mr Lui draws on his past qualifications and experiences in the building
industry where he worked as a carpenter. More recently he has undertaken
training to improve his knowledge of legislation, financial sustainability and strategic planning. Mr Lui
possesses strong communication and negotiation skills relating to Ailan Kastom.

Mr Lui believes economic development, employment opportunities and increased cultural awareness are
key priorities for the region. He continues to advocate for increased apprenticeships and traineeships
with appropriate and accredited training tailored to suit community needs. Priority areas requiring
immediate attention include addressing coastal erosion, making progress in the commercial fisheries
sector and increasing employment opportunities for Torres Strait Islander and Aboriginal people.

TSRA Governance and Accountability
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The TSRA Executive Committee meetings for 2010 - 2011 are shown in the following table:

2010 - 2011 TSRA Executive
Committee Meeting Dates

11-12 August 2010

12 October 2010
11-12 November 2010
22 February 2011

9 May 2011

Table 4-2

TSRA Executive Committee Meeting Dates

Apologies

Ms Napcia Bin Tahal, Portfolio Member for Economic Development

Mr Kenny Bedford, TSRA Portfolio Member for Fisheries for part day
on 11 August2011

Mr Phillemon Mosby, Portfolio Member for Culture, Art and Heritage
Ms Napcia Bin Tahal, Portfolio Member for Economic Development
Nil

Mr Phillemon Mosby, Portfolio Member for Culture, Art and Heritage

The TSRA’s Executive Committee meetings attendance is shown in the following table:

Attendance at TSRA Executive Committee Meetings

MrJohn T Kris

Ms Napcia Bin Tahal
Mr Kenny Bedford
Mr Donald Banu

Mr Keith Fell

Mr Walter Makie

Mr Phillemon Mosby

Ms Nancy Pearson

Table 4-3
TSRA Executive Committee Attendance

5 of 5 Executive Committee Meetings attended
3 of 5 Executive Committee Meetings attended
3.5 of 5 Executive Committee Meetings attended
5 of 5 Executive Committee Meetings attended
5 of 5 Executive Committee Meetings attended
5 of 5 Executive Committee Meetings attended
3 of 5 Executive Committee Meetings attended

5 of 5 Executive Committee Meetings attended
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The Chairperson of the TSRA must convene at least four Board Meetings each year in accordance with
Section 144E of the Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Act 2005 (Cth). The Chairperson can convene
other meetings of the TSRA Board if itis considered necessary for the efficient performance of the

TSRA’s functions.

Throughout 2010 - 2011, the TSRA Board met as shown in the following table:

Board Meetings

Meeting No. 75

Meeting No. 76

Meeting No. 77

Meeting No. 78

Table 4-4
TSRA Board meetings

Dates

1-2September 2010

8-9 December2010

24 -25 February 2011

11-12 May 2011

Apologies

Mr Ron Day, Member for Mer

Ms Nancy Pearson, Member for Hammond
Mr John Abednego, Member for TRAWQ

Mr Ron Enosa, Member for Saibai for part
day on 2 September 2010

Ms Napcia Bin Tahal, Member for Horn and
Prince of Wales Islands

Mrs Florianna Bero, Member for Ugar

Ms Nancy Pearson, Member for Hammond
Mr Reginald Williams, Member for Bamaga
Mr Phillip Mills, Member for Port Kennedy

Mr Walter Makie, Member for lama for
9 December 2010

Ms Napcia Bin Tahal, Member for Horn and
Prince of Wales Islands for part day on
24 February 2011

Ms Nancy Pearson, Member for Hammond
Island for part day on 24 February 2011

Mr Wayne Guivarra, Member for Badu for
25 February 2011

Mr Reginald Williams, Member for Bamaga

Mr Torenzo Elisala, Member for Dauan
Island

Mr Ron Day, Member for Mer Island

Mr John Abednego, Member for TRAWQ
on12 May 2011

Mr Keith Fell, Member for Mabuiag on
12 May 2011

Absent

Mr Phillip Mills,
Member for
Port Kennedy

Mr Ron Enosa,
Member for Saibai

Mr Phillip Mills,
Member for
Port Kennedy

Mr Jeffery Aniba,
Member for Seisia
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MrJohn T. Kris

Ms Napcia Bin Tahal
Mr Kenny Bedford
Mr John Abednego
Mr Jeffery Aniba

Mr Donald Banu
Mrs Florianna Bero
Mr David Bosun

Mr Ron Day

Mr Torenzo Elisala
MrRon Enosa

Mr Keith Fell

Mr Wayne Guivarra
Mr Willie Lui

Mr Walter Makie

Mr Phillip Mills

Mr John Mosby

Mr Phillemon Mosby
Ms Nancy Pearson
Mr Raymond Soki

Mr Reginald Williams

Table 4-5

TSRA Board Attendance

In February 2011, the TSRA Board transitioned
from paper-based meeting booklets to an
electronic format. This was made possible
with the introduction of iPads. Following a brief
hands-on introductory lesson to demonstrate
the functionality of the iPads and the document
management software, all Members quickly

4 of 4 Board Meetings attended

2.5 of 4 Board Meetings attended

4 of 4 Board Meetings attended

2.5 of 4 Board Meetings attended

3 of 4 Board Meetings attended

4 of 4 Board Meetings attended

3 of 4 Board Meetings attended

3 of 4 Board Meetings attended

2 of 4 Board Meetings attended

2 of 3 Board Meetings attended (As at September 2010)
2.5 of 4 Board Meetings attended

3.5 of 4 Board Meetings attended

3 of 4 Board Meetings attended

4 of 4 Board Meetings attended

3.5 of 4 Board Meetings attended

Nil of 3 Board Meetings attended (Resigned March 2011)
4 of 4 Board Meetings attended

4 of 4 Board Meetings attended

1.5 of 4 Board Meetings attended

Resigned August 2010

2 of 4 Board Meetings attended

pooliPads has now been extended for usein all
TSRA governance meetings.

The iPads have reduced paper consumption by
85,000 A4 sheets of paper per year, and reduced
document production time from three days to
around ten minutes. This innovation has reduced
the TSRA’s environmental footprint and increased

began using the device. The use of the TSRA productivity.
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TSRA Board Member induction process

The TSRA has a comprehensive and formal
induction process for Board members. This

is being updated in preparation for the full
Board elections in 2012. The inductionis
delivered over a one week period and covers
the legislative framework, code of conduct,
separation of powers, administrative decision
making, the TSRA’'s committees, programs
and projects, member and executive member
responsibilities, media awareness training and
Board administration. The induction program
is delivered by the TSRA administration with
assistance from an external facilitator and subject
matter experts.

Induction of new TSRA Member

Mr Torenzo Elisala was appointed to the

TSRA Board in September 2010. The TSRA’s
Governance and Leadership Program conducted
aninduction session for Mr Elisala.

TSRA Board Member’s Code of Conduct

In 2010 the TSRA engaged the Australian
Government Solicitor to review the TSRA Board

The iPads have reduced
paper consumption by
85,000 A4 sheets of paper
per year, and reduced
document production time
from three days to around
ten minutes. This innovation
has reduced the TSRA’s
environmental footprint and
increased productivity.

Member’s Code of Conduct. The revised Code of
Conduct will be published in the first quarter, 2011
to 2012. Training in the new Code will be provided
to the current Board and is included in the Board
induction program for 2012.

Executive Coaching

TSRA Portfolio Members continued to receive
group coaching and one-on-one mentoring this
year. Executive coaching was provided though
an external coaching service, Frank van Schagen
and Associates. The coaching program ended in
September 2010 and will resume after the TSRA
Board election in March 2012.
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The Program Steering Committee (PSC) monitors
the performance of the TSRA’s programs and
operations. Each program consists of projects
and managed activities, contributing to the
outcomes identified in the Torres Strait and
Northern Peninsula Area Regional Plan 2009 -
2029. Programs are further defined in the Torres
Strait Development Plan 2009 - 2013.

The PSCincludes the TSRA General Manager,
Program Managers, Project Managers and the
Chief Financial Officer. The PSC has scheduled
quarterly meetings and also meets out-of-session
to deal with specific risks and issues. The PSC
prioritises resources across program boundaries,
ensuring that there is an outcome focussed
alignment between programs, strategies and
operational activities. Further details about
program reporting are contained in Section 2 of
this report.

The TSRA has established two Advisory
Committees, the TSRA Audit Committee and the
Indigenous Fisheries Advisory Committee (IFAC).

Membership of the TSRA Audit Committee
Mr Adrian Kelly

Ms Napcia Bin Tahal
Mr Phillemon Mosby
Mr Raymond Soki

Mr David Bosun

Table 4-6
TSRA Audit Committee Membership

TSRA Audit Committee

The TSRA Audit Committee, which consists of

four members, was established in accordance
with Section 32 of the Commonwealth Authorities
and Companies Act 1997 (Cth). The TSRA Board
isresponsible for the appointment of the Audit
Committee. The Committee provides independent
assurance and assistance to the TSRA Board on
therisk, control and compliance frameworks and
the TSRA’s external accountability responsibilities.

The Chairperson of the Audit Committee is an
independent member from Moore Stephens
Accountants and Advisors. The Chairperson of
the Audit Committee provides technical expertise
and experience, supplying advice on best
practice accounting and auditing standards in
the public sector environment. Special meetings
of the Audit Committee can be held if deemed
necessary by the Chairperson of the Committee.

Atthe TSRA Board Meeting in September 2010,
the TSRA Board endorsed the Member for Kubin,
Mr David Bosun as a member of the TSRA Audit
Committee. This followed the resignation of Mr
Raymond Soki, the Member for Dauan in August
2010.

Membership, meetings and attendance for the
TSRA Audit Committee is shown in the following
tables:

Chairperson and Independent Member of the TSRA Audit Committee
TSRA Member for Horn and Prince of Wales Islands

TSRA Member for Poruma Island

TSRA Member for Dauan Island to August 2010

TSRA Member for Kubin from September 2010
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2010 - 2011 Audit
Committee Dates

Apologies

31 August 2010
7 December 2010
23 February 2011 Nil

10 May 2011

Table 4-7
TSRA Audit Committee meetings

Attendance at TSRA Audit Committee Meetings
Mr Adrian Kelly

Ms Napcia Bin Tahal,

Mr Phillemon Mosby

Mr Raymond Soki

Mr David Bosun

Table 4-8
TSRA Attendance at Audit Committee meetings

Indigenous Fisheries Advisory Committee

In December 2010, the TSRA Board endorsed the
establishment of the Indigenous Fisheries Advisory
Committee (IFAC). The IFAC was established under
Section 142M of the Aboriginal and Torres Strait
Islander Act 2005 (Cth). The objectives of the IFAC
are to:

Provide a forum for the discussion of strategic
management and policy matters relevant to
Torres Strait Fisheries and act as an additional
medium for the flow of information between
the TSRA and Torres Strait communities.

Provide advice and make recommendations
to the TSRA Board with respect to:

investment of resources into capacity
building and support programs for
traditional fishers,

policy proposals and management
advice for Torres Strait fisheries,

Ms Napcia Bin Tahal, TSRA Member for Horn and Prince of Wales Islands

Ms Napcia Bin Tahal, TSRA Member for Horn and Prince of Wales Islands

Ms Napcia Bin Tahal, TSRA Member for Horn and Prince of Wales Islands

4 of 4 Audit Meetings attended
10of 4 Audit Meetings attended
4 of 4 Audit Meetings attended
Resignedin August 2010

2 of 3 Audit Meeting attended

policy direction and approach to
resource sharing and leasing,

engagement and establishment of
effective relationships with all fisheries
stakeholders, and

research strategic priorities and provide
advice onresearch proposals.

Establish sub-committees as required
to ensure the range of issues requiring
consideration are given proper attention.

Undertake additional functions on behalf of
the TSRA as determined by the TSRA Board.

The inaugural meeting of the Indigenous
Fisheries Advisory Committee will take place in
July 2011.
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The TSRA is enhancing the way it manages its
information. In 2010, an Information Management
Strategic Plan was developed to guide the
TSRA’s transition to an electronic information
management environment. A key achievement
was the successful implementation of an
Electronic Document and Records Management
System (EDRMS) in March 2011. Thisincluded a
complete migration of all electronic documents
into a single managed information store. The
TSRA s also finalising its records authority, which
will facilitate the disposal and archiving of legacy
paper-based information.

The TSRA has also improved its capacity

to connect staff and stakeholders with the
implementation of an Internet Protocol IP based
telephony solution across all of TSRA’s sites,
including seamless access by teleworkers. This
has provided improved connectivity for a growing
number of remotely based staff.

ESD Reporting
Requirement

TSRA Response

With an established infrastructure and
communications platform, the TSRA is now
standardising its client computing environment,
andin early 2011, began developing various client
computing solutions to meet the needs of its
diverse workforce. The objective of this project

is to improve productivity, increase energy
efficiency, reduce support overheads and realise
the benefits of a powerful server environment.

Environmental Sustainability

Section 516A of the Environment Protection
and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999 (Cth)
(EPBC Act) requires Australian Government
organisations to detail their environmental
performance and contribution to Ecologically
Sustainable Development (ESD). The table on
this page provides an overview of the TSRA’s
environmental activities and operations in
relation to Section 516A of the EPBC Act.

How the TSRA’'s
activities accord

with the principles of
ecologically sustainable
development.

Outcomes contributing
to ecologically
sustainable
development.

The TSRA has issued an environmental policy outlining measures to improve
its ecological sustainability. The policy is reviewed every two years. The next
review is scheduled for 2011 - 2012.

The TSRA's environmental risks are managed at the project, program and
portfolio level and are captured in the organisation’s Risks and Issues Registers.

The TSRA maintains an Environmental Legal and Other Requirements Register.

Environmental Management System (EMS) audits are conducted by the
TSRA’s Internal Auditor every two years. The next audit is scheduled in 2011 -
2012.

The TSRA’s Environmental Management Program contributes to ecologically
sustainable development across all Torres Strait and Northern Peninsula Area
Communities. This includes:

Improving animal management and pest control

Reducing waste management issues and environmental impact

Increasing the use of renewable energies

Managing the effects of climate change, specifically tidal inundation and
erosion.
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The TSRA is committed to
managing its operations
and those of its contractors
to minimise adverse
environmental impacts and
protect the environment.

ESD Reporting
Requirement

TSRA Response

Environmental impacts
of operations

Measures taken to
minimise environmental
impacts

The TSRA is committed to managing its operations and those of its contractors
to minimise adverse environmental impacts and protect the environment.
There were no recorded adverse environmental impacts from TSRA activities in
2010 -2011.

The TSRA requires its employees, contractors and suppliers to comply with the
TSRA’s Environment Policy and environmental management systems by:

— Implementing conservation measures in the TSRA'’s offices

-~ Minimising the environmental impacts through better design and material
selection for new staff housing

= Requiring contractors to comply with relevant environmental regulatory
requirements and minimum environmental performance requirements

= Managing and reporting environmental incidents.

The TSRA monitors a range of environmental performance indicators, including
energy use within TSRA offices, energy ratings of white goods purchased for
TSRA staff housing, fuel consumption and vehicle performance.

The TSRA has adopted appropriate technologies to reduce travel and its
dependency on paper-based filing systems. This includes:

—~ Telephone and video conferencing facilities

— Use of iPads at all formal meetings, reducing paper consumption by
85,000 A4 sheets per year

-~ Introducing an electronic document and records management system

The TSRA has modernised its computing operations and has adopted virtual
technologies as far as possible, to reduce the number of physical servers
required to support business. The reduction to just two physical servers

has significantly reduced energy consumption in relation to server power
and cooling. The TSRA plans to implementing energy saving measures

for workstations in 2011 - 2012, which will further reduce the impact of its
computing environment.

Table 4-9

Compliance with the EPBC Act, Section 516A (Environmental Reporting)
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Risk Management The TSRA emphasises management of risk that is:

The TSRA faces risks that can significantly affect 1) dynamic-responsive to change and

the achievement of its objectives; risk is inherent assists corporate learning and continuous
in the achievement of its corporate strategies and improvement.

in attaining the objectives of its programs and 2) systematic - rigorous, transparent and

projects at every level of activity. explicit and taking into account stakeholder

While the TSRA aims to minimise risks in critical perspectives.
areas such as health, safety and the environment 3)
itadopts a risk managed approach to decision-
making, and devolves the management of

risk to the most appropriate level within the
organisation. The TSRA has formal risks and
issues management processes for all projects,
managed activities and programs

integrated and embedded in so far as
practicable into established management
planning, decision-making and reporting
processes.

Risk management at TSRA is based on the better
practice principles and processes, outlined in
the International Standard AS/NZ31000:2009
Risk Management - principles and guidelines on
implementation.

b
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Accountability

External Scrutiny

The TSRA is a statutory authority of the Australian
Government and is accountable to the Federal
Parliament and the Minister for Families, Housing,
Community Services and Indigenous Affairs
(FaHCSIA).

The Auditor-General is the TSRA’s external auditor.

The audit of the TSRA’s financial statements is
conducted in accordance with an audit strategy as
agreed to by the Auditor-General and the TSRA.
The 2010 - 2011 Audit was conducted in August
2011; a copy of the Independent Auditor’s report
including the Auditor’s Opinion is provided as
part of the Financial Statements in Section 5 of
this Annual Report.

Fraud Control

The TSRA has implemented a fraud

control framework in accordance with the
Commonwealth Fraud Control Guidelines 2011.
The TSRA’s Fraud Control policy was revised in
May 2011 with the assistance of FAaHCSIA’s Fraud
Control and Compliance Branch. The review
was under taken to ensure that the TSRA’s fraud
control framework remains relevant to the TSRA’s
business needs. Noincidences of fraud were
reported or detected during the year.

Internal Audit

The TSRA Board has established the TSRA
Audit Committee as a key component of our
governance framework. The Audit Committee
isresponsible for reviewing internal and
external audit reports and for monitoring the
implementation of audit recommendations.
The Audit Committee’s charter provides the
framework for the conduct of the internal audit
functionin the TSRA and has been approved by
the Board on the advice of the Audit Committee.

The external contractor, PDM Consultancy, is
responsible forimplementing the TSRA’s internal
audit program, which aims to provide assurance

The TSRA is a statutory
authority of the Australian
Government and is
accountable to the
Federal Parliament and
the Minister for Families,
Housing, Community
Services and

Indigenous Affairs.

that key risks are being managed effectively and
efficiently, including compliance with regulatory
requirements and policies.

Compliance Report

In accordance with Section 16(1)(c) of the
Commonwealth Authorities and Companies

Act 1997 (Cth) the TSRA provided the Finance
Minister and the Minister for Families, Housing
Community Services and Indigenous Affairs with
aletter from TSRA Directors. The letter advised
that the TSRA had:

» complied with the provisions and
requirements of the Commonwealth
Authorities and Companies Act 1997 (Cth).

» complied with the provisions and
requirements of the Commonwealth
Authorities and Companies Regulations
1997 and Commonwealth Authorities and
Companies (Report of Operations) Orders
2008 (as amended or replaced).

A Compliance Index is incorporated as Section

7 of this Annual Report and a table, Compliance
with Australian Government Statutes and Policies,
is shown in Appendix 6.

Indemnities and Insurance Premiums for
Officers

The TSRA has comprehensive insurance
cover with the Australian Government insurer
Comcover for its Board Members and officers. In
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accordance with the contract of insurance with
Comcover, the TSRA is prohibited from disclosing
the details of this insurance.

Directors’ Interests Policy

In accordance with the Commonwealth
Authorities and Companies Act 1997 (Cth), the
TSRA Board has a policy and process to manage
all direct and indirect conflicts of interest,

including aregister of all Directors’ pecuniary
interests and a requirement for each Director

to make a formal declaration of their interests

at each Board meeting. The declarations are
recorded in the minutes of the meeting which

are distributed to all communities through their
elected Board members. The pecuniary interest
processes apply to all governance committees of
the TSRA.

Ugar Island.
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The majority of TSRA’'s employees are located at
TSRA facilities on Thursday Island, Queensland.
In February 2011 the TSRA established an office
in Cairns to reduce the size of its footprint on
Thursday Island and to increase its capacity to
attract skills not available in the Torres Strait.

Highlights in 2010 - 2011 included the recruitment
of 21 Rangers into the TSRA’s Environmental
Management Program and the introduction of a
Performance Development Program for all TSRA
employees.

All TSRA staff operate under the TSRA
Enterprise Agreement 2009 - 2011. The terms
and conditions of employment are set out in this
agreement which, while designed to end on 30
June 2011, will remain in effect until replaced by
the 2011-2013 agreement. The salary ranges for
staff covered under the Enterprise Agreement
range from $37,256 for an APS level 1 staff
member to $114,555 for an EL2 staff member.

Between May and July 2011, the TSRA human
resources team worked with various stakeholders
to negotiate a new Enterprise Agreement for the
period 2011-2014. The TSRA expects the new
agreement to bein place by October 2011.

The human resources and payroll company
Frontier Software Pty Ltd provides software and
support services so that the TSRA can provide
payroll and leave services in-house.

The TSRA’s employees attended internal and
external training courses throughout the year
including program and project management
training, career development assessment centre
participation, cross cultural awareness training,
Indigenous career trek workshops, career

development training, leadership training and
effective writing skills.

As part of their induction, all new TSRA
employees complete the Australian Public
Service Commission’s (APS) Introduction to the
APS, which is delivered as an on-line program.

All TSRA employees attended Fraud Awareness
workshops to raise awareness and knowledge
regarding fraud and its effects on the TSRA. The
TSRA also uses a wide range of computer based
training products to assist staff with computer
programs including all Microsoft applications,
customer service skills, and telephone
techniques.

The TSRA continues to fulfil its responsibilities
under the Occupational Health and Safety Act
1991 (Cth). The TSRA has a Health and Safety
Committee consisting of TSRA staff, who are
responsible for developing and implementing
strategies to protect employees from risks to their
health and safety.

There were no accidents or dangerous
occurrences during the year that arose out of the
conduct of undertakings by TSRA that required
the giving of notice under Section 68.

There were no investigations conducted during
the year that related to undertakings carried out
by TSRA and there were no notices given to the

TSRA under Section 29, 46 or 47 during the year.

The Health and Safety Committee works
cooperatively to manage all of the TSRA’s
occupational health and safety policy and
operational matters. Staff members are informed
of current issues and receive occupational health
and safety publications from Comcare. The TSRA
has trained staff who undertake duties as first aid
officers, fire wardens and occupational health
and safety officers.
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The TSRA has an active injury management
strategy in place and continues to use the
services of an occupational therapist to provide
ergonomic support to new employees and

any employees experiencing pain or injury.
Onssite flu vaccinations and a healthy lifestyle
reimbursement of up to $200 per year are
available to all employees.

The TSRA has a Preventing Bullying and
Harassment Policy in place and two trained
Harassment Contact Officers are available to
provide employee support. The TSRA engages
Commonwealth Rehabilitation Services to
provide short-term, confidential counselling
services to all employees.

The TSRA is an Equal Employment Opportunity
(EEO) employer and upholds the Australian Public
Service Values. The TSRA provides a workplace
thatis free from discrimination and recognises
the diversity of the Indigenous community

that it serves. All TSRA staff receive up to date
information on key developments in the human
resources sector such as EEO, harassment

free workplaces and workplace diversity.

Staff can also access publications from the
Australian Public Service Commission (APSC),
the Department of Education, Employment and
Workplace Relations (DEEWR) and other related
agencies.

EEO statistical information is collected during the
recruitment of TSRA staff and is provided to the
Australian Public Service Commission. The TSRA’s
statistical data on EEO is set out on page 116.

The TSRA fosters and promotes industrial
democracy through regular management,
program area and staff meetings. As appropriate,
it consults with employees on:

Major workplace changes

The development of guidelines and policies
applying to employment conditions

Implementation of an Enterprise Agreement.

The TSRA has a significant property portfolio
which includes office accommodation at two sites
on Thursday Island; residential accommodation,
consisting of 38 houses and apartments; and the
Gab Titui Cultural Centre. The TSRA also owns
and maintains Green Hill Fort. Green Hill Fortis a
Listed Place on the Commonwealth Heritage List.

During the 2010 - 2011 financial year, the

TSRA, managed the construction of eight new
residential apartments. The development was
finalised in February 2011 and provides quality
accommodation for TSRA staff and their families.
This development has helped to reduce demand
ontheregion’s rental property market.

The Privacy Commissioner did not issue a report
onthe TSRA under Section 30 of the Privacy Act
1988 (Cth) and no personal privacy complaints
were made against the TSRA during the reporting
period.
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Changes to disability reporting in annual reports

Since 1994, Commonwealth departments and
agencies have reported on their performance as
policy adviser, purchaser, employer, regulator
and provider under the Commonwealth Disability
Strategy. In2007 - 08, reporting on the employer
role was transferred to the Australian Public
Service Commission’s State of the Service Report
and the APS Statistical Bulletin. These reports are
available at www.apsc.gov.au. From 2010 - 2011,
departments and agencies are no longer required
toreport on these functions.

The Commonwealth Disability Strategy has
been overtaken by a new National Disability
Strategy which sets out a ten year national policy

Thursday Island.
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framework for improving life for Australians
with disability, their families and carers. A high
level report to track progress for people with
disability at a national level will be produced by
the Standing Council on Community, Housing
and Disability Services to the Council of
Australian Governments and will be available
atwww.fahcsia.gov.au. The Social Inclusion
Measurement and Reporting Strategy agreed
by the Government in December 2009 will also
include some reporting on disability matters in
its reqular How Australia is Faring report and,
if appropriate, in strategic change indicators in
agency Annual Reports. More detail on social
inclusion matters can be found at
www.socialinclusion.gov.au.
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Staff classification at 30 June 2011

Classification Total Number of Staff

PEO 1

Executive Level 2 6

Executive Level 1 18

APS 6 21

APS5 14

APS 4 9

APS3 11

APS2 9

APS1 18

Trainee 1

Total 108
Table 4-10 & .=
TSRA’s Staff Classification Charlie Kaddy, Project Manager Policy and Engagement,

atthe TSRA Planning workshop.

Representation of EEO Groups within classification levels at 30 June 2011
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Australian National

Audit Office

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT

To the Minister for Families, Housing, Community Services and Indigenous AfTairs

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Torres Strait Regional
Authority for the year ended 30 June 2011, which comprise: a Statement by the Directors,
Chief Exccutive and Chicf Financial Officer; the Statemem of Comprehensive Income;
Balance Sheet; Statement of Changes in Equity; Cash Flow Statement; Schedule of
Commitments; Schedule of Asset Additions; and MNotes comprising 2 Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies and other explanatory information.

Directors' Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The directors of the Torres Strait Regional Authority are responsible for the preparation of
the financial statements that give a truc and fair view in accordance with the Finance
Minister's Orrders made under the Commonwealth Authorities and Companies Aet 1997,
incheding the Australian Accounting Standards, and for such intemal control as the
directors determine is necessary 1o enable the preparstion of the financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or error.

Auditar’s Responsibilipy

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial sistements based on my awdit.
I have conducted my audit in accordance with the Australian National Audit Office
Auditing Standards, which incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. These suditing
standards require that 1 comply with relevant cthical requirements relating to sudit
engagements and plan and perform the audit 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from matenial misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures 1o obiain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
Judgement, including the assessmemt of the risks of material misstalement of the financial
statements, whether due 1o fraud or emor. In making these risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the Torres Sirait Regional Authority’s preparation of
the financial staternents that give a tue and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectivencss of the Torres Strait Regional Authority's intemal control, An audit
also includes evaluating the appropristeness of the sccounting policies used and the
reasonableness of scoounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements,

GPO Ban TOT CANBERRA ACT Ji1
19 Mitinal Cirout BARTOM AZT
P (33) 4300 TIOD Fas (1) 6200 7777
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I believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my audit opinion,

Independence

In conducting my audit, 1 have followed the independence requirements of the Australian
National Audit Office, which incorporate the requirements of the Australian accounting
profession.

Opirion
In my opinion, the financial statements of the Torres Strait Regional Authority:

{a) have been prepared in accondance with the Finance Minister's Onders made under
the Commonwealth Awthorities and Compenies Aet 1997, including the Australian
Accounting Standards; and

(b} give a true and fair view of the matters required by the Finance Minister's Orders
including the Tomes Strait Regional Authority’s financial position as at
30 June 2001 and of its financial performance and cash flows for the vear then
ended.

Australian National Audit Office

Colin Bienke
Senior Director

Delegate of the Auditor-General

Canberra
& September 2011
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TORRES STRAIT RECIONAL AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Tor the year ended 30 June 2001
1 2010

Noles S 000 5000
EXPENSES
Emploves benefits 3A 8,066 8417
Suppliers 3B 11652 12,637
Ciranls 3C 53,988 48,894
Depraciation iD 20 706
Writa=down and impanment of asssts 3E 150 580
Total Expenses 75,726 71,234
LESS:
OWNSOURCE INCOME
(IR SO Urce FEVERnue
Sale of goods and rendering of senviees 44 499 486
Inberest 4B LoSn 1,447
Other AC 6,688 3,681
Total oW n-ssurce revenue 1277 3614
Cains
Reversals of previous asset write-downs 4D 358 27
Other gains 4E - 1
Total gains 358 18
Total owmn. wuros lycons 9635 5642
Mol cost of services i, 191 65,592
Bevene from Govemment AF 69,758 67,391
Surplus attributalde io the Avdralian Governnsent LT 1,799
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Changes in asset revaluation reserves 3644 (157)
Total other comprehensive income L4 (157)
Total comprebensive income 7.311 1,642
Total comprelwnsive income atlrilutable o the Australian Government 7.311 1,642

The above statement should be read in conjunction with te accompanying notes,
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TORRES STRAIT REGIONAL AUTHORITY

BALANCE SHEET
as al 30 June 2001
a1 2010

Notes & (00 5000
ASSETS
Finandal Asseis
Cash and cazh equivalents S5A 21,057 32,551
Trade amd other receivables B 11.117 6,833
Tolal Moandal assels 32174 309,384
Non-Finandal Assefs
Land mmd aldings 6A.C 27,425 21,286
Plant and equipsment 6B,C 1,565 685
Total non finandal assets 28900 21,971
Total Assels 61,164 61,355
LIABILITIES
Payables
Soppliers TA (2,079 (2,601)
Granis B (236) (11,955)
Cther TC (4,759 [430)
Total payables (7,07 4) (14,986}
Provisions
Employes provisions 8A (2,130} (1,720}
Total provisions (2,130 {1,720
Total Liabilitices (9,204) [16,706)
MNel Assels 51,960 44,649
EQUITY
Contributed equity K rl a2
Reserves 12,534 8800
Retained surplus 39304 35727
Total Equity 51,960 44,649

The above statement should be read in conjumetion with the accompanying notes.

Financial Statements

TORRES STRAIT REGIONAL AUTHORITY | ANNUAL REPORT 2010-2011 125



‘saou Suriuedusosoe o) yita wonum s Ux peal o PIOYE ASURTES aAOqe o],

DU R EL AT DR R ARSI S0 O < O RN U1 S 0ins [eg] mn-—_m-.-_.u

STUFE 96 1E iE (43 0688 FEsEl LTL'SE F6E'6E
TH'T TIE'L = - fsm O GEL'T L99'E TLAUNCDAGT) TRTRIENY 1) O S[qEmg Loy’
I JO
L¥a'1 TIE'L = Lsm o G6L'T LIV'E Aoou| aarsaagaadmos Eyo
S6L°T L9%'g = " E = 65T L99'¢ pottad aap 1oy snjdmsg
LET) FFYE = (SR }] ey - FUIDII AAISUARIIII0D I
MO0 2 st s o oy
Lo CF [T i€ i LFO'S [T BI6'EE LEL'SE aouepeq supade pasnfpy
LT [T iE if LYD'6 [T RIA'EE LIL'SE pouad snoraznd L0 PIEANY] PaLLIED IUERH
aouepeg supuado

LIRS D005 [LTTR LIS 00§ 005 000g LIRS

LT LLOT 010z LIOT (] (i LT 010T LT
Anpba o gl ey A b AL S0 0 PULIES [l
PR T Ll DL DA ER R

[L0T HUN[* (f Papua Jead Ay Jof
ALINOHA M SAONYHD 0 INIAWALVLS
ALBOHLOV TVNOIDHE LIVHLS STHHOL

TORRES STRAIT REGIONAL AUTHORITY | ANNUALREPORT 2010-2011

126

SINIFWILVLISTVIONVNIL | SNOILI3S



TOHEREES STRAIT REGIONAL AUTHORITY
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the year ended 30 June 2011

FLNN 2010

Motes S $7000
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash receivied
Goods and services 56009 4,552
Receipts from Govenument 69,758 67,391
Interest 1,985 1,038
Met GST receivad 5,771 6,414
Tatal cash received 83,123 79,395
Cash used
Emplovess (7,65T) (T.511)
Suppliers (14,475) (13,519)
Loan payments ()] (409)
Grants {69,513) (42, 408)
Total cash used (91,657 _ (T0,846)
Nt cash Nows from operating activitics 9 (5,534 8,549
INVESTING ACTIVITIFS
Cash received
Lean receipls Tod 971
Total cash received Tivd 971
Cash used
Loan payments ( 1My (547)
Purclmse of property, plant and equiprment (3.624) (1,888}
Total cash used (3,724) (2,435)
Net cash Mows Mrom investing activities {2, 9610) (1,464)
el Increase In cash held (11,494) TORS5
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period 32,551 25,466
Cash and cash equivalents ot the end of the reporting period A 21,087 32,551

The above statement should be rzad in conpnction with the accompanying notes.
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TORRES STRAIT REGIONAL AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF COMMITMENTS.

s il 30 Jume 20011

01 2010
BY TYPE £ £000
Comesliments recelvable
Sublewas renial income 1,178 1.7
Wl GET recoverstie on commtments 46 7
Tota commiiments rece vahle 1324 135
Commaitments pavable
CHher commilments payablec
Operating leases 1,144 419
Project commitments 2 1,268
Totnl other commsbtments 114 1687
Nt commlimsents by [ype 180 [
BY MATURITY
Commltments recovable
Operaling lesse | noome
Ol Year of less 247 L
From one o five years 1,031 1007
Tota operating lesoe |nosme 1278 .2
Net GST commitnsents peorvabie
O year or less n 7
From one Lo five yess 2% =
Total Net GST commmi tmsenis reodvable 46 id
Operating lewse comeilmonts payable
e year o less 612 ]
From one (o five years 0 147
Totul operatng lesse oomellments piry able 1.144 419
Frofect Commlisemts Payable
O year of less - L.26%
Total project commitments payable 128
Net Profect Commitments by Maturity 180 [EEIN)

Ciperating leases inchuded are ¢ffectively non-cancellable and compe
Commbiments Hecelvalle

The Tomes Strail Fegional Ambority (T3RA) receives rantal inconte fron te
provision of dafl housing, This is a nevessry acivily given the peographic location
amd houmirg, avalabilaty i the Tormes Strat.

Lewse for offioe and resldental acoomemodation

Lease paryments exisd for 3 office accommodkations. The beses incremses ol TP each
year. Cne bease is for s penod of 4 years with sa option to extend for 1 addtional
e, the second dease is for a period of 2 years with mn option to extend for m
addional 2 vears and the thard lesse is for 2 peniod of 3 years with an opion to exiend
For aan bl ioneal 3 years,

The TERA curnenlly Ieses 12 houses for stall’ smd contrctor sccommodation. Lesss
Aot rawge Erom | meonth Lo 2 years with varyving expiry daes. Two of thees leses
T the option o exend fior | farther vear.

Agroceest For tle provisbon of mosor velilcdes

Cme vebdcle & leasad for serdor executive officer use, Four vehicles sre lessed for
operating activities of the TSRA. There are no contisgeent rentals and mo rendwal o
prnchawse optiores are anvnlalde Lo the TSRA

Leases: for Informatbon amd commanication technalogy el pesent

Lewses we in place for standend offlce equipment for operating activities of'the TSRA
Kmes sre Gixed For the benm of all leses with no porchase options mvaikable. Two multi:
Fumctibom device leascs began in Docemnber 2008 for 8.4 yeur tenm and two multi-
Fmction device leaes bagan in Novesnber 2006 for a 17 month teem. These ane no
options for exicrsion on these bease rrsngements.

Thie schedide sboudd b readd in conjaction wilh U socompanying notes.
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Index to the Notes to the Financial Statements
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TORRES STRAIT REGIONAL AUTHORITY
Notes bo and forming part of ihe Maancial stitements
Tor the year ended 30 June 2001

: Summary of Significant Accounting

1.0 Ohbjective of the Torres Strait Regiomal Authority

The Torres Sirait Regional Authonty (TSEA) is an Australian Government controlled entity. The
oljective of the Tomes Strait Regional Authority ix to achieve a better quality of life and develop an
economic base for Torres Serant [slander and Aboripinal persone lving in the Tomres Sorait

The TARA is structured fo et one

Progress Wowunds closimg the gap For Torres Struol Islander and Aborigined peaple lving

in the Torres Strail Region toowgh devedopmsent planning, cocrdination, sustainable

resonrce managenwent, amd preseraton and promobon of Indigenons cultare,

The continued existence of the TSRA in ite present form and with ite present programs (& depesdent on
Government policy and on continming fimding by Parliament for the TS RA' adminiswration and programe.

1.2 Basis of Preparation of e Fimancial Statements
The finarcial stements and notes ane requived by clanse 1(b) of Schedule 1 to the Commmorniealth
Avrthorririas el Compaarades At T9P7,
The finamaal statemenits have been prepaned in acoordanee with:
+ Fimmnee Minoster™s Orders (FMO) for reporting penods ending on or aller 1 July 2000; and
= Amstralian Acconnting Standards and Intespretatione izened by the Anstralian Accounting Standards
Board (AASHE) that apply for the reporting period.
The finamcinl sttements have been prepared on an scomal basis aed in secordance with historical cost

convention, except for certain aspes and linkilities at fair valoe, Except whene stated, no allowance i
e for the effiect of chmnging prices on e resulty or the firmmem] position.

The finamaul statements are presented in Australian dollirs und vilues we rounded 1o the nearest housand
dullars unless ollwrwise spod Gl

Unless an allermmtive treatment i specifically required by an aecounting stewdind or the FMOS, assels und
lzablitios ano Il.\w.i.ﬂ.lll in the balanee shoet whien and ul.lly whon it is puub-ut.' Unal future woonomic
bevefits will flow to TSHA o a fithire sacnfice of econame benefits aall be requined and the amoumnts of
the asscts or liabilitics can be reliably measured. However, asmets and liabdlitics axising under agreemonts
wqually propocticnately unperformed are not recognised unless requined by am secounting standard
Liabilities and assete that are usrecognised are reported in the schedule of commasments or the schednle of
conlingencies.

Unless albermntive trentment is specfically requized by an accounting standsed, income umd expenses are
recognised in the 5 mtement of Comprebensive Income when and only when the flow, conrmption or bes
of economic benefite has oocurred and can be reliably measaned,

13 Significant Acoomnting Judgements amd Estimates

In the process of applying e socounting policies listed in this note, e TSRA hes made the following
udzenvents that beve the moet signi ficant impmet on the ansonnte recorded in the financial statements:

= The faix value of land snd buildings has been taken to be the market value of similar properties as
determined by an independent valuer ar detxibed in Node 1,16,
= The initial fuir valve of concessional loans i talen to be the present valse of all fitre cash receipis,
discounted nring the prevailing market rate of mberest fior instnaments of a mmilar srcture (earmency,
R, by of Enderost mbe, coodit fsk). Sulsequently the valwe of te loam s derived by applying the
amortised coat neing e effective interest method, with the initial market rmte ar the effective mbe, and
ambcpated cagh flows based on contracted repayment terme, resalhng in the igation of the
discount ever the anticipabed life of the lean.
Mo accounting aseumptiong of estimabes hive been identified that have a agmficant nsk of caang a
mesterisd asdjustment to cunrying amounts of sssets and liabilitses within the mext socounting pericd,

Financial Statements
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No scoounting simwdand has been adopbed esrlier than the application date as stted in the stamdend
The following smending standards was issucd prior to the sign-off date, were applicable to the curent
reporting peniod mnd bad o firsmeisl impact on the enfity:

1) AASE D093 Frarther Amencimenty 80 Austealian A conming Skondardr aristg from e Armeal
dmprovemerals Profect (AASE 5, AASH 8 AASH 101, AASH 107, AASE 117, AASH 118 AASH 136
& AASH 139)

The Samdard smends eight standands reruliing from the LASE Anneal Improvements Project. The
amvenudment of greatest imenest 10 the TSHA is Likely 10 be:

= cush [lows undir AASHE 107 are anly claseiliod a0 investing cash (w01 the undilying sl was
recogniped in the balance shed,

Omly expenditures that resulied in @ recogrised aset in the statement of flzancial position have been
claswified as cash Nows From isvesting activities.

Cther mew sinndards, nevised lnrds, imlery ons and dments that were issued prior io the sign-
alT datw and are applicable o the eament neportig period did mot have 2 Gl impact, md ane mal
wxpected to kave a fuhure financial impact on the entity

Crrere Assirglian ocogafing 5 (Al e e o

The fllowing new standards, revised standards, interpretations and améndments wene ienved by the
Amatralen Accounting Stndards Beard prior to the sgn-ofT date, which are expectod to kave o finamcal
impact cm the emtity for fisture reporting peniods:

i) AASE 124 Reloted Party Discfomores {spplies year ended 30 fune 2012)

The muin changes 0 AASH 124 that may afTect the public secior and the TSRA are

= gimyili fiew the defimitson of o related party;
= peduon for dasd b one with the entity's controlling govermment, of with othir
entities controlled or mfluenced by that govemment.

Parsgraphs 1-28 do not apply 10 nol -for-profit public sector entifies.

The amended defimition of & related peaty i clearer in differentiating betwoen parties that are persoes o
enties. TERA will apply the amended standard firom | July 2011, Hewever, there will be no impact on
any of the anised im the Financial

i) AASE 20104 Further Amencimenir fo Austraiian Accewnting Stadands artring from the Al
fmprovemenis Project (npplics year ended 30 fune 2012)

This amending stimdard makes changes Aowing from the LAS s annmal improvements project

The mein amendment is 1o paragraph |06 snd sddition of parsgraph 1064, all owisg reconcilistions of
other comprehensave incomse i be presented either in the steiement of changes in equity or in the notes,
Subjed to the requirements under FMOs, the TSRA will have an option 1o present comprehensive income
wither in the statemont of changes in eqaity of in the nodea

i} AASE O Finarwial Futnments (spplies yeur ended 30 hme 3014}
The TASE project is to replace TAS 39 (AASE 139) in three phases:

1. classification & memsurement

2, imrpacirm et methodology

3. hedge accounting

AASE @ ropresenta the fleet phase, st beast in respect of Bnancial asets. It reduces four categories of’
finsmciad aeset o twor amortised cost and S value.

Undet AASH @, aswets are o be at fiur value anles S
= are held to colled cash fowe, snd
= are solely paynvent of interest and principal cn specified dates.

Am oplion exists bo mearure al fadr valwe hrough profit and loss, i7die redwees an inoonsisoncy.

Crains/losses on axects camied af fair valve ace tben to profithoss wsless:

» they are oquity mstraments, and

= they mre not hekid for trading. amd

* the emtity initially elects o recogetse gainalosses in other comprehensive incoms,
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This will impact the financial isc] ol TSRA e will simmilify the currem! calegories of
finmial asects. There will be no impact on TSEA's sccounting For financial Labdlities.

iv) AASE 1051 dppication of Thers of. lewr Accommting Stewdards snd AASE 2010-2
Amessdments 1o Auwriralion Accotrling Skl ariting from Reduced Disclorire Requirerenis
(etfective year ended 30 June 2014}

AASH 1053 was rebeased in June 2000 amd implonents 3 two-tierad reporting framework for general
purpoes fissmcial reporting by Australian reporting entitice. Tier | comprisce Australian Accounting
Stamdards. Tier 2 comprisce the recognition and mesurement requitemente of Anstralian Accounting
Stamdmds, with substmntially reduced disclosure requirements. Tier 2 wall be known s Awstrulian
Accoumting Standards - Redocad Disdosure Requirements.

Foe-peodit private sector reporting entities with public sccoumtability, snd federal, state, temitory and local
govermnanents, must repoet in accordance with Tier 1. This will include TSRA. Therefone the two
standands have o impact on the fimancia] stllements of TSEA.

Other new standards, revised standands, interpretations and amendments that were issued price to the sign-
off date and are applicable to the fisore reporting period arce not expected to have o fatere financial mpact
an the entiry.

1.5 Revense

Ravemue fiom fw sale of goods s recopmisal wlm:

2) The nicks and rewands of owmership have been transfored to the boyer,

b) The TSRA retang no masasgenal invelvemant nor affiective control over the goods

) The revenue ind trmsaction costs incurred cm be reliably measured: md

d) I ig probable St the econcanic benefits amocated with the trasaction will flow to

the TSRA.

Receivables for goods and services, which have 30 day temms, are recogeased 3t the nominad ameunts due
Do any impmrment allowance sccomnl. Collectability of debits i reviewed as al the end of reporting,
period. Allvwimces are mide when collectabnlity of the debt 1= mo lomger probalile.

Inferost revenise 18 rocognised namg the effective interest methad as set out in AASH 139

Fowncial Instrueversts: Recognilion and Meaiurcament .

Miesourcey Recelved Froc of Charge

Resources received firee of charge nre recogimised s gains when, and only when, & fuir value can be

relimbly determined and the services would herve been purchesed if ey had net been domated. Use of
thowe IEoUIce i Docouniad dF 4n CXpoee.

Resources received free of charge ure recorded ns either revenne or gains depemding on thar nihare,
Contrnbutions of asets at mo cost of scquation of for nominal conmderason are rocoprnised as gang 3
their fir value when the amet qualifies for recognition, wmless received from snother Govemsont agency

or suthority 55 0 consequence of 3 restnacturing of sdministrative armasg ements (this did not occur in 2010-
11 o 200510}

Revenne frow Gov ‘
Funding recaved o recenvabile from i (approprinted to e ageney as a CAC Ad bady payment
Tl fior gy wTERA) s ised as Rivemue from Gosernmon! wailass they are in e mture of an
ety injection or a loan,

Lareol Logwe Paymuonts Scheawe

The TSRA offectied amounts received under Parental Leave Payments 5 cheme {for payment to
employess) by amounts paid o employees under that schome, becanse these unssctions are ondy
incidental to the main revenue-genersting sctivities of the TSRA. Amounts received by the TSRA not yet
pand to emnployess would be presented gross as cash and a lababty (payable). The totmal amount receved
under thas sclemie 15 disclosed a2 a footmate to the Note AF: Revense foom Oovernment.

1.6 Cains

Rexourcey Recelved Froc of Charge

Resources received free of charge ure recogmised as gains when, and only when, a fxir value can be
relimbly determined and the services would berve been purclmsed i ey hed not beon dosated. Use of
thoes paource i recounid as an expoe.

Resources recaved fiee of chge are recordind as ether revenvse of gang doponding on thar natere,
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Contributions of assets af no cost of acquisition or for mommnal consderaton ane recogmised as gains o
thear fidr valive when the asset qualifies For recognation, unless received [rom another CGovernmenl agency
or authority as a consequence of a restchening of adméndreeative arrangements (this did nos cocur in 2000
11 o8 2008-10).

Sale of Asrety
Gaing from disposal of mon-financial assets are recopnised when control of the asset has passed to the
hayer

1.7 Tramactions with the Govermment as Owner

Eguity lufecrions
Amounts that ane designabed as oquity inections for a year are recopnised directly in contributed equity in
thnt yur.

Other Distributions fo Qvnery

The FMOw roquire that distrilations o cwners be debibed o contributed equity unless in the nature of a
fividond

LY Employes Benelils

Liailities for ehore-term employes benefits (ar defimed in AASE 119 Emplayes Serfits ) and termination
benefite due within twelve menthe of the end of the reporting period are measued af their sominal

The nominal amonnt i& caloalated with regand 1o the rates expected to be paid on settlement of the liability.

Other long-term employes benelits are messnined xs met total of the present valee of the defined benefit
obiligation al the end of the reporting penod minae the fiir valse at the end of the repartimg penad of plan
aseets (if any) out of which the ohligations are to be setiled directly.

Larve

The lishility for employee bemefits inchsder provison for anmual leave amd long rervice leave. A provision
tor pereonal leave payable aleo exiets for a gelect number of etaft as personal leave 1# vestg for these
staff dwe to a clanse in their employmeent sgresment

The leave labilities are calculated on the basis of employeess” remuneration at the extimated slary raice
theat applied at the ime the berve ie taken, including the TSRA'S employer superanmization confrbition
rates o the extent that the leve 1 likely 1o be taken during service rather than pand ot on termination.

Thee linhility for long service leuve hos beom determined by referemce to the work of wn nctusry o ot 30
Jume 2011, The extimate of the presemt value of the lisbility takes into account sttrition rates sl pay
indreases thromgh promotion and milason.

Y arid Healimmdanoy

Pravazion 15 made for separation and redendancy benefit payments. The TSRA recognises a provison for
termuination when it has developed a detiled formal plan for the terminations and hag informed thoes
wmnploneos alfoctod that it willl cary out the erminstions.

Superannuation

Stafl ol the TSRA are members of e Commonwealth Superanmuation Scheme (C55), the Public Sector
Supenmmuation Scheme (PS3) or the P33 sccumulation plun (PSSap).

The 53 and PSS are defined benefit schemes for the Anstralean CGovernment. The FASap is a defined
contribusion scheme.

The lisbility For defined bemefite is recognieed in the finencial staicmants of the Australian Government
and i# settled by the Australian Government in due course. This Liability ie reported by the Department of
Frnamoe and Deregulation as an admmimstened 1em.

The TERA mukes employer comtributions to the employ il b k al mtes d ined by
an actuary & be sufficient to meet the cost to the Governmeent. The TSRA accounts for the contributions
ak i they were contnbutions to defined bution plans.

The lishility for superssnustion recognised as ot 30 Jume represents outstumding contributions for the
firell ortnight of the year.
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19 Lexes

A distinetion ir made betwoen finance leares mnd operating beaees, Finamoo lowece eifoctively transfer
from the lesscr to the lerses mubwimntially all the risks and rewnrds incidental to cwnership of leased
aszels, An opernting lease is m bease that is not & finmce lexse. [n opemling lesses, the lessor effectively
setaing substantially all such risks and benefite

The TS RA diws not e any finanoo leakes.

Operating lese paymenls are expensed on a sirmght line basiz which s represemtative of e pattem of
benefits derrved from the lased assete. In 2010-11, the TSRA beased five valodos, office sccommaodation
and epspment, ¢ ial amd reidential property for the operation of the cfganisation

L10 Crants

Maost grant agreoments roquire the grantos o perfonm serviees, provide fualives, of lo meel cligitality
ceiteria. In there coses, the TSEA recoymases gt Lisbilities cndy to the extent that te services pequined
Teave been performed oc the eligrbility critera have been satisfed by tve grates.

I cases where grnt ngreements me made without conditions 1o be momtored, abilities are recogmised on
1.11 Cash

Cash ind cash equivalents mcludes Gash om hard and demand deposils in bank acoommis with an oniginal
meturity of 3 months of less that sre readily comvertzble to Lnown amesie of cadh and palyect to
insigmificamt risk of changes in value. Cash is recognised o its nominal amesmt.

1.12 Fimamcinl Assels

The TARA classifies its firmmcial assets in the Follewing categery:

Aoans amd recevables.
The classification depends on the nabare and prpese of e fi il wssety mnd is o aned at the time
af mital recognition.
F ial asscts are recognised mnd derecogmisad upon tmde dale.
Lifective faterest Mt

The effective interest method i 8 method of calculating the amoctised cowt of & financial asset and of
allocating inlerest income over the relevamt period. The effective ineorest mbe is the rate that ety
dipcounts estimiated fistue cash receipts throwgh the expected Life of the fimamcial anset, or, whene
approprake, a shorer period

Tmcome s recognisal on s elfostive intoresd rate basts cxoopt or financal ssscts w1 fdr value through
prodit or loss,

e bt orily g e Vradiie Tleoggsh FrofaF o Lo
Fimancial assets are classified as finanoms] sesels al frir salue rough proft or loss whene e financial

dbsrts]
a v boen acquined primcipally for the purpose of selling in the neas funeme,

) aere et o 3 Bddemti fhed ot fodio of financial instruments that the TARA
mramagpes together and bag a recent acbaal pattem of short-term peoffit-taking;, o

< are derivatives thal are mol designated and effective as a hedging instramenl.

Agsets in this category ane classified s caent assets.

Fimamcial asscts ot far value theough prodfit or loss see stabed at fur value, with sy resultant gaim or loss
rocogniped m profit or loss. The net gaim or loss recognisad im profit or Loss incorporales any imorest
warmend o thee financial aeet

Availablo-for-sale financial assets aro non-denvatives that are ether designated in this category of not
claswificd in any of the cthor calogorio

Avalable-foe-sale financial assets are recorded ot fair valwe, Ciains snd lovses srimng from changes in fair
value are recognised directly im the reserves (equilty) with the exception of impairment keses. Inbercst is
calculibed using the effective imlensst method and forepm exchamge gains amd losses o mometiry assels
ar necognisal dinecly in profit of bose. Whete the sesd iz dirposald of or i determingd ko bo impminsd,
part {or all} of e cummlative gain or s previcusly recognised in the reserve is inchided in profit and
Boa fior the period.

Where g eeliable fiir value can not be cotablished For mnlistod investeenta in oguity sstruments, thee
instrements are valued at cost. The TSRA bas no such instnemonts,
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Non-denvative fisancial aseets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed mamnty dates that the
group has the positive intent and sbility o hold to maturity are clossified os held-to-mstunity iveestments,
Held-to-meeaturity investments are recorded at amonised cost wring the effoctive intaest method leee
impairment, with revenine recognired on an effective yield basis.

Lovaris gl Receivbies

Trade rocervables, Joans and other seceivables that have fixed or determinable pavments that are not
quasted m oum motive markel are dasd fied ns Toams md receivables’. Loans snd receivabiles ame measmed st
amortieed copt using the effective interest meothod less impairment. [mterest is recogniced by applying the
effective interest rate.

digaaierent of Fiocmc il Asseis

Finamual apsete are assessed fir impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Finarcio! axsvis held ar amortised cost - iF there i objective evidence that an impaizment loss has been
incuermed for |oane sl receivabler or held to matunity imvestments held at amontieed cost, the amonmt of the
loes is meamured &8 the difference between the aseet’s cammying amount and the present vale of estimared
fubare cash flows dsoounted at the ased"s onginal effective inforest rato. The carrying ansount 18 redoosd
by wary of an allowanece necounl. The loss is recogrized in the stabement of comprebensve income.

Aneridabile for soole fircurc il axsets - (0 (et is obgective evidenoo (et an impainment loss an an avalsble-
For-gale fimancial nsset o been meummed, the amount of the difTerenoe between ils cost, less principal
repayments and amortipation, and itw current fair valuwe, less any impainment loss previoesly recognised in
expenses, i transferned from equity o the statement of comprehensive income,

Fuaneial arsetr held ar et - 1F there ig obpective sndence that an impaimment loes has been incnrmed the
amennt of the impainmen loss is e difference betwoon the carying ameunt of the assct and the present
value of the extimated futuse cash Bows discounted at the curment murket rte for simalur esscts,

113 Finameial Lisbilites
Finamcial Hubalities are classified as other financial lialnlities.
Finamdial Inhulih.aﬂmmgnnadnd dmgmnd @mmﬂrﬂ

F'rnxlcnl Habilities al rIT vulue 1h'nusl ]lrul'! ar 1-:-: are Lmhad]j mesasured al fir valoe.

Subsequent fair value adjustments are recognised in profitor les, The net gain oo boss
recognised in profit or Loss imcorporabes ay interest paid on She financial liability,

Dtler Fonr il Lilrilities
Oitiver finamcial liabilstves, incheding borrowings, ane initially nvessuned at fir value, not of transaction

Oniber fin | Habalities are suboequenty messuned at amortised cost umng the effectve interest method,
with inberest expense recognived -;\n.u chﬁchveﬂeldbuu
The effectve interest method 15 a method of calenlating the d et off a financial habality and of

allocating interest expense over the rdevant period. The effective intenest mie is the mbe that cactly
dizcounts estimated future cash payments through e expected life of the financal lisbility, or, where
appeopTiate, & dhoner period.

Supplier amd other payables are recognized at amortised cost. Liabilitics are rocognised to the extent that
it gl o B o v been necelved (i rmepective of having been invstoed).

114 Costimgent Liabilities and Conlingeni Assvels

Contingent babalities and contigent s eete are not recognased in e balance ghet bt ane reported m the
relevant schedules and notes, They may wrise from uncertuinty e ko the existence of » lisbility or usset or
represent am isset or Hubnlity in respect of which the amoum cannot be relinbily messured. Contingent
assets aro declosed when pettlement is prohable but not virmsally certsan and contingent liabilites aro
disclosed whn petllament is goeater tum renobe,

115 Acquibsition of Assets

Assols wre recorded o1 cost on scquisiton except ns stited below, The cost of sequisition includes the fair
villise of areets trameferred in exchange and lisbilites undertalien. Financial asscts are irtially measured at
theeir fair value plus transsction costs where appropriate.
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thnr fiair valise at the date of scqmation, unles acquired 28 a q af irng off
adminietrative arangermante. In the batter caee, amcts wv imatnally reoogmmnd o cu-tnbullml by o
al the amounts &1 which they were recognissd in the ansferor Authonly e liately priot 1o
the restructaning.

116 Property, Mant and Equipment

Avwvet Recagnition Threshobd

Parcharer of property, plant and oqui are recogrsed wnstially at cost m the balamce shoet, excopt for

purchases mhMSlMM«eMmWwM‘mm (other than wheee they
Form part of & group of similar items wihoch are significant i total).

Bevaluations
Fair values for each class of msset are defermined as shown below:

A st e das Faaly valuis v sasaare d o

et
Pombmgs Murkat selling price
Cather Plant & equipment Deprociated replscement cost
- - e
F-:dlamm i il rmq;mhnn nt cost, pmpaly pl-1 andl equipment we carried ut fiair viloe less subsequent
i d amd Tosses. Vil wati ons are oomducted wilh sufficiont

Freuency bﬂ!mﬂlll!h:m)’mst-um n(anuldonddlfﬁtndmﬂlyﬁm the assets” fur values
s at the repoeting date. The regulasity of i dent valuations depends upon the volatlity of

movesents hmwtﬂvnluﬁthlwmm.

Revaluation adjustments are made on a class basie. Any revaluation increment i anedated 1o equaty ender
mmﬁuofaﬂmﬁo-mmblhvmdmnm a previoss pevalustion

decrement of the same asset class that was previously gnised in the serplus'defict. Revaluation
decrements liluel-u nfummmmgneﬂ direcfly in the surples’deficit except to the extent that they
TEVETSE @ [N for that class.

Any leted intion as at the revalustion date is climinated nguinst the gross camying amount of
Ibel-llldlbelndmmdh&emiundlmoml

Leprecigtion

Deprecinble property plant amd eguip assets e writow-off bo their estimated residusl values over

Ibeu' estimstted ueﬁi Tives b the TSTA weing, in all cases, the right -lime method of depreciation.

Dprociation rates (usefiil Hves), rowidual valuos and methods ane reviewad at ach reporting date amd
necessary ndyjustments are recognased im the cament, or current snd fuhwe reporting periods, & sppropriste.

Depreciation rates applying to each clase of depreciable aspet are based on the following weefial Lhves:

—au 200
Buildings on frechold land 4 years 40 yomrs
Otbser Plant and Equipment Yo Syears 3t 5 yoars

The TSRA has tems of progerty that are heritage and cultural asscts, that have indcfimite uscfill Lves and
are mat deprociatad.

Imepairment
All nmm-mnﬂl’onmp-nnenln)ﬂhe@ﬂll ‘Jf"h:m indications of impairment exist, the
assel’s ble amoamt 15 esly d amd an amp h i miade i ihe aset’s recoverabile

amodnt i legs than ite carrying amodst.

The recoverable amound of an asset i the bigher of it far value less costs bosell amd 18 vale in use.
Valise in use i8 the present valss of the fisture cash Bows expectod to be denved from the asset. Whiee the
Fintmre ecomombs benefit of am st @ not prmanly dependont on the smets ability 0o generate fisane cash
flows, =nd the esset would be neplaced if the TS BA were deprived of the seset, its value in wse 5 taken o
b its depreciated neplacement cost.

LDerccopnition

An item of property, plant and equipment is devecognised npon disposal or when o farther econcmic
bemefite are expected from ite nee of disposal.
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Heritage and Cultural Asvets

The TSRA has a limited collection of 16 (2010 : 16) distinet Cultural and Henitage assets. Cullural assels
are compriged of artworks, canangs, and raditional headdresseses. Heritage assets consist of modeds of
two (2010 : 2) sailing vessels and a brass Pearl Diver's helmet (2010 : 1) each of which has historical
sgnificance to the region. The assets are on display at the TSHA's main office and the Gab Titn Cultural
Centre. The conservation and preservation of TSRAs caltural heritage assets is achieved by a vanety and
combination of meang including: the provision of education and avwareness programs, asset management
planning; professional raining and development, research; and the provision of appropriste storage and
display environments

117 Taxatlon [ Competitive Neutrality
The TSRA 12 exempt from all forme of taxation exeept Fringe Benefits Tax (FBT) and the Goods and
Services Tax (G5T).

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of G3T except
* where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian
Taxation Office, and

+ for receivables and payahles.
1.18 Change in Comparalives
Following a review of disclogure requirements, comparativies have been amended for supplier expenses,
employee benefits, supplier payables and other payables. This is further detailed in Note 3 and Note 7. The
amendment to comparatives have resulted in changes to Notez 3, 7, 9, 15 and 18,

1.19 Change in Disclosure for Assets Held in Trust

There has been a change in disclozure in respect to assets held in truet. This is farther detailed in Nete 17.
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TORRES STRAIT REGIONAL AUTIHIORITY
Nates to amd Torming part of the financial statements
For the yeur ended 30 June 2071

Note 2: Events Afier the Reporting P

Thera has been no avent that has occumed after the reporting date that would significantly affect the ongoing
structure and financial activities of the TSRA

Financial Statements
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TORRES STRAIT REGIONAL AUTHORITY
Nodes fo and forssmg part of the financial statessents
Tor (he year ended 30 Jene 2011
201 2010
S0 5000
Node JA; Emplover EBeneflts
Wages and saliries {6,700} (7371)
Suprerannizalion
Dielined comnbulion plas (2] (445
Defined benefit plans {401} (293)
Leswve umd cther entil lements {410 L8]
Tiotal emyprlayee bengffn {8,066} BAIT)
Sete Mk Suppilers
ooty and wervioes
Conmenliurds i Professional Fees {4852y (5463%)
Trnvel 11, ) (2,0e0K])
Tepire arkl presidermine {1,208y (1.015)
Coher stafT coses {1, M8y (1.313)
Crffice Running Coms {05y 12241
Media, Advertsing, Public Relaisons 368y (M)
Onher {1.97) (5r¥3)
Total geods s services 12,206) (12.195)
Croods and services an made up of:
Provision of goods - ectermal parties {508y (5509
Reendering of genvices — exermnal pasnie {11,700y (11.645)
Total goods amd serviees 12,206} (12.195)
Cither suppller expenses
Operting beas revials - extermal portios:
M besst: paymwents (463} (433)
Winlers compenaion expeiscs (LR L/
Total oibser ssppller expranes. {476) 443)
Total sapplier expenses {12,682 ) {12,837}
Privaate sector:
Non-profin ongmisations {53,968) (4855
Tokal granks {43, 9HE) (48.554)
Hote 3T% Depredation
Dupreciation
Roildings o3 (447)
Plast and e prment [LIN Y] (ki
wn Total deprodadon (B0} Rl
z Hode 3F: Write-Dowm amd impalrment of Assets
L
> Al wiledows [rom and imparment s frome
E Lo preonidod for 28 impadred 11y .
<C Wit domm of boand 6o nt present valoe ¥ (S50)
G Total wrlte-down and |mpalrment of ssels {150} (550
|
g Im finesnciad year 2009-10, beave fave allowmmce for employecs wim presenied as 8 trmvel expense under Note JE:
=z Suppliers — Goods and services. bn financial year 2000-11, the leave fane allowsnce, which forms part of employes
< 1 have been appropaately reclassfied o Wages sad salaries expense mnder Note 30 Emploves benefis.
Zz Thas chasge im presemtngion has increased the compamtive fignnes fior nmges and salanies and tota) employes benefits in
e Miobe 34 by $621,000 60 §7,371 000 and $2,41 7,000 respoctively (300510 $6.750,000 and $7, 796,000 respectively).
- Thiis is matched by a comesponding decresese in the comparntive figunes for el and 1otel goods and services im Note
0 AR: Supplicrs by $621,000 so $2.008 000 and $12, 195000 repectively (2005 10: $2 629,000 and $12.216 000
Z respaciively]. B i noted thal the chesge im companstives has o smilar effect on dsclosurs moles in the 200509 frsncial
9 stalemenis (340,000 increase For wapes and salaries within employee benefits and o $4400.000 decrses i other wmd
5 total goods ind mervices within supplier expenses).
)
) R
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TORRES STRAIT REGIONAL AUTHORITY
Notes to and forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2011

Note 4: Income

1 2010

OWN-SOURCE REVENUE S000 000
Note 4A: Sale of Goods and Bendering of Services
Provision of goods - external parties 155 242
Rendenng of services - external partics 244 244
Total sale of goods and rendering of services 499 486
Note 4B Interest
Loans 408 408
Deposits 1,682 1,039
'otal interest 2,090 1,447
Note 40 Other Revenue
Rent 27 7
Dther Government contributions 6,661 3,607
Total other revenue 6,688 3681
GAINS
Note 41: Reversals of Previous Asset Write- Downs and Impairments
Reversal of losses from remeasuring financial instruments held at fair
vale 358 3
Reversal of expenss recognisad in previous years when providing for the
impairment of nancial instruments - 22
Total reversals of previous assel write-downs and impairments 3358 27
Note 4E: Other Gains
Sale of assets - 1
Total other gains - |
REVENUE FROM GOVERNMENT
Note 4F: Revenue from Government
Department of Families, Housing, Commumnity Services and Indigenous
Adfairs

CAC Act body payment item 09,758 67391
Total revenue from Government 69,758 67,391

Financial Statements
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TORRES STHAIT REGIONAL AUTHORITY
Noles boand Forming part of the Amanciul statessents
Tor ihe year ended 30 Jane 2011

Il 2l

£'0a00 3 ey
Cosh ot bank 21,0657 32.551
Todal cash and cash equivalonis 20,057 332,551
Hole ST Trade and Ciber Bocdvables
Groods and services - extemal paries 68215 (113
5T meceivabde from the Amstralian Taation Cilice 1T
L eans ARIR 505
Todal trade and oller recdvables (groa) 15,363 6 ¥l
Less impuimment. allowance acoouni-

Loans (1463 (125)
Total trade and oilser recdvables (net) 11,117 i, 513
Recedvables mre expocted 1o be recovened i
Mo more thim 12 manihs [ ] 1,555
More thim 12 monile 4602 4,744
Toaal trade and oiler recelvables (ner) 1,117 6,333
Receivables ane aged ms follows
Now ovendue 0, Ty 6,502
Therdluc by

0 1o M clays 144 |

31 1o 60 days 1

61 bo 90 days ]

More (hun 90 days a8 144
Todal reocivables (prosy 11363 i, %58
The imguimment allowance accoun! is aged 2= follows
Orverdue by:

Move than 90 days (22 13] {125)
Total Impalrescal dlowance sccomni . (46} (125)

TSHEA holds & porifodio of concescoml kuns thal are provided for business development and home ownendhip progrms.
The values of tkese Joans s ot 30 June 2011 ae s follows

{oncesae loand - nominal videe 55 [ ]

Lese umexpHred cscoumi (9T (11313
2 Concewsbonal boins - carrying valwe R 5,65
=
g Recondlistion of the Empain ment allowanor accomni:
L Movensents in relatbon to 2011
= Laans Total
(}77 MM} SHHMD
i Dpesing udance (125} (125)
< Incrense recognised in net surpivs (1203 1213
LZ) Lhisdp balance L246) 28
<
=z Movensents in rlation to 2010
. (=" Total
- S0 $000
; Cpesing bdance (45) (648)
o) Asnounie recovertd and pevenned 533 523
= Thosing balance [T
(8]
)
(72}
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TORRES STRAIT REGIONAL AUTHORITY
Nootes to and forming part af the linancial sSaiements
for the vear ended 30 June 2011

Nole 6: Non-Financial Asseis

M1 2010
S0 000
Sole 6h: Land
Land:
Land at fair value 9185 7.365
Total land and buildings 9,185 T.365
Buildings an frechold land:
Work in progress [ 1,556
Fair value 18,081 12,365
Total buildings on frechold Lnd 18,149 13,921
Leasehold Tmprovements:
Fair valoe 115 -
Accurmilated depreciation {24) -
Total keasehold improvements o1 -
Total Bumd s buildings 2T ALS 21,286

All revaluations ars conducted in accordancs with the revaluation policy stated at Note 1. In 2010-11, an
independent valuer, Meil Teves- AAF] Registered Valuer Mo, 382, conducted the revahmtions.

A revaluation increment of 51,820,000 was recorded for land (2010: Mil) and revaluation increments
were recordad for buldings on frechold land of £1 824,342 (2010: decrement of $156,954) and lave
besem credited to the assel revaluation reserve by assel class and included in the equity section of the

balance sheat and the other comprehensive income section of the statement of comprahensive income

Mo indicators of impairment were found for land and buildings.
Mo Jand or bulldings are expected to be sold or disposed of within the next 12 months.

Heritage and culiural:

Artifects and artworks

Fair valoe 41 41
Total beritage amd culiwral 41 11
Oiher plant amad equipoent:

Fair value 2,394 1,203

Accumulated depreciation (BT {559
Total other plant and equipnemnt 1.524 044
Taotal plant and equipment 1,565 685

No indicators of impairment were found for plant and equipment
Mo plant or equipment is expected to be sold or dispesed of within the next 12 months

Financial Statements
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TORRES STRAIT REGIONAL AUTIORITY
Neobes to and formisg part of (e Ainascal statements
for e yoar ended 30 June 2001

Orilser Flani  Eerltage &

Land Dadidings & Equipment  Cwlimral Totad
£'000 S S'000 St000 St0e0
Asml 1 July 2000
Ginoms ook value TGS 1x%21 1,200 41 prRLl |
Accumulaied depreciation and imgsirment . - 5 . {529
Nel ook value 1 July 2000 TGS 13,921 el 41 21,97
Addnons
Iy purchase . dizd L] - 362
conirilngion from salc govomment atity . - = - M
Foevaliations sed (el rmenta Uhroegh eqery 1820 R4 364
i AN EXpCsG - (52 311y - =
Serd beoodi value M0 Jane 2011 ENTE] 18240 1,524 41 28,9904
el bkl value o of 30 June 2001 represested by
Cinoes book value LIRS 1R264 230 a1 2R
Accurmulated depeecistion 24 B (B
5185 18240 1524 41 28.990)
|
hileer Pland  levltage &
tem Land Eudldings & Equipment  Cwltwral Totsd
LR ] S iubi} S0 50400 S 0
Asal 1 .baly 2009
Ciroms bock value T8 13,108 8356 41 21,370
Adcumulaled depreciation and imgxirment = - {425) = (425
et bkt value 1 July 200 1] 13,108 431 41 20845
AdkBlions
by i hwse . L4117 479 " 1896
Fevaluations snd Lmpairments throegh ogery - {157 - a (15T
Deprecintion expense = (447 {255 - (70
Disposals
Jthir - - {7) = {7\
Nl ok value 3 Jmne 2000 TI65 12921 fld il 21.971
Mool bkl value an off 30 Junc 200 0 represemted by
Ciroms book valee T3 13921 1,203 | 22.5%
Accumulaled depreciation and imgxarment . . {555 - 550
TI65 13921 4 41 21.971
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TORRES STRAIT REGIHONAL AUTHORITY
MNotes Do and forming part of the lnancial statements
for the vear ended 30 June 2011

Note 7: Payables

011 2010
5000 £7000
NotedA: Suppliers
Trade creditors and aceruals (2,073 (2,601
Total supplier payables (2,079) (2,601}
Supplier payables expected to be settled within 12 months:
External parties (2.079) (2,601)
Total 2,079 (2,601)
Settlement 15 tsnally made wathin 30 days.
HoteTlB: Grants
Private sector:

Mon-profit organisations (2346) {11,955}
Total grant payables (236) {11,955}
Total grant payables are expested to be settled in:

Mo more than 12 months (2346) {11,955)
Total gramt payables {236) {11,955)
Note 7C: Other Pavables

Salanies and wages (498) (430)
GST payable to ATO (+4,261) -
Total other payables (4.75%) (430}
Taotal other pavables are expected to be settled in:

Mo more than 12 monthe (4,759 {430)
Total other payables (4,759 {4300

In financial year 2009-10, accrued expensss wers presentad under Note 7C: Other Payables. In financial
year 2010-11, accrued expensss have besn appropriately reclassified to supplier payables under Note TA-
Supplisrs. This changs in presentation has increassd comparative fgures for trade eraditors and aceruals
and total supplier payables in Mote TA by $526,000 to $2,600,000 (2009-10: $1.675,000). This is
metched by a corresponding decreass in the comparative figurss for acerued expensss and total other
payablss previously reported in other payables Note 7C by 926,000 to NIL and $430,000 respectively
(2009-10: $926,000 and §1,356,000 respectively). It is noted that the change in comparatives has a
simalar effect on disclosure notes in the 2008-09 Brnencial statements (3477 000 increase in supplier
payables and a §477,000 decrease in other pavables) which represent the opening balances for 2009-10.

Financial Statements

TORRES STRAIT REGIONAL AUTHORITY | ANNUAL REPORT 2010-2011 145



TORRES STRAIT REGIONAL AUTHORITY
Notes to and forming part of the financial statements
For the vear ended 30 June 2011

MNote 8: Provisions

2011 2010
Sh000 £"000
Note 8A: Empl ‘isions
Long Serviee Leave (833 (700)
Annnal Leave (1,217 (334)
Personal Leave (B (B&)
Total employee provisions (2,130) (1,720)
Emplovee provizionz are expected to he zettled in:
Mo more than 12 months (1,975} {1,504)
More than 12 months {155) (216}
Total employes provisions (2,130) (1,720)
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TORRES STRAIT REGIONAL AUTHORITY

Motes to and forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2011

Note 9 Cash Flow Reconci

21 2010

000 5000
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents ax per Balance Sheet to
Cash Flow statement
Cash and cash equivalents as per:
Cash flow statement 21,057 32,551
Balance Sheet 21,057 32,351
Dafference - -
Heconciliation of net cost of services to net cash from operating activities:
Net cost of services (646,091 {65,592}
Add revenue from Government 69,758 67,391
Adljustmenis Tor non-cash lems
Deprecation 240 06
Net wntedown of financial assets 141 SR0
Interest (105 (410
Concessional component of Loans fundead - (331}
Reversal of previows loan wntedowns and impairments (358) 20N
Gain on Sale of Assats - (13
Contribution of non-financial asscts (591 -
Changes in assets { linhilities
(Increaze) / decraass in recervablas from Goods and Senices (o, 0HF) £
(Inecrease)  decrease in GST receivable 6,035 {206}
Imerease [ (decrease) in employee provisions 410 284
Increase [ (decrease) in supplier payables (522) 1,077
Increase  (decrsass) in grantz payable (11,719 3,977
Imerease [ (decrease) in other payables (%3 716
Net cash from operating activities (8,534) 8549
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TORRES STRAIT REGIONAL AUTHORITY
Notes to and forming part of the financial statements
for the yvear ended 30 June 2011

Note 10: Contingent Liabilities and Assets

Cluantifiable Contingenciey

There are no contingent assets (2009-10 : Nil) or contingent liabilities (2009-10:Mil).

Unguartifiahle and Remote Contingencies

There are no unguantifiable or remote contingencies (2009-10 : Nil).
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TOEHES 5 TRATIT HECAUSAL ALTIILHRETY
Foatew o ol Farwalng part o8 the e anial watm o
Tow ther yraw emadead 58 Jane D10

Eoans io Irvctary and Dneecior-redatod Exdities

Loasa vary mack o kol by the Bllowing drvcions wd deedior-rolided miilies. Thiy were
approved mder sarmal wrm s md cosditions spplymg to i TERAY e schames The dirvcion
wvalved back go part is 1he erlevint deciieni of the THRLA

XA T . il Rebnicnshi
i Wayns Geivama Torves Sirak bl Regional Cosncillor

bir Doniald Basn Terves Sirail hibard Regionsl Comnciller

Wiy Philleison Moy Toiwes Siras Libsed Pagiona Cosncillor

hir Kooy Redfosrd Terves Surai bibared Regional Comnciller

B Raymond [aiah Soki Torgs Siruie il Ragicnal Cosucillor

Wir Torenss Elmala Terres Sirai bibard Regional Comnciller

Wirs Hancy Pemes Torres Sirui Ll Ragicoal Cosucillor

Wir Darved o Torrea Sirai hisnd Regicasl Cosncillor

i Kaid Fall Tormys Sirai Db Magicasl Losocillor

Wir Ros Dy Toeres Sirak hisnd Regional Cosncillor

ks Rom Encea Terves Srail bl Regional Comneillor

Nirs Hommas Baro Tormes Strax hiand Regicaal Cosncillor

s Jabi Toshie Krm Terves Suraid hibaed Regional Comntillor

Nir Wil Lui Tormes Sirai Dbl Hagional Cosncillor

il Walter Mackir Torves Surail hibwed Regional Comncillor

Nir Jobn Modsy Torr Sirei Gibaed Wegional Cosncillor

Wir Baginakl Will s Sorthem Fenissals Area Fegvasl Comillo
b Jelfvy Anila Harthem Feooissl Aocs Regioasd Comcillor
Wi Magscis lin Tabal Torres Shire Comcillor

Wit Jabm Alrdecge Torves Shire Commcillor

Dme devcior, Ar Phillig Mill. s rad & cousclbor of sy of the cooncds 82 which TERA bar
provided graste m it 2001 ol Vesr Mr Mills resgned as TERA M bar for Fon Keedy
March 2001

Tt tiabshe Boelorss: ooui Bitics thye: b Dondobirs il thee TSELA drecnar with wivsin. & relabed pars
CONSTRE il

Lo
Amthony Triwdy
= Mir Kith Fll and Mr Philip Wil - TSRA Board Membars
Huts Doalah
- 385 Keith Foll mnd Mr Philip Mills - TS8A Bosrd Mewmbars
Hobsrt Sagigi
«Mir Baln Abednegs - THRLA Baard hiomber
Ragmald Willass
« TERA Baard homber
Triph A Family Values
= Mr Phillip Mili - TSRA Bosrd Mimbea
Pamiegn Euterphises
- Mr Raginald Willimss - TREA Board Musbor
[ra —
= Mr Rl ey - TRRA Tosard hemnter
Pamsna [sland Pey Lid
«Torres Sraie lilind Regmnal Cosncillors
Heorthern Peninmla Area Regiosal Cooscal
« Nonhem Foisala Arca Regrsl Cousodlan
Elibwrr Alron Bismr
=M Jaba Kiis - TSRA Beard Ml
Wica Kewie
- Mir Raln Kris savdl Wire W sy Peareos - TSRA Noard Mambars
Thereke Timnk
= M Mancy Poarwn - TRRA Board Monber
o o
5

Loans 1o cursl Dirvcion ostmsding = yewr-od: T EF

o pejugsmnists dhirag et i - Y
Loasss io curmeel Disvcior-relsted Entiies cuttmding o your-ond L1k Bbd 327,

Lasaes i cusrrenl Diwecionm laded Entgis ding (b vea 18K 860
G T BT

Istemuek Prvetsie e had 8 operanng ressll s Romss o6 currens D clors Thieoker:

Thee THRA K dogted A4S 130 Fr f B - Ry and Msasrdvarel , md
¥raled lamne sertdandng of vear o s lsans and Recenvahles valued o amertiied oo usng e
ellvitive isteres rae mllod
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TORRES STRAIT REGIONAL AUTHORITY
Nodes to wmd forming parl of the Mnanclal slalemens
Tor tse Yo ended 30 June 2001

Related Party i

s Transactions with D Di ated Ei

Giranes were made to the following Director-related entities. They were approved under noomal terms and conditions applying to the

TERA'S graet progrums. The directors imvalved ook mo pan in the sedevant decisions of the TSRA

Directars” Name Coinel Gramis Grunts Reccived
Kecelved
2om 2000
§ ]
- Torres Shire Conncil 18,251,000
5 Torres Stram Isband Regional Council 13,586,120
- Mertvem Penimsula Arca Regsonal Coumal 5015, 000
K Bedford Erub Erwer Meta TSI Corporation Tt 600 -
R 'Willzams Baraza Enterprise Lid £ 000 =
R Dy Onpneor Bakir Atalur TS1 Corporation 43,600 =
E Encea Sailu C v Development TSI Corperation 3,600 .
1 Moshy Kailag Enterprises L1 40,0000 245,000
J Moshy Tormes St Iddanders Regional Edocation Cowscil Inc 47,000 -
J Moy, W Makie, P Kulkulkzal {centrul Ishads) Development Associution Inc &, N =
N Poarsan Murs Kosker Soronty Ine #7708 -
K Fell & W Caivarra Totres Steait Youlh & Recrotionsl Spoting Assn S50, 000 503,216
1 Ahednepn Torres Stra# Ielanclers Media Assn RN 670,297
J Abednego Tagai College 1 A15
12 Hosum Wgihmun Lagn TSI Corponation 71,000 -
W Guiverra Badu Island Foundation 102,120 -

*Pleuse refer o Note 12A for information regarding Drirector relmtsonships with these entitics.
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TORRES STRAIT REGIONAL AUTHORITY
Mates to and farming part of the Ninancial statenwnis
for the vear ended 30 June 2011

Note 13: Senior Excecutive Eemuneration

i o
5 5
Shori-term employee benelits:

Salary H04,565 755,088

Anmul Leave Accroed 8L77T% 55,625

Performance Bomuses 30,5558 43,904

Caher allowances 101,431 186,829
Talal shori-term employee benellis 1,09, 33 1,047,408
Fost-emyployment benelits

Superammuation 118,272 123,336
Totul pod-cmployment benelils 118,272 123,536
Cilver long-term benedifs:

Long-service leave 96,934 5Q
Tatal other long-term benelits B6,934 59,142
Termination benefits - 19.7.
Tatal 1,234,536 1,244,632
Notes

1. Motz 134 was prepared on an sconml basis (so the performance bonus expenses disclosed above differ from the cash
'Bomas pand in Motz | 3E).

2. Nots 134 excludas acting amrangéments and part-year service where renmmaration expensad was lezs than $150,000
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TORRES STRAIT REGIONAL AUTHORITY
Maotes to and forming part of the financial sttements
for the year ended 30 June 2011

MNote 14: Remuneration of Auditors

21 2010
SO0 7000
The coat of the financial statement audit sennces to the TSRA 3 i3

Mo other services were provided by the auditers of the financial
satemants.
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TORRES STRAIT REGIONAL AUTHORITY
Motes to and forming part of the Minancial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2011

Mote 15: Financial Instruments

2011 2010
S000 5000
Mote 154: Categories of Financial Instruments
Financial Assets
Loans and receivables
Cash and cash equivalents 21,057 32,551
Receivables for goods and services 6,515 115
Loans neceivable 4,848 5,069
Total 32,420 37,735
Carrying amount of financial assels 32,420 37,735
Financial Liabilities
At amortsed cost:
Trade creditors and accruals 2,079 2,601
Cirant hahilities 236 11,955
Total 2,315 14,556
Carrying amount of Moancial liabilities 2,315 14,556
2011 2010
S0 £1000
Mote 158: Net Income and Expense from Financial Asscts
Loans and receivables
Interest revemue (see note 4B) 2,080 1,447
Allowance for Impairment (see note 3E) (121} -
Write down of loans to Net Present Value (see note 3E) {20} (580}
Met gainf{loss) loans and receivables 1,940 7
Net gainf{loss) from financial assets 1,540 867

There iz no interest income not at fair value thromgh profit or loss in the vear ending 2011

(2010:- $Nil)

Mote 15C: Net Income and Expense from Financial Liabilities

There is no income or expense through profit or loss in the year ending 2011 (2010:- $Nil)

Financial Statements
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TORRES STRAIT REGIONAL AUTHODRITY
Notes foand Torming partof the financal statements
for the year ended 30 Jume 2011

TSRA is exposed 1o minimal credit risk as the majority of loans and peceivables age cash or high
quality trade receivables. TSRA aleo holds a portfolio of concessional loans that ane provided for
business development and home ownership progmms. The maximam exposure (o credil risk i# the risk
that anses from potential defanlt of a trade debtor or a concessional loan holder. This amount i equal
Lo the botal armount of irade and loan receivabiles (2001 $11,117,000 and 2010 5,185,000},

In relation to the housing loans, TSRA holds modgazes as sole mongagor over the houses for wach
the loans are provided. TSR A receives market advice from a qualified valuer or magket expert on the
vahe of & property prior to the loan being approved. In relation to Business Funding Scheme beans,
from 2007-08 TSRA has requined (hat mexpenenced siness owner(s) successfilly complete an
approved business course and submil @ business i prior (o Ure lown being approved, These policies
mitigate against credit sk for the TSRA's leans portfolic.

Credit quality ol financial instraments nod past doe or individoally determined as impoi red:
Not Past Mol Past  Pastdue  Past due
Due Mor  Due Mor or ar
Impaired Impawred impaired impaired
01 2010 2011 2010
S0 000 S"HMY F0

Cash and cash equivalents 21,057 32,351

Receivables for goods and services 5915 113 L] 2
Losmns receivable 4,594 4,925 254 144
Total 31,566 37,589 554 146

Ageing of financial assets that are past due but not impaired for 2011
Biedh 3160 61 Lo 90 20+

days days days days Total
S0 S0 Sy S S My
Receivables for goods and services 143 1 - 448 92
Loans receivable 1 3 - 4 b
Total 144 4 - 452 i)

Ageing ol linancial assets that are past doe bul not impaired for 2000

0to30 3ltodd 611090 20+
days davs days days Total
000 000 $'000 000 F000
Receivables for goods and services 1 - 1 - 2
Loans receivable - - - 20 20
Total 1 - 1 20 22

TSR A has aszeszed the msk of the defanlt on payment and has allocated $246,000 in 2011 {20010;

5125 0040 ) to an allowance for impaiment.  Security underpinning this impairment inclndes a 5
bedroom howse, which was independently valued in June 2009, a 2001 Toyola Camry taxi. 2 boats and
motors, which have been valued based on the security value of the inception of the loan. These
Acciuritices have an cstimated total vadue of $546,000.
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Note 15F: Liguidity Risk

TSRA's financml abilities are trde creditors, grant labilics and other habilities. The exposre o
hfpndllyn':k 1% Eazed om the nohon that TSR A wall enconnter dl"ill.'llh}' i mgelmg_ s drllg:‘hrrrn
associated with financeal liabilities. This i highly unlikely due to Government funding available i
TSR A and inlemal policies and procedures pal in place to ersure there are appropriale resouroes Lo
mued ils Muncial obligations.

Nlalurlthes Tor oom deciyatiyve Boanclkal Raliiides 2001:

Cm within 1 I o2 2to 5
demand year years vears Total
000 $000 F000 F'000 $000
Trade creditors and accruals - 2,079 - - 2078
Grant liabilities - 13 - - 236
Tulal - 1315 : - 1315

Magurities for non=derivative financial Eabihities 2010:

Cn  within 1 lto2 2ol

demand yoear Years VEArs Total

£000 £'000 £'000 E000 £1000

Trade creditors and acemals - 2,601 - - 2,601
Grant liabilities = 11955 - - 11.955
Total - 14,556 - - 14,556

THR A receivies funding from its Portfolio Depadment | TSRA manages iz badgeted fonds 1o ensane it
has adequate funds o meet payments as they fall due, In addition, the TSRA has policies in place 1o
ensure timely payments are made when due and has no past expenience of default.

Note 150 Markel Risk

TSR A holds tasic financial instruments that do not expose TSR A 10 certain market risks, The TSRA is
not expossd to "curmency risk’ o "other price sk,

Tnteres) Rete Bisk

The only inderest-heaning 1tems on the balancs sheet ane the cash at bank and loans. Inlerest camed on
cash at bank may be effected by changes in market intevest rates. The following table repoesents the
effiect to the statement of comprehensive ncome (amxd comesponding effect to the cash value in the
bralance sheet) when the current marked intevest rate is vaied by 1.75%. 1.75% is anticipated 1o be 2
reasonable estimate of the maximum movement in markel interest rates in financial year 2011-13,

Effect on Statement
of Comprehensive
Ineome
Value  Income (Expenss)
00 SN0
Anticipated interest esrned for 201 1-12 financial year al curmend market
interest rate 1.259 a
Increase of 1.75% in market inberest rate 1.292 A3
Decrense of 1.75% in marked interest rate 1.226 (33}
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The value of concesnonal loans 15 denved by applying the amortased cod using the effecive inferest
method. Becanse the loan portfolio k= valned at net present value using market inferest rates,
movements in market intevest rates will impact on the value of the loan port folko and the income
statement. The following table represents the effisct 1o the income statement (and comesponding effect
to the lean pontfolio value in the balance sheet ) when the coment market interest race is varied by
1.75%. 1.75% is anticipated to be a reasonable estimate of the maximum movement in market intemst

rates in financial year 2011-12.
ElMect on Statement
of Comprehensive
Income
Value  Income (Expense)
5000 000
Wet Present Value of Loans 30 June 2011 4,848 -
Increase of 1.75% in murket interest rate 4,331 (517)
Decrepsa of 1.75% in market interest rate 5498 650

Aszets past due and impaired are represented by loans individually assessed to be at high
nsk of defaulf.

In financial year 2009-10, accrued expenses were presented under Mote 7C : Other
Payables. In financial year 2010-11, accrueed expenses has been reclassified to supplier
payables under Note TA: Suppliers. This change in presentation has incressed the
comparative figures for Trade ereditors and acemals and total financial liahilites in Nate
134 Categories of financial instraments from 1,675,000 to 82,601,000, This change in

total financial liabilities in Mote 15Tx Fair Valoe of Financial Instraments from $1,675,0040
1o $2,601,000. This change in presentation has also increased the comparative figures for
Trade creditors and accruals and total maturities for non-denvative financial habilities 2010
in Note 15F: Liquidity Risk from $1,675,000 to $2,601,000.

Financial Statements
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TORRES STRAIT REGIONAL AUTHORITY
Notes to and forming part of the financial statements
for the yer coded 30 June 2011

Mvote 16 Compensation and Debt Relief

2011 2010
5000 £°000

Mo payments were made during the reporting peniod, (2010; No
payments made), . .
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TORRES STRAIT REGIONAL AUTHORITY
Motes to and forming part of the financlal statements
for the year ended 30 Tume 2001

Note 17: Assets Held in Trust

Nown-Monetary Assets
There ane m non-momnetary aseete held in trust by the TSRA

Mometary Assels

MIF et acemat

O 17 Octiober 1598, the Qucenslund State and the TSRA antered into 1 Major Infristructure Projects (MIP) Funding
Agreement under which 515 mallion for magar infragtrsctire projects was provided by the State over three years with

matching fands from the Commonwealth, The co-famding amanpement between State and TSRA has contimied aver

the yemrs und the current, wrmgennnt for co-funding for the period ending June 201 1 15 sl out in a Memormdum of

Understamding betweon TSRA and the State.

‘The recipeents’ beneficaanes of infrastnactore progects developed ander the MIP are the Tomes Strait Idand Regiomal
Conneil, (TSIRC), Torres Shire Coundl, (T5C) and the Northem Peninsular Area Regiosal Council, (NFARC)

TERA s role in MIP i gt out in the M dum of Understanding bet the State and TSRA. TSRA hasa
fidueiary duty in respect of the MIP fande and in the development of MIP projects but not as the owner of any asret
under construction, This is evidenced by the fect thit me future economic benefit will low o TSRA duning or on
completion of the sssots. In additton, and for scoounting purposes, TSRA does nol consolidate the MIP fmds ino its
financinl statem entr a8 TRRA 15 of the opimion that it does not have control of the finde. TSRA adopte AASR 127
Congolidated and Separate Finanaal Sentements - paragraph 179 (b) as a polwey posmmien for this opimacon. Thas 15
Further evidenced by the fact that the TSRA cannot redine:t MIF funds for its own use,

i 00
L] £000
MIF trusi account - Monelary Assets
Tatal amomnt held at the heginning of the reparting period 61,086 7,978
Cash recapts 35,595 33,254
Cash payments (12,472} (5.996)
Total amount held at the end of the reporting period RS 459 41,036

Firyfich trist aré srml

Fallowing the Anstralian Govemment 100% bayout of commercial finfigh entitlements in favoar of the Torres Strain
Ietanders, a decirion of the reprerentative Tomes Smant Community Fisher Group (CFG) kar vested responsibility for
administration of the sssel in support of the CFG 1o the TSRA. Actvities will include leusing of » percentage of un-
usad fshing entitlements bk 1o the commendal sector to provide sdditional benefits and opportunities o raditoml
inhahitants to incrense their fishing capacity. The TSRA holds cagh in trust for the beneficiaries

011 2010
S'MM £000
Finfish trust account - Monetary Asseis
Tatal amount held at the beginning of the reparting period 533 424
Carh receipis 152 106
Interest received 7 3
Total amount beld at the end of the reporting period _69! _53.'!

The valees above ure estimmied fior vidues l the tme when woquired.

Financial Statements
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Changes in Disclosure of MIP Assets Held in Trust

During the 2010-11 fnancial year, TSRA sought legal advice in regard the TSRA"s statas as legal trustee of the MIP
Trust account. Application of this legal advice requires the TSRA to include the detmlz of the MIP trust sccount within
the financial statements. This iz the finst vear that the MIP trust account has been included a8 a note to the TSRA's
financial statements, and TSRA will continue te disclose detaile on the MIP trust in futare year financial statements.

Change in Disclosure of Finfish Assets Held in Trust
The disclosure of the amounts held in trust in the 2009-10 firancial statements incorrecly included Finfish debtors as a
monetary assel and reflected the balanee of fimds ot May 2010 rather than 30 June 2010,

The 2005910 disclosure has been corrected in the comparative information by restating the balances disclosed as
follows:

Increase’ Restated
200910 (Decrease) 2008-10

000 S000 000
Receipts from sale of finfish licenses
Total amount held at the beginning of the reperting period 410 (55) 424
Cash receipts T8 28 106
Initerest receaved 3 - 3
Movement in Receivables 22) 22 -
Total 538 (5 533
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TORERES STRAIT REGIONAL AUTHORITY
Motes bo and forming part of the financial stalements
for the vear ended 30 June 2011

MNote 18: Reporting of Oulcomes

Note 18A: Net Cosl of Ouicome Delivery

Ouleome 1 Taotal
2011 2010 2011 2010
000 £7000 £'000 51000
Expenses TS, 716 71,2344 75,716 71,234
Incame from non-government seclor
Other 1,974) 1.035) 1,974 2035
Total 2,974| 2035 2,974 2,033
Other own-source income 6,061 3,607 6,661 34607
Nt cost of owicome delivery L 65,592 6,091 65,591

Outcome 1 15 described in Note 1.1,

Financial Statements
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TORKRES STRAIT REGIONAL AUTHORITY
Motes to and forming part of the Mnancial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2011

i Oulcome 1 Total
2011 2010 2011 2010
1000 £'000 7000 £ 000

Expenses

Employees 8,066 7,796 8,066 7,796

Suppliers 12 652 13,258 12,682 13,258

Depreciation and amortisation 840 T §40 706

Write-down of asscts 154 580 150 580

Crants £3.988 48,8 53,988 48,8M
Total 75,726 71,234 TE 726 71,234
Income

Income from govemment 69,758 67,391 69,758 67,351

Sales of goods and services 499 486 499 486

Interest 2,090 1,447 2,00 1,447

Net gain from disposal of asscts - 1 - 1

Reversal of previous assel wrile down 358 27 358 27

Caher 6,655 3.681 6,658 3,681
Total 79,393 73,053 79,393 73.033
Assels

Cash and cash equivalents 21,057 32,551 11,057 32,551

Trade and other receivables 11,117 6,833 11,117 6,833

Land and buildings 27428 21,286 27,425 21,286

Plant and equipment 1.565 G685 1,565 (i3
Todal 61,164 61,3538 61,164 61,355
Liabilities

Suppliers 2,079 2,501 2,079 2,601

Grants 234, 11,958 136 11,955

Cther 4,759 430 4,759 430

Employee provisions 2,130 1,720 2,130 1,720
Total 9204 16,706 9,204 16,706
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Appendices

Appendix 1: Organisational Structure

TSRA Organisational Chart

Minister

Torres Strait
Regional Authority
(TSRA) Board

Chair

General Manager

Manager Corporate
Services / Chief
Financial Officer

Environmental
Management
Program Manager

Native Title
Program Manager

Economic
Development
Program Manager

Healthy and Safe
Communities
Program Manager

Governance and
Leadership
Culture, Arts and
Heritage Program
Manager
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The Torres Strait Regional Authority (TSRA) is

an agency subject to the Freedom of Information
Act 1982 (Cth) (the FOI Act) and the Freedom of
Information Amendment (Reform) Act 2010 (Cth).
In parallel with significant changes to its internal
information management practices, the TSRA has
implemented an Information Publication Scheme
(IPS) as prescribed by the FOI Reform Act, under
the guidance of the Office of the Australian
Information Commissioner. The objective of this
initiative is to:

Incorporate the pro-disclosure values of the
FOI Actinto the TSRA’s internal information
management strategies.

Establish processes and procedures that
integrate IPS requirements into day-to-day
information management practices.

Identify and publish all information that is
required to be published.

Identify a plan for the publication of additional
optional information.

Develop mechanisms to ensure that
information under the IPS is easily
discoverable, understandable, machine
readable, re-usable and transformable.

Atthe heart the Australian Government’s FOI
reforms is the requirement to improve the
transparency and accessibility of Government
information, its workings and decision making
processes. In this context, public consultation is
at the foundation of all policy changes undertaken
by the TSRA, as mandated by our vision
“Empowering our people, in our decision, in our
culture, for our future”.

Public comment can be submitted through
dedicated community meetings which are
conducted for specific policy issues. These
meetings provide a mechanism for the public to be
informed about the TSRA’s activities, and to provide
feedback on policy issues. The TSRA routinely

provides information and seeks feedback through
media notices, including The Chair’s Column-a
regular column by the TSRA Chairperson published
inthe Torres News, and the TSRA Newsletter—a
regular self published newsletter reporting the
activities and achievements of the TSRA.

The TSRA is part of the Australian Government’s
Families, Housing, Community Services

and Indigenous Affairs (FaHCSIA) portfolio.
Information about the portfolio can be found on
the department’s website, www.fahcsia.gov.au.

As stated in Section 142A of the Aboriginal and
Torres Strait Islander Act 2005 the functions of the
TSRA are to:

(a) recognise and maintain the special and
unique Ailan Kastom of Torres Strait
Islanders living in the Torres Strait area;

(b) formulate and implement programs for
Torres Strait Islanders and Aboriginal
persons, living in the Torres Strait area;

(c) monitor the effectiveness of programs for
Torres Strait Islanders, and Aboriginal persons,
living in the Torres Strait area, including
programs conducted by other bodies;

(d) develop policy proposals to meet national,
State and regional needs and priorities
of Torres Strait Islanders and Aboriginal
persons, living in the Torres Strait area;

(e) assist, advise and co-operate with Torres
Strait Islander and Aboriginal communities,
organisations and individuals at national,
State, Territory and regional levels;

(f) advise the Minister on:

(i) matters relating to Torres Strait Islander
affairs, and Aboriginal affairs, in the Torres
Strait area, including the administration of
legislation;

(i) the co-ordination of the activities of other
Commonwealth bodies that affect Torres
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Strait Islanders, or Aboriginal persons,
living in the Torres Strait area;

(g) when requested by the Minister, to provide
information or advice to the Minister on any
matter specified by the Minister;

(h) take such reasonable action as it considers
necessary to protect Torres Strait Islander
and Aboriginal cultural material and
information relating to the Torres Strait area
if the material or information is considered
sacred or otherwise significant by Torres
Strait Islanders or Aboriginal persons;

(i) at the request of, or with the agreement of,
the Australian Bureau of Statistics but not
otherwise, to collect and publish statistical
information relating to Torres Strait Islanders
and Aboriginal persons, living in the Torres
Strait area;

(j) such other functions as are conferred on the
TSRA by this Act or any other Act;

(k) such other functions as are expressly
conferred on the TSRA by a law of a State
or of aninternal Territory and in respect of
which there is in force written approval by the
Minister under section 142B;

(I) undertake such research as is necessary to
enable the TSRA to perform any of its other
functions;

(m) do anything else that is incidental or
conducive to the performance of any of the
preceding functions.

The TSRA is a Commonwealth Authority
constituted under the Aboriginal and Torres Strait
Islander Act 2005. It consists of an elected arm
and an administrative arm. The elected arm is
made up of a Chairperson, Deputy Chairperson,
Alternate Deputy Chairperson, and Members,
who are elected to office by Torres Strait Islander
and Aboriginal people in their respective
communities (see the ‘TSRA Board’ section

for more details). The administrative armis the
responsibility of the General Manager.

The TSRAis required to prepare estimates of
receipts and expenditure for each financial year
for submission to the Minister for Aboriginal and
Torres Strait Islander Affairs under the Australian
Government financial management framework of
accrual accounting.

The TSRA operates a number of programs and
sub-programs for the allocation of funds within
the region including:

Loans and grants for enterprises;
Housing loans;

Economic, social and cultural grants to
community organisations and individuals;

The administrative and elected arm operating
costs;

Funding for programs to be conducted by the
State; and

Funding for programs to be conducted by
Regional Councils.

The actual allocation of money to the various
programs is guided by the policies and strategies
set by the TSRA Board. The administration

also ensures that grants and loans are used in
accordance with the purposes for which they

are provided, and that grants and loans are
appropriately acquitted.

The Corporate Services Section maintains paper
and electronic files on TSRA budget expenditure;
financial records; wages; client accounts;
financial procedures; asset register; property
management records; workplace agreement;
recruitment, personnel files of TSRA officers; and
Grants and Personnel Policy documents including
instructions from the Australian Public Service
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Commissioner; Department of Employment and
Workplace Relations and the Remuneration
Tribunal and Comcare. The Corporate Services
Sectionis also responsible for files containing:
engagement of consultants; Occupational Health
and Safety; Equal Employment Opportunities;
Industrial Democracy; responses to the Office

of the Federal Privacy Commissioner, statistics
for the Australian Bureau of Statistics, statistics
for the Australian Quarantine Inspection Service,
survey for the Australian National Audit Office,
statistics for the Australian Public Service,
statistics and information for the Remuneration
Tribunal and responses to Freedom of Information
activities. A number of manuals and guidelines
are used inthe TSRA’s decision-making policies
and guidelines, including the TSRA Decision
Making Principles, Finance Procedures manual,
and the Program, Administration and Personnel
Delegation manuals.

The Governance and Leadership program area
continues to maintain copies of the submissions
that have been presented to the TSRA Board
meetings; minutes of the TSRA Board meetings;
TSRA Decision Sheets; and financial records
relating to payment of TSRA members and
meetings, as well as providing administrative
support services to the office of the Chairperson.
Governance and Leadership also maintains

the Register for Ministerial Briefings and
Responses to the Ombudsman. TSRA Program
areas maintain files relating to program-specific
activities.

Information about the TSRA, including details of
its role and how it approaches this role, can be
found in Section 3, Report of Operations on pages
80 - 87 of this report and online at www.tsra.gov.au.
The TSRA’s Board, General Manager and
delegates may exercise decision-making powers
under the following Acts, or parts thereof:

Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Act 2005
(Cth).

Commonwealth Authorities and Companies
Act 1997 (Cth).

Members of the public can make representations
in writing to the TSRA about a range of policies,
and any other matters related to the organisation.
The TSRA aims to provide information requested
by public informally, wherever possible, and
through disclosure inits IPS. FOl requests can
also be directed to the TSRA FOI Co-ordinator.
The TSRA holds documents either as paper
records or on digital media. Requests for access to
documents must be made in writing to the address
shown below and include an address in Australia
to which notices and documents can be sent:

By email: foi@tsra.gov.au

By post: Torres Strait Regional Authority
PO Box 261
Thursday Island, QLD, 4875

Byfax:  (07) 40691879

FOl applications are subject to administrative
charges. The TSRA provides applicants with an
estimate of the administrative charges for each
request. If applicants are dissatisfied with a
decision made under the FOI Act, they may apply
foran internal review of the decision. In certain
circumstances — such as financial hardship or if
the release of the document in questionisin the
general public interest — administrative charges
may be waived under section 29 of the FOI Act.

Activity Number
Requests onhand at1July 2010 Nil

New requests received during Nil
2010-2011

Total requests on hand 30 June 2011 Nil

Table 6-1
Freedom of Information statistics 2010 - 2011
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Appendix 3: Advertising and Market Research

The TSRA advertises all ongoing and non-ongoing
(those exceeding twelve months) vacancies using
the Online APS Jobs and SEEK websites, as well as
other selected national advertising. For national
advertising for tenders and recruitment the TSRA
used the Commonwealth Government’s preferred
supplier AdCorp Australia Ltd. The TSRA also uses

Mer Island.

the regionally based (Far North Queensland) print
media for advertising job vacancies, publishing
media releases and for the distribution of the TSRA
Community Newsletters in line with Australian
Government Procurement Guidelines.

No market research or polling and direct mailing
of organisations was undertaken by the TSRA.
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Appendix 4: Details of Grants

Grantee Purpose Amount ($)

Torres Strait Island Regional Council Olandi Pearson Hall 48,398

Torres Strait Island Regional Council Community Development Employment 4,847,102
Program

Community Enterprises Australia (Torres Strait) Community Development Employment 376,309
Program

Mura Badulgal TSI Corporation RNTBC Construction of PBC building 149,600

Erub Erwer Meta TSI Corporation Document the key totems of the four 25,000
Erub tribes

Torres Shire Council Torres Strait WW2 Conservation Project 10,000
Horn Island sites

Opnor Bakir Atabur TSI Corporation Capacity Building for Divestment 93,600

Saibai Community Development TSI Capacity Building for Divestment 93,600

Corporation

Kailag Enterprises Ltd Marketing plan, capital outlay and 45,000
International Conference

The Roman Catholic Trust Corporation for the NAIDOC celebrations on Hammond 5,000

Diocese of Cairns - Our Lady of the Sacred Island

Heart School

Mura Kosker Sorority Inc Providing social support services in the 160,000
Torres Straitregion

Port Kennedy Association Providing social support services in the 180,000
Port Kennedy area

Badhulgaw Kuthunaw Mudh TSI Corporation Repairs and Maintenance Badhulgaw 50,000
Kuthinaw Mudh Arts Centre

Port Kennedy Association Community After School program 51,317

Torres Strait Youth and Recreational Sporting The Operations of Torres Strait Youth 450,000

Association Inc and Recreational Sporting Association

Northern Peninsula Area Regional Council Northern Peninsula Area Festival 15,000

Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Community ~ Legal Services 682,582

Legal Services (Townsville NQ) Ltd

Torres Strait Island Regional Council Heavy Equipment Management and 660,000
Training Program

Torres Strait Island Regional Council Transport Infrastructure Development 1,400,000
Scheme

Torres Strait Island Regional Council Water Related Infrastructure 1,700,000
Management Support

Torres Shire Council Winds of Zendath Cultural Festival 30,000

Roselind Moilang Barkus Malu Minar Art of the Torres Strait 5,000

Islands Exhibition New Caledonia
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Grantee

Mura Kosker Sorority Inc

Torres Shire Council

Torres Strait Island Regional Council

Tropical North Queensland Institute of TAFE

Torres Strait Islanders Regional Education
Council Inc

Torres Strait Islanders Media Association Inc

Thursday Island Justice TSI and Aboriginal
Corporation

Torres Strait Island Regional Council

Torres Strait Islanders Media Association Inc

Community Enterprises Australia (Torres Strait)

Torres Strait Island Regional Council

Northern Peninsula Area Regional Council
Torres Shire Council

Torres Strait Island Regional Council

Erub Erwer Meta TSI Corporation
Badhulgaw Kuthunaw Mudh TSI Corporation
Ngalmun Lagau TSI Corporation

Mura Kosker Sorority Inc

Mura Kosker Sorority Inc

Torres Strait Island Regional Council

Badhulgaw Kuthunaw Mudh TSI Corporation
Mura Kosker Sorority Inc

Torres Shire Council

Tagai State College

Tagai State College

Torres Shire Council

Erub Erwer Meta TSI Corporation
Mura Kosker Sorority Inc

The Roman Catholic Trust Corporation for the
Diocese of Cairns - Our Lady of the Sacred
Heart School

Purpose

Healthy Lifestyle

Lift for Life

Refurbishment of Boigu Community Hall

Aged Care and Disability Care Training
and Employment Program

Supporting a Strait Start

Provision of Indigenous Broadcasting
Services

Kuki Patrol - Night patrols of the
Thursday Island Community

Poruma Urab Dance Tour

12th National Remote Indigenous Media
Festival

Community Development Employment
Project

Mabuyag History, Culture and
Environment Publication

Major Infrastructure Program

Major Infrastructure Program

Major Infrastructure Program

Erub Erwer Meta Operations
Badhulgaw Kuthinaw Mudh Operations
Ngalmun Lagau Minaral Operations

Writers residency - Talks and seminars
on writing grant applications

Sandra Pilot Photography Project and
Exhibition

Poruma and Badu publication on Tagai
constellation

Art and Craft Workshops

Ina Titasey Life Story

Queensland Music Festival
Publication of Kulkalgaw Ya Dialect
Ukelele workshops

Mural painting on Ngurupai Sports
Complex

Ghostnets across the Gulf
Sewing Projects

Two day Cultural Workshop
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Amount ($)
11,940
20,000
50,000
73,000

97,000

639,696

150,000

5,000
5,000

22,034,111

5,000

5,000,000
9,000,000
4,350,000
60,000
60,000
60,000
6,268

20,500

25,000

25,000
20,000
25,000
25,000

5,000
14,000

15,000
13,000
6,995



Grantee Purpose Amount ()

Tagai State College Celebration of the Arts week 7,870

Kailag Enterprises Ltd Yorke Island Pearl farm Feasibility Study 45,000

Badu Island Foundation Ltd Upgrade Fuel delivery Systems 80,000

Badu Island Foundation Ltd Badu Quarry redevelopment 9,455

Erub Erwer Meta TSI Corporation Images forliving 27,000

Torres Strait Island Regional Council Warraber Multi Function Centre 153,000

Horn Island Aboriginal Corporation Block Plant Study 50,000

Kaurareg Aboriginal Land Trust Ngurapai Farm Project 30,000

Erub Erwer Meta TSI Corporation Brisbane Torres Strait Island Festival 25,000
Saam Karem Era Kodo Mer Dance
Troupe

Ngalmun Lagau TSI Corporation Traditional Dance development 11,000

Kulkalgal (central Islands) Development Tony Harry Solo exhibition and new 6,000

Association Inc business venture

Torres Shire Council 2011 Puliima National Indigenous 6,500
language conference

Mer Gedkem Le TSI Corporation RNTBC Mabo day celebrations 12,750

Torres Strait Island Regional Council 2011 Dance Tour to Brisbane 22,500

Lena Passi Womens Shelter Cairns Indigenous Art Fair 30,000

Torres Shire Council Lions lookout upgrade 40,000

Badu Island Foundation Ltd Police Indigenous Cultural Exchange 12,665
Program

Erub Erwer Meta TSI Corporation CD Production 14,600

Torres Strait Island Regional Council 2011 Brisbane TSI Celebrations MDW 23,200
Maiso Dance Troupe

Torres Strait Island Regional Council 2011 Brisbane TSI Celebrations Balasa 31,900
Ya Kwaya

Torres Strait Island Regional Council Yorke Community Hall 265,050

Torres Strait Island Regional Council Refund of unused grant funds paid in the -20,000
last financial year- Cultural Festival on
Mabuiag Island

Australian Rural Leadership Foundation Funding for Australian Rural Leadership 102,545
Indigenous Programs

Tropical North Queensland Institute of TAFE Micro Business Operations course 43,404
delivery fees

Australian Rural Leadership Foundation Participation in the Australian Rural 60,000
Leadership Program

Total 53,988,457

Table 6-2

Details of Grants
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Appendix 5: Details of Consultants

Consultants Name Amount($) Purpose Selection Process  Justification

3D Environmental 283,773  Ecosystem mapping Direct Sourcing B

Vegetation

Assessmentand

Mapping Specialists

Accsys Consulting 25,774 Accounting and system Direct Sourcing B
support

Aecom Australia Pty 25,731 Environmental Direct Sourcing B

Ltd management consultancy

Answerz IT Consulting 8,680 IT Support Direct Sourcing B

Aquatic Logistics 26,800  Environmental Direct Sourcing B
management consultancy

Arafura Consulting 103,950  Anthropological Direct Sourcing B
consulting

Arenelle Pty Ltd 111,905  In-house training / Direct Sourcing C
coaching and project
development

Australian Government 60,156  Legal Services Direct Sourcing B

Solicitor

Black and More 50,033  Engineering Services Direct Sourcing B

Blair Environmental 6,818  Environmental Direct Sourcing B

Consulting Services management consultancy

Chalk and Fitzgerald 168,294  Native Title Legal services  Direct Sourcing B

CSIRO 32,600  Environmental Direct Sourcing C
management consultancy

David Saylor 12,397  Native Title Legal services  Direct Sourcing B

David Yarrow 9,000 Native Title Legal services  Direct Sourcing B

Davidson Marine 103,121  Maritime services Direct Sourcing Band C

Consultants

Davidson Workplace 30,548  Workplace relations Direct Sourcing B

Solutions

Deltapoint Pty Ltd 18,062  Human Resources Direct Sourcing B
support

DELV Pty Ltd 79,226 1T Support Direct Sourcing B

Department of 9,091 Environmental research Direct Sourcing B

Environment and

Resource Management

Department of Primary 40,500  Environmental research Direct Sourcing B

Industries and Fisheries

DFK Kidsons 89,656 Internal Audit Reviews Direct Sourcing C
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Consultants Name
Diana Abiad
Effective Governance

Environmental Systems
Solutions

Far North Consulting
Group

Felicity Wright

Frank van Schagen and
Associates Pty Ltd

Gadens Lawyers Perth
Pty Ltd

Garrick Hitchcock

Gilkerson Legal
Go Marine Surveyors
Greg Mclintyre S.C.

Hallets Financial
Services Group Pty Ltd

HLB Mann Judd

HWL Ebsworth
Lawyers

Icognition Pty Ltd

James Cook University
James Cook University
James Cook University

Jessups

Jim Brooks

Joanne Lambden and
Associates.

John Sheehan
JPS Consultancy

Leftfield Productions

Amount ($)
30,000
130,000

83,800

13,394

34,480

14,056

4,337

5,000

154,792
37,315
24,725

8,340

8,200

8,982

42,586
25,655
50,000
35,736

15,000

34,907

61,420

15,000
4,153
51,732

Purpose
Training support
Governance review

Environmental
management consultancy

Economic Development
consultancy

Economic Development
consultancy

Training support

Native Title Legal services

Anthropological
consulting

Native Title Legal services
Maritime services
Native Title Legal services

Taxadvice

Trust Accounting advice

Native Title Legal services

IT Support

Environmental research
Environmental research
Environmental research

Economic Development
consultancy

Native Title Legal services

Review of future support for
Prescribed Bodies Corporate

Native Title Legal services
Business Readiness

Documentary Services

TORRES STRAIT REGIONAL AUTHORITY | ANNUAL REPORT 2010-2011

Selection Process

Select Tender
Open Tender

Open Tender

Direct Sourcing

Select Tender

Direct Sourcing

Direct Sourcing

Direct Sourcing

Direct Sourcing
Direct Sourcing
Direct Sourcing

Direct Sourcing

Direct Sourcing

Direct Sourcing

Direct Sourcing
Direct Sourcing
Direct Sourcing
Direct Sourcing

Select Tender

Direct Sourcing

Open Tender

Direct Sourcing
Select Tender

Select Tender

Justification
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Consultants Name

Lloyd Consulting Pty
Ltd ATF The Lloyd
Family Trust

Longley Stapleton

McGees Property

PandE Law
Pegasus Studios

People and Strategy

Queensland Corporate

Communications
Network

Queensland
Department of
Employment,
Economic
Development and
Innovation

R and B Creative
Communications

Reefand Rainforest
Research Centre

Robert Blowes

Roe Legal Services
Pty Ltd

Savvy Community
Development
Consultants

Stephanie Duce
Sturt Glacken SC

Tagai State College

Tom Keely

Torres Strait Island
Regional Council

Amount ($)

5,658

127,727

3,500

58,416
60,000

44,885

142,767

109,500

9,905

58,906

225,739

400

30,718

9,091

409

100,000

66,324

719,165

Purpose

Facilitate Program
Planning meeting

Accounting and Systems
support

Methodology for Native
Title Compensation

Native Title Legal services
Cultural Arts Audit

Human Resources
Support

Communications review

Environmental research

Design Services

Environmental research

Native Title Legal services

Native Title Legal services

Environmental research

GIS support
Native Title Legal services

Environmental
Management

Native Title Legal services

Environmental
Management
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Selection Process

Direct Sourcing

Open Tender

Direct Sourcing

Direct Sourcing
Direct Sourcing

Direct Sourcing

Open Tender

Direct Sourcing

Select Tender

Direct Sourcing

Direct Sourcing

Direct Sourcing

Direct Sourcing

Direct Sourcing

Direct Sourcing

Direct Sourcing

Direct Sourcing

Direct Sourcing

Justification

B

BandC



Consultants Name Amount ($) Purpose Selection Process  Justification

Torres Strait Island 369,438  Environmental Direct Sourcing B
Regional Council Management

Torres Strait Island 103,050  Environmental Direct Sourcing B
Regional Council Management

Torres StraitIsland 5,484  Environmental Direct Sourcing B
Regional Council Management

Torres Strait Island 180,000  Environmental Direct Sourcing B
Regional Council Management

Tropical North Qld 5,455  Arts program support Direct Sourcing B
Institute of TAFE

Moore Stephens 43,056  Independent Chairing of Select Tender C
Canberra Pty Ltd TSRA’s Audit Committee

PDM Consultancy 74,887  Internal Audit services Select Tender C
Tina Jowett 3,898  Native Title Legal services  Direct Sourcing B
Total Consultants 4,748,003

Justification Code:

A: Skills currently unavailable within TSRA

B: Need for specialised or professional skills

C: Need forindependent research or assessment

Table 6-3
Details of Consultants

fmil R o A
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Horn Island.

Appendix 5: Details of Consultants
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Appendix 6: Compliance with
Australian Government Statutes and Policies

Under the Commonwealth Authorities and
Companies (Report of Operations) Orders 2008,
Schedule 1, clause 12 the TSRA is required

to provide particulars of general policies that
apply to the organisation, as a Commonwealth
Authority under Section 28 of the Commonwealth

Authorities and Company Act 1997.

Additionally under the Commonwealth Authorities
and Companies (Report of Operations) Orders
2008, Schedule 1, clause 17 the TSRA needs to
provide details of other statutory requirements
that apply to its operations throughout the
reporting period.

The following table details both the policies (as per clause 12) and the statutory requirements
(as per clause 17) that apply to the TSRA.

Statute / Government policy

Obligation

Compliance

Aboriginal and Torres Strait
Islander Act 2005 (Cth)

Australian Competitive Grants
Register (ACGR)

Competitive Neutrality (CN)

Energy Efficiency in Government
Operations

Fraud Policy

Freedom of Information Act 1982
(Cth)

Privacy Act 1988 (Cth)

Protective Security Policy
Framework

Senate Continuing Order No.6
as varied by the Senate on 3
December 1998

Various

Comply with eligibility for inclusion
on ACGR

Comply with CN Policy as provided
by Treasury

Comply with Australian Greenhouse
Office energy data reporting
requirements

Comply with Commonwealth Fraud
Control Guidelines

Comply with Freedom of Information
Act 1982 (Cth)

Comply with Privacy Act 1988 (Cth) -
Personal Information Digest

Attorney Generals Department

Australian Government Protective
Security Survey

TSRA to provide FaHCSIA with an
indexed list of file title created each
six monthly period to comply with
Senate Order

Fully compliant, please see
Compliance Index, Section7

Not applicable

Compliant

Compliant

Compliant

TSRA has a fraud control plan
inplace

Compliant
See Appendix 2
Compliant

No breaches to Privacy Act
1988 (Cth) during 2010 - 2011

Compliant

No breaches to the Protective
Security Policy Framework
during 2010 - 2011

Compliant

Table 6-4

Compliance with Australian Government Statutes and Policies
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This appendix is in reference to the Appropriation
Program Expenditure table found on page 13 and
details the reasons behind the variance for each
program area’s expenditure against budget.

During 2010 - 2011 the TSRA operated under a
program structure which was focussed on the
delivery of outcomes and realisation of measurable
benefits against the Torres Strait and Northern
Peninsula Area Regional Plan 2009 - 2029 and the
Torres Strait Development Plan 2009 - 2013.

The table on page 13 provides a comparison
between the TSRA program spend during

2010 - 2011 and the appropriation budget for the
same period. As can be seen from the table, TSRA
programs were allocated a budget for 2010 - 2011
totalling $70.558 million. This budget amount is in
line with revenue from the Australian Government,
as per Portfolio Budget Statement $69.758 million
plus a modest interest allocation of $0.8 million.
The actual programs spend during the year
totalled $70.090 million resulting in a small
variance as compared to budget of $0.468 million.

The TSRA program budget for 2010 - 2011

was approved by the TSRA Board in June

2010. Throughout the 2010 - 2011 year TSRA
management used best endeavours to monitor
and re-evaluate the financial performance of
the TSRA. The early identification of potential
underspends in some Programs provided an
opportunity for the TSRA to fund initiatives that
could not initially be supported through various
funding rounds in 2010 - 2011.
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The following programs have recorded small
underspends for the financial year 2010 - 2011.
The underspends can be attributed to efficiencies
linked to operational activity throughout the year.

Program Area Variance

$°000
Culture, Art and Heritage 56
Economic Development 46
Governance and Leadership 115
Healthy Communities 22
Native Title 11
Safe Communities 37

Table 6-5

Program Budget Variance

The Environmental Management program
recorded an underspend of $0.281 million as
compared to budget. The underspend can be
attributed to a decision to defer some project
activity until the 2011 - 2012 financial year. The
main reason for deferring some projects was
the increased activity associated with bringing
the externally funded Ranger Program (21 new
employees) in-house.
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Compliance Indexes

TSRA - Commonwealth Authority

This TSRA Annual Report 2010 - 2011 is prepared The table below references the specific

inaccordance with Section 1447B of the legislation reporting requirement and informs
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Act 2005 the location of the information within this TSRA
(Cth), and all other Sections. Annual Report 2010 - 2011.

As the Torres Strait Regional Authority is a Any inquiries relating to this Compliance Index
Commonwealth Authority itis also required to can be directed to the TSRA by telephoning
prepare an Annual Reportin accordance with (07) 4069 0700, toll free telephone 1800 079 093,
the Commonwealth and Companies Act 1997. or emailing info@tsra.gov.au

The reporting requirements are set out in the
Commonwealth Authorities and Companies
(Report of Operations) Orders 2008.

Guiding legislation requirement Page Reference 2010 - 2011

Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Act 2005- Section 144ZB

(2) Certain matters must be included in the Annual Report. The TSRA mustinclude in each Annual
Report details of:

Any directions given by the Minister under Section 142E. Page 86
Section 3, Report of Operations,
Minister

Any consultants engaged under Section 144T. Pages176-179

Appendix 5, Details of
Consultants

(3) Report must include details of grants. If a grant was made by the TSRA during a financial year to
anindividual or body, then, in addition to the matters referred in subsections (1) and (2), the Annual
Report for that year must set out:

The name of the individual or body. Pages173-175
Appendix 4, Details of Grants

The amount and purpose of grant. Pages173-175
Appendix 4, Details of Grants

(4) Report must not disclose sacred matters:

The TSRA must not disclose in any Annual Report any matters No disclosure of sacred matters
known by the TSRA to be held sacred by Torres Strait Islander or has beenreported
Aboriginal persons.

(5) Report must include certain details about consultants

Ifan Annual Report gives details of a consultant engaged under Section | There have been no deviations
144T, the report must set out any significant differences between the from the standard terms and
terms and conditions on which that consultant was engaged and the conditions.

standard terms and conditions for the engagement of consultants by
the TSRA as set out in the instrument referred to in subsection 144T(3).
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Guiding legislation requirement Page Reference 2010 - 2011

Commonwealth Authorities and Companies Act 1997 (Cth) - Division 2 Reporting Obligations -
Subdivision A Annual Report and related obligations

(9) Directors must prepare an Annual Report

(1) The Directors of a Commonwealth Authority must: This requirement has been met

(a) Must prepare an Annual Reportin accordance with Schedule
1foreach financial year; and

(b) Give it to the responsible Minister by the deadline for the This requirement has been met
financial year presentation to the Parliament.

Commonwealth Authorities and Companies Act 1997 (Cth) - Schedule 1 Annual Report for
Commonwealth Authority

Part 1 - Contents of Annual Report

(1) Summary of contents the Annual Report must include:

(a) AReport of Operations , prepared by the Directors in Pages 80-87
accordance with the Finance Ministers Orders; Section 3, Where We Operate
Page xi

Letter of Transmittal

(b) Financial Statements, prepared by Directors under clause 2 of | Page 120

this Schedule; and Section 5, Financial Statements
(c) The Auditor-General’s report on those financial statements, Page 120

prepared under part 2 of this Schedule and addressed to the Section 5, Financial Statements

Minister.

(2) Financial Statements

(1) The Financial Statements must be prepared in accordance Page 120
with the Finance Ministers Orders and must give a true Section 5, Financial Statements -
and fair view of the matters that those orders require to be Independent Auditor’s Report

included in the statements.

(2) If Financial Statements prepared in accordance with the Not applicable
Finance Ministers Orders would not otherwise give a true
and fair view of the matters required by those Orders, the
Directors must add such information and explanations as will
give a true and fair view of those matters.

(3) Inthe Financial Statements the Directors must state whether Page 122
in their opinion the Financial Statements give a true and fair Section b, Financial Statements,
view of the matters required by the Finance Minister’s Orders. | Statement by the Directors

(4) If the Commonwealth Authority is a GBE or SMA, the Directors | Not Applicable
must state whether or not, in their opinion, there are, when
the statement is made, reasonable grounds to believe the
Authority will be able to pay its debts as and when they fall
due.

TSRA - Commonwealth Authority
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Guiding legislation requirement

Part 2 - Auditor’s report on Financial Statements

Page Reference 2010 - 2011

(3) Whether the statements comply with the Finance Minister’s Orders

(1) The Auditor-General must state whether in the Auditor-
General’s opinion, the financial statements:

(a) Have been prepared in accordance with the Finance
Minister’s Orders; and

Page 120
Section 5, Financial Statements,
Independent Auditor’s Report

(b) Give a true and fair view of the matters required by those
Orders.

Page 120
Section b, Financial Statements,
Independent Auditor’s Report

(2) If the Auditor-General is not of that opinion, the Auditor-
General must state the reasons.

Not applicable

(3) Ifthe Auditor-General is of the opinion that failing to prepare
the financial statements in accordance with the Finance
Minister’s orders has a quantifiable effect, the Auditor-
General must quantify that financial effect and state the
amount.

Not applicable

(4) Proper accounting records not kept
Ifthe Auditor-General is of the opinion that the Authority has
contravened Section 20, the Auditor-General must state
particulars of the contravention.

Not applicable

(5) Inadequate information and explanations
Ifthe Auditor-General is of the opinion that the Auditor-
General did not obtain all the necessary information and
explanations, the Auditor-General must state particulars of
the shortcomings.

Not applicable

Commonwealth Authorities and Companies (Report of Operations) Orders 2008

Schedule 1 Report of Operations Schedule
Part 1 Preliminary

(4) Certification

(1) The Report of Operations must:
(a) Be made in accordance with a resolution of the Directors;

Page xi
Letter of Transmittal

(b) Be signed by a Director; and

Pagexi
Letter of Transmittal

(c) Specify the date on which the report is made; and

Page xi
Letter of Transmittal

(d) State that the Directors are responsible under Section 9 of
the CAC Act for the preparation and content of the Report
of Operations in accordance with the Finance Minister’s
Order.

Page xi
Letter of Transmittal
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Guiding legislation requirement

(2) If the Commonwealth Authority has only one Director, the
Report of Operations must:
(a) Be signed by a Director;

Page Reference 2010 - 2011

Not applicable

(b) Specify the date on which the Reportis made;

Not applicable

(c) State that the Director is responsible under Section 9 of
the CAC Act for the preparation and content of the Report
of Operations in accordance with the Finance Minister’s
Orders.

Not applicable

Part 2 - Form and content of the Report of Operations
Division 1 Overview

(5) The Report of Operations must include:

(a) The general information required by Division 2; and

Please refer to Division 2 as
detailed in this table

(b) The specific information required by Division 3.

Please refer to Division 3 as
detailed in this table

(6) Standards of presentation

(1) The Report of Operations must be constructed having regard
to the interests of users, information included in the report
must be relevant and reliable and should be concise, readily
understandable and well balanced.

Annual Reportis relevant, reliable,
concise, readily understandable
and well balanced

(2) The text of the Report of Operations should be free of
ambiguity, jargon and excessive use of acronyms and
technical terms.

The Annual Reportis well written
and free of ambiguity

(3) Use should be made in the Report of Operations of
appropriate tables, graphs, diagrams and charts to illustrate
and explain matters dealt with in the Report.

Tables and charts have been
used throughout the document,
specifically in relation to Board of
Directors pages 90 - 117 and in the
Program Reporting pages 10-77

(4) The Report of Operations may be accompanied by, or
incorporate, other reports (for example a Chief Executive
Officer’s report) not inconsistent with the Report of

Operations, which meet the standards required by this clause.

Pages2-4
Section 1, Strategic Overview,
Chairperson’s Message

Pages6-7
Section 1, Strategic Overview,
General Manager’'s Message

(5) This schedule should not be construed as specifying
particular structure for the Report of Operations, nor as
limiting the Directors as to any other additional matters they
consider appropriate to report upon.

Additional matters include:

Page vii

Opportunities and challenges
Page 90

Section 4, Corporate Governance
and accountability, TSRA
Governance Framework diagram
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Guiding legislation requirement

(7) Obtaining information from subsidiaries

Page Reference 2010 - 2011

Division 2 - General Information about operations and activities

(8) Enabling legislation and responsible Minister

The Report of Operations must specify:
(a) The Commonwealth Authority’s enabling legislation and
its objectives and functions as the case requires, set out
in that legislation; and

Pages 84-87
Section 3, How the TSRA
Operates, Legislative Framework

(b) The name of the responsible Minister at the date of the
reportand the names of any other responsible Minister
during the period covered by the report.

Page 86
Section 3, How the TSRA
Operates, Responsible Minister

(9) Outline of organisational structure

The Report of Operations must provide an outline of the
organisational structure of the Commonwealth Authority
(including subsidiaries) and the location of major activities and
facilities.

Pages113-116

Section 4, Corporate Governance
and accountability, Human
Resources

Page 168
Appendix 1, Organisational
Structure

(10) Review of operations and future prospects

(1) The Report of Operations must include the following
information:
(a) Areview of how the Commonwealth Authority has
performed during the financial year in relations to:
(i) its Commonwealth objects and functions, as the case
requires;
(i) its corporate plan, where applicable; and
(iii) its principal outputs and contribution to outcomes.

Pages10-77

Section 2, Program Reporting
Pages iv - vii

Highlights, Challenges and
Opportunities

Pages2-4

Section 1, Strategic Overview,
Chairperson’s Message
Pages6-7

Section 1, Strategic Overview,
General Manager’'s Message

(b) Factors, events or trends influencing its performance over
the financial year and in the future, including the risks and
opportunities that it faces and the strategies adopted
or proposed to be adopted to manage those risks and
opportunities.

Pages6-7
Section 1, Strategic Overview,
General Manager’'s Message

Page 110

Section 4, Corporate Governance
and Accountability, Risk
Management
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Guiding legislation requirement

(c) Significant events referred to in Section 15 of the CAC Act
that have taken place during the financial year.

Page Reference 2010 - 2011

TSRA had no Section 15 events
toreport

(d) The operational and financial results of the authority
during the financial year, including:
(i) its principal outputs;
(i) major investing and financing activities; and
(iii) key financial and non-financial performance
indicators.

Pages6-7

Section 1, Strategic Overview,
General Manager’'s Message
Pages10-77

Section 2, Program Reporting
Pages120-164

Section 5, Financial Statements

(e) Significant changes in the authorities state of affairs or
principal activities that have occurred during the financial
year.

Pages2-4

Section 1, Strategic Overview,
Chairperson’s Message
Pages6-7

Section 1, Strategic Overview,
General Manager’'s Message

Pages10-77
Section 2, Program Reporting

(f) Developments since the end of the financial year, giving
particulars of any matter or circumstance that has arisen
and has significantly affected or may significantly affect:
(i) The authority’s operations in future years;

(i) The results of those operations in future years; and
(iii) The authority’s state of affairs in future financial years.

Not applicable

(2) The assessment of performance required under paragraph (1) (a)
should:

(a) Address both the efficiency and effectiveness of
operations of the Commonwealth Authority in producing
its principal outputs; and

(b) Make clear links between outcomes, strategies for
achieving those outcomes and the principal outputs.

Pages2-4

Section 1, Strategic Overview,
Chairperson’s Message
Pages6-7

Section 1, Strategic Overview,
General Manager’'s Message

Pages10-77

Section 2, Program Reporting
Pagesiv-vii

Highlights, Challenges and
Opportunities

(11) Judicial Decisions and Reviews by outside bodies

The Report of Operations must include particulars of:
(a) Judicial decisions and decisions of administrative tribunals
that have had, or may have, a significantimpact on the
operations of the Commonwealth Authority.

Page 87

Section 3, Report of Operations,
Legislative Framework, Judicial
Decisions and Review
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Guiding legislation requirement

(b) Reports on the operations of the authority by the Auditor-
General (other than the report on the financial statements),
a Parliamentary Committee or the Commonwealth
Ombudsman.

Page Reference 2010 - 2011

Page 87

Section 3, Report of Operations,
Legislative Framework, Judicial
Decisions and Reviews

(12) Effects of Ministerial directions

(1) The Report of Operations must provide particulars of:
(a) Any directions issued by the responsible Minister, or
other Minister, under the enabling legislation of the
Commonwealth Authority or other legislation:
(i) During the financial year;
(ii) Since the end of the financial year; and
(i) Continuing from previous financial years.

Page 86

Section 3, Report of Operations,
Powers of Direction by the
Minister

(b) General policies of the government that apply to the
Commonwealth Authority under Section 28 of the CAC
Act:

(i) During the financial year;

(ii) Since the end of the financial year; and

(

i) Continuing from previous financial years.

Page 111

Section 4, Corporate Governance
and Accountability, Compliance
Report

Page 180

Appendix 6, Compliance with
Australian Government Statutes
and Policies

(2) Where a direction or general policy reported under subclause
(1) has not been fully complied with, the report should include
an explanation of the extent of, and reasons for, the non-
compliance.

Not applicable The TSRA has
complied under sub-clause (1)

Division 3 - Specific Information

(14) Directors

(1) The following particulars must be given in the Report
of Operations with respect to the Directors of the
Commonwealth Authority:
(a) Each Directors name, qualifications, experience and
special responsibilities and whether he or she is an
executive Director or a Non-Executive Director; and

Pages90-91

Section 4, Corporate Governance
and Accountability, TSRA Board
of Directors

Pages92-101

Section 4, Corporate Governance
and Accountability, TSRA Board
of Directors, Profiles

(b) The number of meetings of the Board of Directors held
during the financial year and each Directors attendance at
those meetings.

Pages103-107

Section 4, Corporate Governance
and Accountability, TSRA Board
of Directors, meeting schedule
and attendance tables

(2) The particulars required by sub-clause (1) should be given
for each Director who was in office at the date of the Report
of Operations or during the period covered by the report,
distinguishing between Directors at the date of the report and
those who ceased to be Directors during the period covered
by the report.

Pages92-101

Section 4, Corporate Governance
and Accountability, TSRA Board
of Directors, Profiles
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Guiding legislation requirement

(3) The particulars required by paragraph (1) (b) do not apply
in the case of a Commonwealth Authority which has only
Director

Page Reference 2010 - 2011

Not applicable

(15) Statement of Governance

(1) The Report of Operations must include a statement of the main
corporate governance practices that the Commonwealth
Authority had in place during the financial year.

Page 90
Section 4, Corporate Governance
and Accountability

(2) The statement must include the following information for each
Board Committee (including the Audit Committee) of the
Commonwealth Authority:

(a) The Committees main responsibilities and rights;

Pages90-117
Section 4, Corporate Governance
and Accountability

Pages90-117

Section 4, Corporate Governance
and Accountability, Board
Members

(b) Each members’ name, position held within the
Commonwealth Authority and special responsibilities;
and

Pages90-117

Section 4, Corporate Governance
and Accountability, Board
Members

(c) The number of meetings of the Committee held during the
financial year and each members’ attendance at those
meetings.

Pages90-117

Section 4, Corporate Governance
and Accountability, Board of
Directors

(3) Without limiting the content of the statement, it may include:
(a) Whether there are any formal induction or continuing
education processes to inform Non-Executive Directors
of their responsibilities and rights;

Page 105

Section 4, Corporate Governance
and Accountability, Board
Members, Executive Coaching

(b) Whether there is any formal mechanism for reviewing the
performance of Directors;

Page 91

Section 4, Corporate Governance
and Accountability, TSRA Board
Members

(c) The main procedures by which the Directors can seek
independent professional advice, at the authority’s
expense, in carrying out their duties;

Page 105

Section 4, Corporate Governance
and Accountability, Board
Members, Executive Coaching

(d) The Directors approach to identifying areas of significant
risk and to putting arrangements in place to manage such

Page 110
Section 4, Corporate Governance

risk; and and Accountability, Risk
Management
(e) The authority’s policy on the establishment and Page 105

maintenance of appropriate ethical standards.

Section 4, Corporate Governance
and Accountability, TSRA Board
Member’s Code of Conduct
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Guiding legislation requirement

(16) Indemnities and insurance premiums for officers

Page Reference 2010 - 2011

(1) The Report of Operations must include details of:
(a) Any indemnity that is given to a current or former officer
against a liability, or any relevant agreement under which
an officer may be given an indemnity of that kind; and

Page111-112

Section 4, Corporate Governance
and Accountability, Indemnities
and Insurance Premiums for
Officers

(b) Any premium that is paid, or agreed to be paid, for
insurance against a current or former officer’s liability for
legal costs.

Page111-112

Section 4, Corporate Governance
and Accountability, Indemnities
and Insurance Premiums for
Officers

(2) The details required under subclause 1.

Page111-112

Section 4, Corporate Governance
and Accountability, Indemnities
and Insurance Premiums for
Officers

(3) The Report of Operations need not give details of the nature
of the liability covered by, or the amount of the premium
payable under, a contract of insurance to the extent that
disclosure of those details is prohibited by the insurance
contract.

Page111-112

Section 4, Corporate Governance
and Accountability, Indemnities
and Insurance Premiums for
Officers

(17) Other Commonwealth requirements

(1) The Report of Operations must include any matters required
to be included in the Annual Report of the Commonwealth
Authority by:

(a) The authority’s enabling legislation; and

Pages 84-87
Section 3, Report of Operations,
Legislative Framework

(b) any other legislation.

Appendix 6

(2) Any requirements referred to in subclause (1) mustinclude
any such matters carried out by or through a subsidiary of the
Commonwealth Authority.

Not applicable

Financial Reports
The report must include your organisation’s financial statements,
directors’ report and

Pages120-164
Auditor’s report on the statements
for the financial year.

Note: Refer to Schedule 1 Annual
report for Commonwealth
Authority for details of financial
reporting requirements.
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Guiding legislation requirement Page Reference 2010 - 2011

The annual reports of Commonwealth authorities must under Pages 108-109
Section 516A of the Environment Protection and Biodiversity Section 4, Corporate Governance
Conservation Act 1999 (Cth) (EPBC Act), now include a report on and Accountability, EPBC Act
environmental matters in their annual reports. Reporting
Details to be included:
1. reporthow the agency’s activities have accorded with the
principles of Ecologically Sustainable Development (ESD)
2. identify how their departmental outcomes contributed to ESD
3. documentthe agency’simpacts upon the environment and
measures taken to minimise those impacts
4. identify the review mechanisms in place to review and
increase the measures the agency takes to minimise its
impact upon the environment
The annual reports of Commonwealth authorities must include Page 113
information set out in subsection 74(1) of the Occupational Health Section 4, Corporate Governance
and Safety Act 1991 (Cth) and Accountability

(1) The annual reportin relation to a financial year:

(a) of each Entity through which the Commonwealth acts; and

(b) of each Commonwealth authority that is required, under
the Act or other law by or in accordance with which the
authority is established or incorporated, to prepare an
annual report of its activities with a view to that report
being laid before each House of the Parliament;

The Annual Report must include details of the following matters:

(c) the health and safety management arrangements of the
Entity or authority;

(d) initiatives taken during the year to ensure the health,
safety and welfare at work of
(da) health and safety outcomes (including the impact

oninjury rates of employees and contractors of the
Entity or authority) achieved as a result of initiatives
mentioned under paragraph (d) or previous initiatives;

(e) statistics of any accidents or dangerous occurrences
during the year that arose out of the conduct of
undertakings by the Entity or authority and that required
the giving of notice under Section 68;

(f) any investigations conducted during the year that relate
to undertakings carried on by the employer, including
details of all notices given to the employer under Section
29,46 or 47 during the year;

TSRA - Commonwealth Authority
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Guiding legislation requirement Page Reference 2010 - 2011

(g) such other matters as are required by guidelines approved
on behalf of the Parliament by the Joint Committee of
Public Accounts and Audit.

(2) Where an annual report of the activities of the Commonwealth
authority is not required, under the Act or other law by or

in accordance with which the authority is established or

incorporated, to be prepared with a view to its being laid

before each House of the Parliament, a report concerning
details, in relation to the authority in relation to a particular

financial year, of the matters referred to in subsection (1),

must be attached:

(a) if a controlling interest in the Commonwealth authority
isheld, either directly or indirectly, by another
Commonwealth authority in respect of the activities of
which anannual reportis so required to be prepared - to
that annual report; or

(b) ifa controlling interest in the Commonwealth authority is
not so held - to the annual report of the Entity or an Entity,
administered by the responsible Minister for the first-
mentioned authority.
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TSRA - Native Title Representative Body (NTRB)

The TSRA is a Commonwealth Authority and
as such is governed by Section 144ZB of the
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Act 2005
(Cth), and the Commonwealth and Companies
Act 1997 (Cth).

The TSRAis also a Native Title Representative
Body (NTRB) and required to provide an Annual
Report of its operations and performance of
Representative Body functions together with
financial statements prepared in accordance
with Australian Accounting Standards, to the
Department of Families, Housing, Community

Services and Indigenous Affairs (FaHCSIA).

The following table is the checklist of reporting
requirements for 2010 - 2011 foran NTRB as
supplied by the Department of Families, Housing,
Community Services and Indigenous Affairs.

All CAC Act 1997 (Cth) requirements have already
been referenced in the Compliance Index titled -
TSRA as a Commonwealth Authority.

Any inquiries relating to this Compliance Index
can be directed to the Native Title Office, Torres
Strait Regional Authority by telephoning

(07) 4069 2581 or emailing info@tsra.gov.au

Requirement Page Reference

Covering letter to Minister

Page xi
Letter of Transmittal

Table of Contents

Page viii
Table of Contents

Glossary Page203-204
Glossary
Contact Officer and contact details Pageii
Page 196

NTRB Compliance Index

Report by Chairperson

Pages2-4
Section 1, Strategic Overview,
Chairperson’s Message

Report by Chief Executive Officer including:

(a) Summary of significant issues and developments;

Pages6-7
Section 1, Strategic Overview,
General Manager’'s Message

(b) Overview of performance and financial results;

Section 5, Financial Reports

(c) Outlook for the following year. Page7
NTRB Overview
(a) Overview description of NTRB Pagesb57-61

Section 2, Program Reporting,
Native Title Program, NTRB
Functions

(b) Role and functions
(i) Legislation
(ii) Legislative functions
(iii) Corporate Governance Policies

Pages57-61

Section 2, Program Reporting,
Native Title Program, NTRB
Functions

(c) Organisational structure

Pages57-61

Section 2, Program Reporting,
Native Title Program, NTRB
Functions
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Requirement Page Reference

(d) Outcome and output structure

Page 49
Section 2, Native Title Program
Map

(e) Key features - strategic plan, operational plan

Pages57-61

Section 2, Program Reporting,
Native Title Program, NTRB
Functions

Report on Performance

(a) (i) Review of performance during the year in relation to strategic
and operational plan and by function
(ii) Summary data on outputs

Pages 48-56
Section 2, Program Reporting

Pages 48-56
Section 2, Program Reporting

heads of expenditure and revenue

(i) Discussion of analysis of NTRB’s financial performance
against budget

(ii) Discussion of any significant changes from the prior year or
from budget

(b) Narrative discussion and analysis of performance Pages 48-56
Section 2, Program Reporting
(c) Summary resources tables by outputs, budget / actual by main Page 120

Section 5, Financial Statements

(d) Developments since the end of financial year have affected or
may significantly affect the NTRB’s operations in future

Not applicable

Corporate Governance - statement of the main practices in place

(a) Name of the senior executive and their responsibilities

Pages90-117

Section 4, Corporate Governance
and Accountability, Board
Members

(b) Senior Management committees and their roles - Separation of
Powers
(i) Number of Board and Committee Meetings, attendance by
Members
(ii) Training arrangements for Board Members

Pages90-117

Section 4, Corporate Governance
and Accountability, Board
Members

(c) Corporate and operational planning and associated performance
reporting and review

Page 106

Section 4, Corporate Governance
and Accountability, Program
Steering Committee

(d) Approach adopted to identifying areas of significant financial or
operational risk and arrangements in place to manage risks

Page 106

Section 4, Corporate Governance
and Accountability, Advisory
Committee

(e) Policy and practices on the establishment and maintenance of
appropriate ethical standards

Pages123-124
Section 4, Corporate Governance
and Accountability

(a) Judicial decisions and decisions of administrative tribunals

(f) Nature and amount or remuneration for senior management and Page 120
how it is determined Section b, Financial Statements
External Scrutiny - Significant developments in external scrutiny Page 87

Section 3, Report of Operations,
Judicial Decisions and Review
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Requirement Page Reference

(b) Evaluation and / or audit reports - findings and responses Page 120
Section 5, Financial Statements

(c) Other external reviews Not applicable
Management of Human resources - Assessment in effectiveness Pages113-116
in managing and developing human resources to perform NTRB Section 4, Corporate Governance
functions and achieve NTRB objectives and Accountability

(a) Workforce planning, staff turnover and retention

(b) Training and development undertaken and its impact Page 113

Section 4, Corporate Governance
and Accountability, Staff
Development and Training

(c) Impact and features of Certified Agreements and AWA’s Page 113

Section 4, Corporate Governance
and Accountability, Workplace
Agreement

(d) Occupational health and safety performance Page113-116

Section 4, Corporate Governance
and Accountability, Health

and Safety Management
Arrangements

(e) Statistics on staffing Page113-116

Section 4, Corporate Governance
and Accountability, Human
Resources

(f) Indemnities and insurance premiums for officers Page 111
Section 4, Corporate Governance
and Accountability

Consultants and Competitive tendering and Contracting Pages 176-179
Appendix 5, Details of

(a) Competitive tendering and Contracting practices Consultants

(b) Number of consultancy services contracts let and total Pages 176 -179
expenditure on consultancy services Appendix 5, Details of

%) Consultants
L
n Financial Statements Page 120
e Section 5, Financial Statements
z (a) Auditor’s Report
L
QZ) (b) Statement by Governing Committee and CEO Page 120
<:( Section b, Financial Statements
% (c) Financial Statements Page 120
8 Section 5, Financial Statements
- (d) Notes to Financial Statements Page 120
E Section 5, Financial Statements
:—2 Other information Page 184
o Section 7, Compliance Index
5-', (a) Index
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4-2 TSRA Executive Committee Meeting Dates 102
4-3 TSRA Executive Committee Attendance 102
4-4 TSRA Board meetings 103
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4-7 TSRA Audit Committee meetings 107
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4-11 TSRA's EEO Groups Within Classification Levels 116
6-1 Freedom of Information statistics 2010 - 2011 171
6-2 Details of Grants 173-175
6-3 Details of Consultants 176 -179
6-4 Compliance with Australian Government Statutes and Policies 180
6-5 Program Budget Variance 181
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Ailan Kastom
APSC
ATES
ATSI Act
ATSIC
ATSICLS
AWA
BFS

BSA
CAC Act
CAH
CDEP
CFG
COAG
CSIRO
DEEDI
DERM
Development Plan
DIP
DOGIT
DTMR
EEO
Erub
FaHCSIA
FOI

GBE
GTCC
HEMTP
lama
IBIS
ILUA

ISD

Kaiar

Island Custom

Australian Public Service Commission

Assistance with Tertiary Education Scholarship

Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Act 2005 (Cth)

Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Commission

Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Community Legal Services
Australian Workplace Agreement

Business Funding Scheme

Building Services Authority

Commonwealth Authorities and Companies Act 1997 (Cth)
TSRA Culture, Arts and Heritage Program

Community Development Employment Project

Community Fishers Group

Council of Australian Governments

Commonwealth Scientific and Industrial Research Organisation
Department of Employment, Economic Development and Innovation
Department of Environment and Resource Management

TSRA Torres Strait Development Plan 2009 - 2013

Department of Infrastructure and Planning

Deed of Grantin Trust

Department of Transport and Main Roads

Equal Employment Opportunity

Also known as Darnley Island

Department of Families, Housing, Community Services and Indigenous Affairs
Freedom of Information

Government Business Enterprise

Gab Titui Cultural Centre

Heavy Equipment and Management Training Program

Also known as Yam Island

Islander Board of Industry and Services

Indigenous Land Use Agreement

Integrated Service Delivery - an action from the Regional Plan

Traditional name for Tropical Rock Lobster
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Masig Also known as Yorke Island

Mer Also known as Murray Island

MIP Major Infrastructure Program

MP Member of Parliament

MOU Memorandum of Understanding

MTSRF Marine and Tropical Sciences Research Facility
NNTT National Native Title Tribunal

NPA Northern Peninsula Area

NPARC Northern Peninsula Area Regional Council

NTO Native Title Office

NTRB Native Title Representative Body

OH&S Occupational Health and Safety

PBC Prescribed Body Corporate

PEO Principal Executive Officer

PNG Papua New Guinea

Poruma Also known as Coconut Island

PSC Program Steering Committee

PZJA Protected Zone Joint Authority

Regional Plan Torres Strait and Northern Peninsula Area Regional Plan 2009 - 2029
RNTBC Registered Native Title Body Corporate

SMA Statutory Marketing Authority

TIB Traditional Inhabitants Boating sector

TIDS Transport Infrastructure Development Scheme
TRAWQ Tamwoy, Rosehill, Aplin, Waiben and Quarantine
TRL Tropical Rock Lobster

TSC Torres Shire Council

TSI Torres Strait Islander

TSIRC Torres Strait Island Regional Council

TSIRCES Torres Strait Island Regional Council Engineering Services
TSRA Torres Strait Regional Authority

TSYRSA Torres Strait Youth and Recreational Sporting Association
Ugar Also known as Stephen Island

Warraber Also known as Sue Island
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Boigu Island

Glossary
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Index

Abednego, John, 100

Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander 99-Year Residential
Leases - Valuation Methodology Options (Qld State
Government), v

Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Act 2005 (Cth), 10,
84, 85-6,107, 169

and members of Board, 91

Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Commission Act
1989 (Cth), 84

Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Community Legal
Service (ATSICLS) North Queensland, 72

accountability, 111-12

AdCorp Australia Ltd, 172
advertising and market research, 172
advisory committees, 106

see also Audit Committee; Indigenous Fisheries
Advisory Committee (IFAC)

Ailan Kastom (island custom) of Torres Strait, 80
aims of programs
Culture, Art and Heritage program, 14
Economic Development program, 22
Environmental Management program, 30
Governance and Leadership program, 40
Healthy Communities program, 62
Native Title program, 48
Safe Communities program, 70
airstrips and marine transport infrastructure, 73
Aniba, Jeffrey, 100

Appropriation Program Expenditure 2010-2011 Budget
as Compared to Actual, 13, 181

Art Centres, 16, 18, 20
arts development, 16, 17,19
Arts Development project, 16-17
Arts Queensland, 16
‘Gritty Places’ program, 16

Indigenous Regional Arts Development Fund
(IRADF), 17

Asia Pacific Indigenous Youth Network (Climate Youth
Camp), 43, 47

Assistance with Tertiary Education Scheme (ATES), 43
Audit Committee, 106—7, 111

attendance, 107

meetings, 107

membership, 106

Auditor-General
audits by, 111

Australian Bureau of Statistics (ABS)
and regional statistics, 83

Australian Government statutes and policies
compliance with, 180

Australian Rural Leadership Program (ARLP), 43

Badu community
arts development, 16, 17
Badu Hotel, 28
Badu Island
replacement of berthing dolphins at barge ramps, 77
Badu Island Foundation
Community Economic Initiative Scheme
case study, 28
Bangladesh United Nations Development Program
delegation from, 3
Banu, Donald, 91, 95
barge ramps
replacement of berthing dolphins at, 77
baseline regional environmental data, 37
Bedford, Kenny, 91, 93-4
Bero, Florianna, 100-1
Bin Tahal, Napcia, 91, 93
Biodiversity Project, 30
Board, 84, 90-1
attendance at meetings, 104
and communities, iv
composition, 90-1
functions, 90
and governance, vii
meeting schedule, 103
member induction process, 105
Member's Code of Conduct, 105
members’ profiles, 92-101
Non-Executive Directors, 91
portfolio responsibilities, 2
transition to electronic meeting format, 104
Boigu community
and Traditional Ecological Knowledge project, 17, 35
Boigu Island
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replacement of berthing dolphins at barge ramps, 77
border security initiatives under Torres Strait Treaty, v
Bosun, David, 97
broadband internet connectivity, 73, 74
bullying see Preventing Bullying and Harassment Policy
Business Funding Scheme, 24
Business Funding Scheme and Housing Loans project, 26
Business Funding Support project, 24, 28

Cairns Indigenous Art Fair, v, 16
capacity building
Prescribed Bodies Corporate, 42, 45

senior government and ministerial level meetings
attended, 45

Capacity Building for Prescribed Body Corporate
project, 42

Capacity Building for Regional Governance and
Leadership project, 40, 43

Cape York Land Council, 53
Caring for Our Country program
and Dugong and Turtle Project, 4
and traditional ecological knowledge, 35
Chairperson’s message, 2-4
child care centres, 72
climate change

intervention on at United Nations Permanent
Forum on Indigenous Issues, 2

see also communities engaged in and becoming
aware of climate change impacts; Indigenous
Youth Recognise Impacts of Climate Change;
Torres Strait Climate Change Strategy

Climate Change / Coastal Erosion Project, 30
Climate Change and Coastal Management project, 35
Climate Change Strategy Action Plan
development of, 38
climate change studies, v

Closing the Gap in Indigenous Disadvantage, iv, vii, 4,
6-7,44, 82

data used to benchmark progress towards, 82, 83
targets, 82
Culture, Art and Heritage program, 18, 19, 20
Economic Development program, 25, 26, 27
Environmental Management program, 36, 37, 38

Governance and Leadership program, 44,
45,46

Healthy Communities program, 68, 69
Native Title program, 53, 54, 55
Safe Communities program, 74, 75

COAG targets see Closing the Gap in Indigenous
Disadvantage, targets

coastal management see Climate Change and Coastal
Management project

Comcare, 113
Comcover, 111-12

Commonwealth Authorities and Companies Act 1997
(Cth), 84-5, 106, 111, 112,180

and members of Board, 91

Commonwealth Authorities and Companies (Report of
Operations) Orders 2008, 180

Commonwealth Disability Strategy, 115
Commonwealth Rehabilitation Services, 114
communications services, vii

see also Regional Communication project; regional
communications

communities see Torres Strait communities

communities engaged in and becoming aware of
climate change impacts, 38

Community Development Employment Projects (CDEP),
iv, 6,24,25,27

see alsonon Community Development
Employment Projects (CDEP) employment

Community Economic Initiative Scheme (CEIS) - Badu
Island Foundation

case study, 28
Community Economic Initiatives Scheme (CEIS) Grants, 24
community market gardens project

healthy home initiative, 65
Compliance Report, 111

compliance with Australian Government statutes and
policies, 180

conflicts of interest, 112
consultancies

Native Title Office (NTO)

TSRA as Native Title Representative Body, 59

consultants

details of, 176-9
contact details

freedom of information, 171
corporate governance and accountability, 90-116
Corporate Services Section, 170, 171

Corporations (Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islanders) Act
2006 (Cth), 57
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‘Critical Habitats in High Risk Areas - Moa Island to
Mabuiag Island Atlas’, 34

cultural heritage, 20

Cultural Heritage Bodies (under Torres Strait Islander
Cultural Heritage Act 2003 (Qld))

Badu and Moa communities, 17
Cultural Heritage Management project, 17
Cultural Heritage project, 35
cultural maintenance, 19

Cultural Maintenance exhibition, ‘Sibuwanay’ / “Tar Digri’

(‘Giving of the Gift’), 17,20
Cultural Maintenance Plan, 16
Cultural Maintenance project, 16
Cultural Policy, 7,16, 17, 20
cultural policy framework and guiding principles, v
Cultural Protocols, 20
Cultural Protocols Guide for TSRA Staff, v, 16
Culture, Art and Heritage Grants Program, 16, 18
Culture, Art and Heritage program, 10, 14-21, 84

aim of program, 14

Appropriation Program Expenditure 2010-2011
Budget as Compared to Actual, 13, 181

deliverables, 14
expenditure, 14

key performance indicators — Portfolio Budget
Statement, 18

key performance indicators — Torres Strait
Development Plan, 18-20

objective, 14

program map, 15

program projects and achievements, 16-17
regional goal, 14

‘Current and Future Climate Projections for the Torres
Strait’ (CSIRO), 35

Darwin Aboriginal Art Fair, v, 16

Data Management project, 42

Day, Ron, 98

Declaration on the Rights of Indigenous People, 3

Deed of Grant in Trust (DOGIT) transfer matters, 50, 53

deliverables (from Portfolio Budget Statement)
Culture, Art and Heritage program, 14
Economic Development program, 22
Environmental Management program, 30

Governance and Leadership program, 40
Healthy Communities program, 62-3
Native Title program, 48
Safe Communities program, 70
Department of Employment, Economic
Development and Innovation (DEEDI)
and Seagrass Monitoring project, 38, 39

Department of Families, Housing, Community Services
and Indigenous Affairs

and economic development opportunities in the
Torres Strait and Northern Peninsula Area, v

and repatriation of Indigenous human remains and
sacred objects, v

Department of Prime Minister and Cabinet

and repatriation of Indigenous human remains and
sacred objects, v

directors’ interests policy, 112
disability reporting
changes to, 115
dolphin replacement project
atbarge ramps, 77
Domestic Violence Prevention Working Party, 73
Dugong and Turtle Management project, 33
Dugong and Turtle Project, 4
dugongs
research, v
sustainable management of, 4
see also Seagrass Monitoring project

Ecologically Sustainable Development (ESD)
reporting requirements, 108-9

economic development initiatives, v

Economic Development program, 10, 22-8, 84
aim of program, 22

Appropriation Program Expenditure 2010-2011
Budget as Compared to Actual, 13, 181

deliverables, 22
expenditure, 22

key performance indicators — Portfolio Budget
Statement, 25

key performance indicators — Torres Strait
Development Plan, 267

objective, 22
program map, 23
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program projects and achievements, 24
regional goal, 22
Torres Strait Development Plan outcomes, 22
economic development strategies, iv
education
regional statistics, 83

Electronic Document and Records Management
System (EDRMS), 108

Elisala, Torenzo, 95-6, 105
employment
regional statistics, 83
Employment and Training Initiatives, 24
employment opportunities in the region, iv

see also Community Development Employment
Projects (CDEP); non Community Development
Employment Projects (CDEP) employment

enabling functions, 108-10

enabling legislation, 84-5

engagement with communities, iv, 2
Enosa, Ron, 99-100

Enterprise Agreement, 58, 113
environment impact management, 108-9
Environment Policy, 109

Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation
Act 1999 (Cth) (EPBC Act), 108

environmental health infrastructure projects, 68

Environmental Legal and Other Requirements Register, 108

Environmental Management program, 10, 30-9, 84, 108
aims of program, 30

Appropriation Program Expenditure 2010-2011
Budget as Compared to Actual, 13, 181

and cultural heritage, 20
deliverables, 30

and Dugong and Turtle Project, 4
expenditure, 30

key performance indicators — Portfolio Budget
Statement, 36

key performance indicators — Torres Strait
Development Plan, 37-8

objective, 30

program map, 31

program projects and achievements, 32-5

regional goal, 30

Torres Strait Development Plan outcomes, 30
Environmental Management System (EMS) audits, 108
environmental protection in ILUAs, 61

environmental sustainability, 108-9
Ephraim Bani Gallery, 19
Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO), 114
Erub Art Centre, 16
Executive coaching, 105
Executive Committee, 91
meetings, 102
Executive Members, 91
expenditure
Culture, Art and Heritage program, 14
Economic Development program, 22
Environmental Management program, 30
Governance and Leadership program, 40
Healthy Communities program, 63
Native Title program, 48
Safe Communities program, 70
external scrutiny, 111
Native Title Office (NTO)
TSRA as Native Title Representative Body, 61

Federal Court of Australia

and Naghir land claim, 61

and Regional Sea Claim Determination, 56, 61
Fell, Keith, 91, 97
financial performance

Appropriation Program Expenditure 2010-2011
Budget as Compared to Actual, 13

of TSRA in its Native Title Representative Body
capacity, 60

financial statements, 119-64
Fisheries Program, 24, 32
Fisheries Project, 30
fisheries project, 32
fishing
Protected Zone Joint Authority and, 3
Fraud Awareness workshops, 113
fraud control, 111
freedom of information (FOI), 169-71
categories of documents, 170-1
contact details, 171
provision of funding, 170
statistics, 171
TSRA's functions, 169-70
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TSRA's structure, 170
Freedom of Information Act 1982 (Cth) (FOI Act), 169

Freedom of Information Amendment (Reform) Act 2010
(Cth), 169

Frontier Software Pty Ltd, 113

Gab Titui Annual Indigenous Art Award, fourth, 16
case study, 20-1

Gab Titui Cultural Centre (GTCC), 16, 17,18, 19
website, 19

Gateway / Hub for the presentation, preservation,
promotion and education of Torres Strait Islander and
Aboriginal culture and arts project, 17

General Manager's Message, 6-7
Ghost Net Australia, 16

‘Giving of the Gift” exhibition see Cultural Maintenance
exhibition, ‘Sibuwanay’ / ‘Tar Digri’ (‘Giving of the Gift’)

Governance and Leadership Capacity Building Project,
40,43

Governance and Leadership program, 10, 40-7, 84
aim of program, 40

Appropriation Program Expenditure 2010-2011
Budget as Compared to Actual, 13, 181

deliverables, 40
expenditure, 40

key performance indicators — Portfolio Budget
Statement, 44

key performance indicators — Torres Strait
Development Plan, 45-6

objective, 40
program map, 41
program projects and achievements, 42—-3
regional goal, 40
Torres Strait Development Plan outcomes, 40
governance framework
diagram, 90
Governance Review, vii, 6, 7
governance review, vii, 6,7
governance structure
overview, 90-1
grants
details of, 173-5
Gudha Maluilgal
and Regional Sea Claim, 56
Guivarra, Wayne, 94

harassment see Preventing Bullying and Harassment
Policy

health
regional statistics, 83
Health and Safety Committee, 113
health and safety management arrangements, 113
health partnerships, v
strategic policy direction for
healthy homes initiative, 65

see also Torres Strait and Northern Peninsula
Health Partnership

health related infrastructure, vii, 68
healthy activities see organised healthy activities
Healthy Communities program, 10, 62-9, 84

aim of program, 62

Appropriation Program Expenditure 2010-2011
Budget as Compared to Actual, 13, 181

deliverables, 62-3
expenditure, 63

key performance indicators — Portfolio Budget
Statement, 68

key performance indicators — Torres Strait
Development Plan, 69

objective, 62
program map, 64
program projects and achievements, 65-7
regional goal, 63
Torres Strait Development Plan outcomes, 63
healthy foods
healthy home initiative, 65
healthy homes initiatives, 62, 65
healthy lifestyles initiatives, 62, 66

Heavy Equipment Management Training Program
(HEMTP), 67, 68

Mabuiag Roads and Drainage Project (Stage 2)
case study, 68
highlights and achievements, iv—v

Home Ownership on Indigenous Communal Lands
Discussion Paper (Qld State Government), v

Horn Island Affordable Housing Project (HIAHP), 67
Horticulture in Schools program, 33
housing
regional statistics, 83
housing and home ownership initiatives, 62-3
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human resources, 113-16
human resources management
Native Title Representative Body, 58-9

income
regional statistics, 83
indemnities and insurance premiums for officers, 111-12
Indigenous broadcasting, 43
Indigenous Fisheries Advisory Committee (IFAC), 106, 107

Indigenous Land Use Agreement (ILUAs) and Future
Acts notifications, 55

Indigenous Land Use Agreement (ILUAs) and Future
Acts project, 50

Indigenous Land Use Agreements (ILUAs), 48, 50, 55, 69
environmental protection in, 61

Indigenous Protected Areas project, 34

Indigenous Reform Agenda, 82

Indigenous State Emergency Service (SES) cadets, 43

Indigenous Youth Recognise Impacts of Climate Change
case study, 47

industrial democracy, 114

industry training initiatives, 27

information management and technology, 108

Information Management Strategic Plan, 108

Information Publication Scheme (IPS), 169

infrastructure developments, v

see also airstrips and marine transport
infrastructure; Major Infrastructure Program
(MIP); safe communities infrastructure
and equipment; Transport Infrastructure
Development Scheme (TIDS)

infrastructure projects
health related, vii, 68
Integrated / Regional Service Delivery Agreement, 44

Integrated / Regional Service Delivery Steering
Committee, 44

Integrated Planning Framework
diagram, 11
Integrated Service Delivery (ISD), iv, vii, 44
and Declaration on the Rights of Indigenous People, 3
and Healthy Communities program, 62, 65
and Native Title program, 48
and Safe Communities program, 72, 74

Torres Strait and Northern Peninsula Area Regional
Plan 2009-2029 and, 10

Integrated Service Delivery Framework, 6,7

Integrated Service Delivery (ISD) Governance
Framework

development of, 42, 44
Integrated Service Delivery (ISD) Project, 40, 42
internal audit, 111
international cross border issues, vii
internet access, 73, 74
Invasive Species Management project, 32
Invasive Species Project, 30
iPads

use of in transition to electronic Board meeting
format, 104

Islander Board of Industry and Service (IBIS)
and healthy foods, 65

Islander Entrepreneur Program (Partnership
with the National Australia Bank (NAB)), 24

Islander Entrepreneur Program loans, 26

Issues Register, 108

judicial decisions
Native Title Representative Body, 61, 87

Kaurareg Aboriginal people, 80
and Native Title, 81

key performance indicators — Portfolio Budget
Statement, 84

Culture, Art and Heritage program, 18
Economic Development program, 25
Environmental Management program, 36
Governance and Leadership program, 44
Healthy Communities program, 68

Native Title program, 51

Safe Communities program, 74-5

key performance indicators — Torres Strait Development
Plan

Culture, Art and Heritage program, 18-20
Economic Development program, 267
Environmental Management program, 37-8
Governance and Leadership program, 45-6
Healthy Communities program, 69

Kris, John T, 91, 92-3
see also Chairperson’s message
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Kulkalgal
and Regional Sea Claim, 56
Kulkalgal number two (Zuizin) claim, 54
see also Zuizin Island Claim

Land and Sea Ranger Program see Ranger Program
Land and Sea Rangers
and Seagrass Monitoring project, 39
and Working on Country, 32, 36
Land and Sea Rangers Project, 30
Land Project, 30
land use plans developed, 37-8

Legal, Policy and advocacy support for Registered
Native Title Prescribed Bodies Corporate project, 50

legislative framework
TSRA, 84-7

legislative functions of TSRA in its Native Title
Representative Body capacity, 57-8

letter of transmittal, xi

Local Government Act 1993
and members of Board, 91

Lui, Willie, 101

Mabo decision, 80
Mabuiag Island
replacement of berthing dolphins at barge ramps, 77
Mabuiag Roads and Drainage Project (Stage 2)
Major Infrastructure Program
case study, 68
Major Infrastructure Program (MIP), iv
and health related infrastructure, vii, 66, 68
Mabuiag Roads and Drainage Project (Stage 2)
case study, 68
Makie, Walter, 91, 96—7
Maluilgal
and Regional Sea Claim, 56
map of Torres Strait region, 81
marine resource utilisation, 26
market research see advertising and market research
Mer (Murray) Island
Native Title rights of Miriam people, 80

Mills, Phillip, 99

Minister for Families, Housing, Community Services and
Indigenous Affairs

briefings and information provided to, 87
ministerial appointments, 87

powers of direction, 86

and Torres Strait Regional Authority, 86, 111

see also Torres Strait Regional Authority (TSRA)
Statement of Intent to the Minister

ministerial appointments, 87
ministerial visits, 3-4
Miriam Mer
and Regional Sea Claim, 56
Miriam people
Native Title rights, 80
Moa community
arts development, 16, 17
Moa Island (St Pauls)
replacement of berthing dolphins at barge ramps, 77
Mosby, John, 98
Mosby, Phillemon, 91, 99
Mura Badulgal, 28
Mura Kosker Sorority, 72,73, 74
Museum of Contemporary Art (Sydney), v, 16

Naghir land claim, 50, 54, 61
National Congress of Australia’s First People, 4
National Disability Strategy, 115
National Native Title Conference, 50
Native Title, v, 80-1
Native Title Act 1993 (Cth), 53, 80
and Native Title Representative Body, 57,58, 60, 84
Native Title activities
support for, 54
Native Title Amendment Bill (No 1) 2010 (Cth), 50, 53
Native Title Claims project, 50
Native Title Conference, b2
Native Title determinations, 48, 50, 51, 54
Native Title Office (NTO), 50, 52, 53, 54, 55, 56
Operational Plan, 57
TSRA as Native Title Representative Body, 57
consultancies, 59
external scrutiny, 61
management of human resources, 58-9
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Native Title program, 10, 48-61, 84
aim of program, 48

Appropriation Program Expenditure 2010-2011
Budget as Compared to Actual, 13, 181

and cultural heritage, 20
deliverables, 48
expenditure, 48

key performance indicators - Portfolio Budget
Statement, 48, 51

legal, policy and advocacy support for PBCs, 52-3

Native Title Representative Body (NTRB) reporting,
57-61

objective, 48

program map, 49

program projects and achievements, 50
regional goal, 48

statistical data, 51-2

Native Title Regional Sea Claim judgment see Regional
Sea Claim Determination

Native Title Representative Body (NTRB)
consultancies, 59
environmental protection in ILUAs, 61
external scrutiny, 61

financial performance of TSRA inits NTRB
capacity, 60

judicial decisions, 61

legislative functions of TSRA in its NTRB capacity,
57-8

management of human resources, 58-9

organisational structure and corporate governance
policies, 58

reporting, 57-61
Statements for the Purpose of the Native Title Act, 60
TSRA as, 57,84

Ngurupai airport (Horn Island), 80

non Community Development Employment Projects
(CDEP) employment, 22

Northern Peninsula Area Regional Council
and members of Board, 91

and Torres Strait and Northern Peninsula Area
Regional Plan 2009-2029, 10

Northern Peninsula Area Regional Council (NPARC)
proposed MOU with, 6

objectives (from Torres Strait Development Plan)
Culture, Art and Heritage program, 14
Economic Development program, 22

Environmental Management program, 30
Governance and Leadership program, 40
Healthy Communities program, 62

Native Title program, 48

Safe Communities program, 70

occupational health and safety see health and safety
management arrangements; workplace health

Occupational Health and Safety Act 1991 (Cth), 113
Old People Action and Lift for Life Programs, 68
Online APS Jobs website, 172
operations report, 79-87

regional overview, 79-81
organisational structure, 170

chart, 168

organisational structure and corporate governance
policies

Native Title Representative Body, 58
organised healthy activities

participation in, 68

P

payroll and leave records, 113
PDM Consultancy, 111
Pearson, Nancy, 91, 96
Performance Development Program (PDP)
for TSRA staff, 7
population
regional statistics, 83
Port Kennedy Association Incorporated, 72, 74
Portfolio Budget Statements

deliverables from see deliverables (from Portfolio
Budget Statement)

key performance indicators see key performance
indicators — Portfolio Budget Statement

Prescribed Bodies Corporate, 57

Badu community, 28

registered as Cultural Heritage Body, 17
capacity building, 45
legal, policy and advocacy support for, 52-3
Moa community

registered as Cultural Heritage Body, 17
and Native Title, v, 48

see also Capacity Building for Prescribed Body
Corporate project; Legal, Policy and advocacy
support for Registered Native Title Prescribed
Bodies Corporate project
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Preventing Bullying and Harassment Policy, 114
privacy, 114
Privacy Act 1988 (Cth), 114
professional artists, 18
program budget variance
explanation of, 181
program maps
Culture, Art and Heritage program, 15
Economic Development program, 23
Environmental Management program, 31
Governance and Leadership program, 41
Healthy Communities program, 64
Native Title program, 49
Safe Communities program, 71
program projects and achievements
Culture, Art and Heritage program, 16-17
Economic Development program, 24
Environmental Management program, 32-5
Governance and Leadership program, 42-3
Healthy Communities program, 657
Native Title program, 50
Safe Communities program, 72-3
program reporting and performance summaries, 10-77
Program Steering Committee (PSC), 106
program structure
overview, 10-11
programs, 10, 84, 106

see also Culture, Art and Heritage program;
Economic Development program;
Environmental Management program;
Governance and Leadership program; Healthy
Communities program; Native Title program;
Safe Communities program

property management, 114
Protected Zone Joint Authority (PZJA), 3, 26

provision of mainstream social services and facilities
project, 72

Ranger groups, 36
Ranger Program, 20, 34, 181
expansion of, 6,7

Rangers see Land and Sea Rangers
records management, 108
Regional Communication project, 40, 43
regional communications
Prescribed Bodies Corporate, 46
regional goal
Culture, Art and Heritage program, 14
Economic Development program, 22
Environmental Management program, 30
Governance and Leadership program, 40
Healthy Communities program, 63
Native Title program, 48
Safe Communities program, 70
Regional Indigenous Broadcasting Service (RIBS), 43, 46
Regional Indigenous Media Organisation, vii

Regional Industry Development and Coordination
Initiatives, 24

regional overview
report of operations, 79-81

Regional Plan Working Group for Health, 65

Regional Plan Working Groups (RPWGs), 44

Regional Sea Claim Determination, 6, 50, 51, 54, 61, 81, 87
case study, 56

regional statistics, 83

Registered Native Title Prescribed Bodies Corporate see
Prescribed Bodies Corporate

Remote Indigenous Broadcasting Service, vii

repatriation of Indigenous human remains and sacred
objects, v

Replacement of Berthing Dolphins at Outer Island Barge
Ramps Project

Transport Infrastructure Development Scheme
case study, 77
risk management, 110
Risks Register, 108

safe and accessible community initiatives, 70

safe communities infrastructure and equipment /
airstrips and marine transport infrastructure, 73

Safe Communities grants program, 73
safe communities infrastructure and equipment, 73
Safe Communities program, 10, 70-7, 84

aim of program, 70

Appropriation Program Expenditure 2010-2011
Budget as Compared to Actual, 13, 181
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deliverables, 70
expenditure, 70

key performance indicators — Portfolio Budget
Statement, 74-5

objective, 70

program map, 71

program projects and achievements, 72-3

regional goal, 70

Torres Strait Development Plan outcomes, 70
Safe Communities Regional Plan Working Group, 72
School Leavers Leadership Program (ARLP), 43
Seagrass Monitoring project, 34

case study, 38-9
SEEK website, 172
service mapping project, 72, 74

social services and facilities see provision of mainstream
social services and facilities project

social support services, 74-5
sport and recreation programs

healthy lifestyles initiatives, 66
St Pauls (Moa Island)

replacement of berthing dolphins at barge ramps, 77
staff development and training, 113
staff recruitment, 172
staffing statistics, 116
sustainability and efficiency initiatives, 7
sustainable economic development base, vii
Sustainable Energy Scoping Study, 35
Sustainable Horticulture project, 33
Sustainable Planning Act 2009 (Qld), 38

Symposium on Sea Turtle Biology and Conservation
(San Diego, USA)

and Indigenous engagement in sea turtle
management, 4

Tagai College

and Seagrass Monitoring project, 38
Tandanya Cultural Centre (South Australia), v, 16
Telstra Indigenous Art Award, 18
Terrestrial Biodiversity Conservation project, 32
Thursday Island, 80
Torres Shire Council

MOU with, 6

and Torres Strait and Northern Peninsula Area
Regional Plan 2009-2029, 10

Torres Strait, 80
map of region, 81

Torres Strait and Northern Peninsula Area
economic development opportunities in, v

Torres Strait and Northern Peninsula Area Health
Partnership Forum, 65

Torres Strait and Northern Peninsula Area Regional Plan
2009-2029, vii, 7,10, 42, 44,181

consultation and feedback on, iv, 6
Torres Strait and Northern Peninsula Health Partnership, 3
Torres Strait artists

promotion of, v

see also arts development; Culture, Art and
Heritage program; professional artists

Torres Strait Climate Change Strategy, 35, 38
Torres Strait communities, 2
Board of Directors and, iv
engagement with, iv, 2

and repatriation of Indigenous human remains and
sacred objects, v

Torres Strait Development Plan 2009-2013, iv, vii, 6, 10,
57,84,181

outcomes
Economic Development program, 22
Environmental Management program, 30
Governance and Leadership program, 30
Healthy Communities program, 63
Safe Communities program, 70

see also key performance indicators — Torres Strait
Development Plan

The Torres Strait Dugong Sanctuary Seagrass Baseline
Survey, 34

Torres Strait Health Partnership, 62

Torres Strait Island Regional Council (TSIRC)
divestment of assets program, 28
and social support services, 74

and Torres Strait and Northern Peninsula Area
Regional Plan 2009-2029, 10

and Torres Strait Ranger Program, 6, 34
Torres Strait Island Regional Council Engineering
Services (TSIRC ES)
Water Services Operations and Maintenance
Program, 67

Torres Strait Islander Cultural Heritage Act 2003 (Qld),
17,61
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Torres Strait Islander Land and Other Act Amendment
Bill 2010, 50

Torres Strait Islander Land and other Legislation
Amendment Act (Qld), 53

Torres Strait Islanders, 80
Torres Strait Islanders Media Association (TSIMA), 43, 46
Torres Straitislands, 80
Torres Strait Ranger Program see Ranger Program
Torres Strait Regional Authority (TSRA)
Board see Board
corporate governance and accountability, 90-116
enabling functions, 108-10
enabling legislation, 84-5
financial statements, 119-64
formation, 84
functions, 85, 169-70
highlights and achievements, iv—v
legislative framework, 84-7

and Minister for Families, Housing, Community
Services and Indigenous Affairs, 86, 111

as Native Title Representative Body see under
Native Title Representative Body (NTRB)

operations report, 79-87
opportunities and challenges, vii
organisational structure, 168, 170
powers, 85-6

program reporting and performance summaries,
10-77

and service delivery, 80
vision, iii, 6
Torres Strait Regional Authority (TSRA) Statement of
Intent to the Minister, 87

Torres Strait Regional Sea Claim see Regional Sea Claim
Determination

Torres Strait Transport Infrastructure Plan, 2006, 77
Torres Strait Treaty
border security initiatives under, v

Torres Strait Youth and Recreational Sporting
Association (TSYRSA), 66, 68, 74

traditional arts, culture and languages
side event presentation with Columbia and
Bolivia at United Nations Permanent Forum on
Indigenous Issues, 3
Traditional Ecological Knowledge (TEK) project, 17, 20, 35
Training Rural Australians in Leadership (TRAIL)
Program (ARLP), 43

transport infrastructure see airstrips and marine
transport infrastructure; Torres Strait Transport
Infrastructure Plan, 2006

Transport Infrastructure Development Scheme (TIDS), 73

Replacement of Berthing Dolphins at Outer Island
Barge Ramps Project

case study, 77
Tropical Rock Lobster fishery
draft five year business plan for, 24
TSRA Board Member's Code of Conduct, 105
turtles
research, v
sustainable management of, 4

see also Dugong and Turtle Management project;
Dugong and Turtle Project

Ugar Island

replacement of berthing dolphins at barge ramps, 77
Ului see Warral and Ului matter
United Kingdom Natural History Museum

and repatriation of Indigenous human remains and
sacred objects, v

United Nations Permanent Forum on Indigenous Issues
(UNPFII), 2-3

Wabunaw Geth Gallery, 19
Warral and Ului matter
Native Title, 50, b4
Water Services Operations and Maintenance Program

Torres Strait Island Regional Council Engineering
Services (TSIRCES), 67

‘Whole of Region Economic Development Solution Broker’
TSRA as, 22
Williams, Reginald, 94
Working on Country
and Land and Sea Rangers, 32, 36
workplace agreement see Enterprise Agreement
workplace health, 114

Zuizin Island Claim, 50
see also Kulkalgal number two (Zuizin) claim
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